JUDGMENT ON JURY VERDICT

CYV 31 (7-63)

Tuniten Stafen District Cownt
FOR THE

NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA

CIVIL ACTION FILE No. 75-C-341~C
MADGE L. NANCE,

Plaintiff,
V8. JUDGMENT
GROUP HOSPITAL SERVICE, an Oklahoma
Corporation, d/b/a Blue Cross and
Blue Shield of Oklahoma, -
Defendant.

This action came on for trial before the Court and a jury, Honorable H. Dale Cook

, United States District Judge, presiding, and the issues having been duly tried and
the jury having duly rendered its verdict, in favor of the Defendant;

It is Ordered and Adjudged that the Plaintiff take nothing and that the

Defendant recover of the Plaintiff its costs of action.

Dated at Tulsa, Oklahoma , this 30th day

o

, Jé? e B

Cluk of éourt

of March , 19 76.



IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA

v

JAMES M. PHILLIPS, )
)
Plaintiff, )
)
-vs- ) Case No. 74-C-131
) .
CASPAR WEINBERGER, ) .
Secretary of Health, Education ) .
and Welfare, )
)
Defendant. ) F? | LE D
MAR 2 31976
~ Jack C. Silver, Clerk
U. S. DISTRICT COM'™
JUDGMENT

This cause having been considered by.the Court on the
pleadings, the entire record certified to this Court by the
Defendant, and after due proceedings had, and upon examihation
of the pleadings and record filed herein, including the
Briefs submitted by the parties, the Court is of the opinion
as shown by its Memorandum Opinion filed herein of even date
that the final decision of the Secretary of HEW'is supported
by the substantial evidence required by the Social Security

Act, and should be affirmed;

IT IS THEREFCRE ORDERED, DECREED and ADJUDGED that the
final decision of the Secretary of HEW should be and hereby

is affirmed.

Dated this 2 é””day of -March, 1976.

§%a{1 <’9/( Le «,/Za »{73,\

Fred Daugherty?” A
United States District Judge




IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA

JAMES M. PHILLIPS, )
)
Plaintiff, )
) .
-vs- ) Case No. 74-C-131
' )
CASPAR WEINBERGER, )
Secretary of Health, Education ) .
and Welfare, )
) "EILED
Defendant. ) ‘
MAR 2 31976
MEMORANDUM OPINION Jack C. Silver, Clar:
- = U. S. NISTRICT CO:*~

In this action Plaintiff seeks reversal of the final
administrative decision of the Defendant, Secreééry of
Health, Education and Welfare, denying Plaintiff's application
for disability insurance benefits. Said beﬁefits are‘payable
in proper circumstances under sections 216(i) and 223 of the

Social Security Act, 42 U.S.C. §416(i) and §423. Jurisdiction

is present pursuant to Section 405 of the Act, 42 U.S.C.

§405(g) .

Plaintiff fiied an application for disability insurance
benefits and for a period of disability on Jahuafy 26, 1973
alleging that he had become disabled on July 11, 1972, at age
35, due to back trouble (Tr. 152-155). Plaintiff's application
was administratively denied by the Bureau of Disability
Insurance of the Social Security Administration (Tr. 156-157,
159-160). Plaintiff then requested a hearing. The Administrative
Law Judge before whom Plaintiff appeared concluded that Plaintiff
was not entitled to benefits (Tr. 35-46). The Administrative
Law Judge's decision was affirmed by the Appeals Council (Tr. 27).
Plaintiff then filed this action. The Secretary filed a Motion
to Remand which was sustained by the Court. Further testimony
was taken before the Administrative Law Judge who again found
that Plaintiff was not disabled within the meaning of the

Act. (Tr. 6-14). The Administrative Law Judge's decision was



adopted by the Appeals Council (Tr. 5). This action was

then reinstated or reopened.

An applicant for Social Security disability insurance
benefits has the burden of establishing that he was disabled
on or before the date on which he last met the statutory .

earnings requirements. McMillin v. Gardner, 384 F. 2d 596

(Tenth Cir. 1967). For purposes of Plaintiff's claim
"disability" means inability to engage in anylsubstantial
gainful activity by reason of any medically determinable
physical or mental impairment which can be expected to result
in death or which has lasted or which can be expected to last
a continuous period of not less than 12 months. '42 U.S.C.
§§416(8) and 423. The scope of this Court's review authority
is defined by 42 U.S.C. §405(g). The Secretary's decision
must be affirmed if supported by substantial evidence.

Gardner v. Bishop, 362 F. 2d 917 (Tenth Cir. 1966); 42

U.S.C. §405(g). Substantial evidence is such relevant
evidence as a reasonable mind might accept as édequate to

support a conclusion. Richardson v. Perales, 402 U.S. 389,

28 L.Ed. 24 842, 91 S.Ct. 1420 (1971). Substantial evidence
is sufficient evidence to justify, if the trial were to a
jury, a refusal to direct a verdict where the conclusion

sought to be drawn from the evidence is one of fact for the
1/
jury.” Substantial evidence is less than the weight of the

evidence, and the possibility of drawing two inconsistent

1/

- In considering a motion for directed verdict the Court
should view all evidence in the light most favorable to the
party against whom the motion is made. A verdict should be
directed only when the evidence and all the inferences to

be drawn therefrom are so patent that the minds of reasonable
men could not differ as to the conclusions to be drawn therefrom.
Oldenburg v. Clark, 489 F. 2d 839 (Tenth Cir. 1974).




conclusions from the evidence does not prevent an administrative
agency's finding from being supported by substantial evidence.

Consolo v. Federal Maritime Com., 383 U;S. 607, 16 L.Ed. 24

131, 86 S.Ct. 1018 (1966).

In conducting an administrative review it is the duty of -
this Court to examine the facts contained in the édministrative
record, evaluate tﬁe conflicts and make a determination therefrom
whether the facts supportkthe several elements which make up

the ultimate administrative decision. Nickol v. United States,

501 F. 2d 1389 (Tenth Cir. 1974); Heber Valley Milk Company v.

Butz, 503 F. 2d 96 (Tenth Cir. 1974).

In this case the ultimate administrative decision is
evidenced by the July 31, 1975 "Hearing Decision'" of thé
Administrative Law Judge (Tr. 7-14). This decision was,
simply stated, that the Plaintiff might not be éxpected to
return to his former work, but that he could engage in other
substantial gainful activity which existed in the National
economy. The issue before the Court is whether this decision
is supported by substantial evidence. The elements-of proof
which should be considered in determining whether Plaintiff
has established a disability are: (1) objective medical
facts; (2) medical opinions; (3) subjective evidence of
pain and disability; and (4) background, work histbry and

education. Hicks v. Gardner, 393 F. 2d 299 (Fourth Cir.

1968). 1If the evidence establishes that a claimant is, by
reasoﬁ of a disability as defined by the Act, unable to

do his former work, the burden of proof shifts to the
Secretary to come forward with evidence of the reasonable
availability to the claimant of other work which he is able

to do. Kirby v. Gardner, 369 F. 2d 302 (Tenth Cir. 1966);
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Trice v. Weinberger, 392 F. Supp. 1193 (N.D. Ga. 1975). The

relevant evidence contained in this file will be reviewed

below.

MEDICAL EVIDENCE

In a report dated February 6, 1973 a br; Frank Lewis
stated that he had examined Plaintiff numerous times from
July 11, 1972 to January 4, 1973 as a result of back pain
following minor trauma. Slow recovery was noted. At the
last examination Plaintiff was found to be free of pain most
of the time but it was noted that physical activity such as
lifting, stooping, prolonged sitting or standing Caused
recurrent pain. Dr. Lewis found that Plainﬁiff was totally
disabled for his former work which was hard physical labor
but indicated Plaintiff could do some job that did not involve

prolonged standing, lifting, or stooping. (Tr. 192-195).

In a report dated July 12, 1973 a Dr. Robert Roundsaville
stated that he had examined Plaintiff and found marked right
paraspinal muscle spasm and tenderness in the mid-line of the
lumbrosacral area. Motion forward and to the sides was
limited. X-ray revealed narrowing at L-5 and S-1. Herniated
nucleus polposus at L-5 and S-1 was diagnosed. Dr. Roundsaville
stated that Plaintiff was disabled to do his former job and that

he should be considered to be disabled. (Tr. 199-200).

An unsigned report from Orthopedic Specialists in Tulsa
dated May 16, 1973 states that Plaintiff was limited in motion
to the front and sides. Tenderness and muscle spasm of the back

was found. X-rays of the lumbar spine were in normal limits.



A lumbar mylogram was performed on June 7, 1973. Degenerative

disc disease in L-5 and S-1 was diagnozed. (Tr. 201).

In a report dated November 28, 1973 a Dr. Harry
Livingston stated that he had followed Plaintiff since May
1973 for chronic pain in the lower back. This doctor apparently
performed the June 7, 1973 myilogram. Plaintiff was treated
with traction and exercises. He would progress at times and
regress at other times. Degenerative disc disease was

diagnosed. (Tr. 204).

In a report dated August 16, 1974 a.Dr. Stowell stated that
Plaintiff was seen on August 16, 1974. Limited motion in the
lower back was found. Gross exaggeration of the problem was
noted. Reflexes were equal and active. Plaintiff was nervoﬁs
and tense. Leg raises were normal. X-ray was normal except
for narrowing of the L-5 disc inferspace. No evidence of
atrophy, paralysis, tremor or weakness in the lower back was
found. The diagnosis was ligamentous strain, lumbar, chronic
with superimposed psychomatic overlay. WNo functional limitation

was found. (Tr. 205-206).

In a report dated Septeﬁber 24, 1974 a Dr. John Dague
stated that he had examined Plaintiff on September 24, 1974.
Plaintiff moved slowly and deliberately in an exaggerated manner.
Plaintiff was not in pain but stated he had a pulling feeling
in his back. Chronic lumbar m§ofascitis and anxiety state were

diagnosed. Dr. Dague felt that Plaintiff could carry on a

moderate degree of manual labor. (Tr. 207-208).



Salvatore Russo, a Phd in clinical psychology, both
testified and submitted a report. Dr. Russo examined Plaintiff
on two occasions. Plaintiff was found té have a dull normal
1.Q. His educational level tested out to: spelling 3.3 grades,
arithmetic 5.3; and readingA4.8. He suffered from anxiety and
depression. Dr. Russo concluded that due to Plaintiff's
state of depression and anxiety he would have difficulty in
performing a job but that if he took therapy first he could

do a job. (Tr. 51-69, 222).

VOCATIONAL DATA

Plaintiff testified that he got to the 9th grade in school

(Tr. 107). He last worked in 1972. This work consisted of
cutting pipe into precise lengths. He held this job forA8 |
years. Before that he worked for 2 years as a janitor intthe
same establishment. Previous to that Plaintiff worked as a
truck driver and loader in a junk‘yard, as a tire changer

and in a service station. (Tr. 109-116). At the time of the
ijnitial hearing Plaintiff was taking some theology courses

at Oral Roberts University (Tr. 88) but had given up this

pursuit by the time of the second hearing.

At the second hearing a vocational expert testified as
to Plaintiff's ability to engage in substantial gainful
activity. This individual stated that, assuming Plaintiff's
impairments only interferred with his ability to work to the
point of being a nagging jrritation instead of being a positive
disability, Plaintiff had sufficient skill to do certain
types of work and that such work existed in the Tulsa area.

The vocational expert‘stated that Plaintiff could do bench
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assembly type work or that he could work as an extruder
operator, a light material handler or a deburring machine
operator; The vocational expert further testified that,
assuming Plaintiff could squat, stoop and kneel with only
moderate discomfort and 1lift up to 25 pounds there was a
whole range of light jobs which he could perform. These
would include custodial work, service station work and work
as a watchman. The vocational expert further testified that
the jobs he enumerated existed in substantial numers in the

Tulsa area (Tr. 141-145).

SUBJECTIVE EVIDENCE

At the first hearing Plaintiff testified that he was
unable to do work around the house but that he walked for
exercise (Tr. 79). Plaintiff testified that he was able to
take care of his personal needs (Tr. 82)5 Plaintiff testified
that he was unable to work because of the condition of his

back and legs (Tr. 93).

At the second hearing Plaintiff testified that he was
injured in 1962 or 1963 when pinned between two trucks but
that he recovered from this injury (Tr. 112-113). Plaintiff
testified that hiskback ached continuously and that he took
medication for the pain (Tr. 118-120). There was no corroboration

of Plaintiff's testimony.

CONCLUSIION

The Secretary's decision is supported by substantial
evidence. There is no question but that Plaintiff is suffering

from degenerative disc disease and that he may be disabled for
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the performénce of ordinary manual labor. However, it is

also clear that Plaintiff retains the capacity to perform
sedentary work and that such work exists in the Tulsa area.
There is a sufficient conflict in the ﬁedical evidence to

allow a reasonable mind to conclude that Plaintiff is not,

by reason of his back impairment, disabled from the performance
of light or sedentary work. There is some indication that
Plaintiff, by reason of his psychological problems, would

have difficulty in performing a job. The clinical psychologist
who testified as to Plaintiff's mental state testified that it
would be difficult for Plaintiff to remain on a job in his

then present mental state. However, the medical doctors

who examined Plaintiff while noting anxiety or psychomatic
overlay did not find that Plaintiff would, by reason of his

mental problems, be unable to work.

The opinions of medical experts are merely advisory,
the question of a plaintiff's disability being a question of
fact for determination by the finder of facts. 'However, such
opinions are very persuasive and are not to be rejected

arbitrarily. Collins v. Richardson, 356 F. Supp. 1370

(E.D. Tenn. 1972). In this case there is sufficient conflict

in the testimony to juétify the Secretary's finding that

Plaintiff was not disabled by reason of his mental impairment.

The psychologist merely stated that it would be difficult for
Plaintiff to hold a job. No medical doctor found this to be the
case. The Administrative Law Judge had the opportunity to observe
both the psychologist and the Plaintiff. It is the Secretary's
task to weigh and credit evidence. On this state of the record

it was not error for the Secretary to find that Plaintiff was

not disabled from sedentary work by reason of mental impairments.



The vocational expert testified that a person of
Plaintiff's education and work experience would be able
to perform a number of light and sedentary jobs which existed
in the Tulsa area economy. As the Administrative Law Judge
found that Pléintiff was not disabled from the performance
of light or sedentary work, the Secretary's decision that
Plaintiff was able to perform substantial gainful activity

is supported by the testimony of the vocational expert.
In view of the foregoing the decision of the Defendant
appealed from herein should be affirmed. A Judgment based

on this decision will be entered this date.

Dated this 7/F§”/ day of March, 1976.

Fred Daugherty (94 ~
United States District Judge



NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA
CLERK'S OFFICE
JACK C. SILVER UNITED STATES COURT HOUSE

UNH@ STATES DISTRICT COUR}

CLERK

TULSA. OKLAHOMA 74103

. March 23, 1976
Dr. James Emory Seasholtz Mr. R. L.'Davidson, Jr.
52585 Base Street 900 Sooner Federal Bldg.
New Baltimore, Michigan 48047 Tulsa, OK 74103
Mr. Larry A. McSoud Mr., David Holland
Center Office Building 801 NBT Building
630 West T7th Street Tulsa, OK 74103
Tulsa, OK 74127
Mr. Dwayne C. Pollard Re: Case No. 73-C-62
Mr. Rooney McInerney Dr. James Emory Seasholtz
1304 Petroleum Club Bldg. Vs
Tulsa, OK 74119 Nellie K. Stover, et al
Gentlemen:

Please be advised that the following Minute Order was
entered by U. S. District Judge Allen E. Barrow on this date:

"Based on the order heretofore entered affirming the
Special Master's Report and the order authorizing the
Clerk to pay out the cashier's check, and the Court
having been advised that this matter has been settled
and the plaintiff having heretofore filed his Dismissal
With Prejudice,

IT IS ORDERED that this cause of action is dismissed
with prejudice."”

Very truly yours,

Jack C. Silver, Clerk

By:
Deputy Clerk




DOCKET NO. 211

"BEFORE THE JUDICIAL PANEL ON MULTIDISTRICT %;@I§§T@QN

L
IN RE A. H. ROBINS CO., INC. "DALXON SHIELD" IUD,P;‘R‘ODU.CTSJ ol
LIABILITY LITIGATION M e 75-C-478-b
» EiLEp
Mark Timothy Burns and Tennie Blanche Burns v. ~ h
A. H. Robins Co., Inc., et al., N.D. Oklahoma ‘MAR191976 l&

Civil Action No. 75-C-478-5

Jack ¢, Silver, Clerk
U. S. DISTRICT COURT

On December 8, 1975, after notice and hearing the Panel trans-
ferred 53 related civil actions to the United States District
Court for the District of Kansas for coordinated or consolidated
pretrial proceedings pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §1407. Since that
time more than 40 additional actions have been transferred

to the District of Kansas. With the consent of that court

all such actions have been assigned to the Honorable Frank

G. Theis.

CONDITIONAL TRANSFER ORDER

-

It appears from the pleadings filed in the above-captioned
action that it involves questions of fact which are common
to the actions previously transferred to the District of
Kansas and assigned to Judge Theis.

Pursuant to Rule 9 of the Rules of Procedure of the Judicial
Panel on Multidistrict Litigation, 65 F.R.D. 253 (1975), the
above-captioned tag-along action is hereby transferred on the
basis of the hearing held on July 25, 1975, and for the reasons
stated in the opinion and order of December 8, 1975, F.
Supp. __, and with the consent of that court assigned to the
Honorable Prank G. Theis. :

- This order does not become effective until it is filed in the
office of the Clerk for the United States District Court for
the District of Kansas. The transmittal of this order to said
Clerk for filing shall be stayed fifteen days from the entry
thereof and if any party files a Notice of Opposition with the
Clerk of the Panel within this fifteen-day period, the stay
will be continued until further order of the Panel.

,,4,'? {.7’,{{{/) ,{;"

FOR T?‘ PANEL:

mdﬁmm}w’,%}g LY | L y

e e o0 W Bedh “receivid Sl 1S e -
:tﬁ” T time, the W,{i}». o SR IX o S W
b.. ST 0371 this order :

MAR1-51976 — Patricia D. Howard

U I:L El of the Panel
cPagn'cia D. Howard ,

hisf of the Panel :
1T MAR L 81976

.« ot

ARTHUR G. JOHNSON, Clerk

Bym 588 k&&*}m Deputy
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R g i s




IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE
' NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA ‘=, ‘ l~

MR 191973

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,

. Plaintiff, ; Jack C. Silver, Cleri
) U8, DISTRICT coer
JERRY D. COLSON, ET AL, ; )
Defendants. '  Civil Action No. 75—C—534”///

JUDGMENT OF FORECLOSURE

%

THIS MATTER COMES on for consideration this _lngf"
day of March, 1976, the plaintiff appearing by Robert P. Santee,
Assistant United States Attorney, and the defendants, Jerry D.
Colson, Sharon L. Colson, and Oscar R. Cummins, appearing not.

The Court, being fully advised ana having examined
the file herein, finds that Jefry D. Colson and Sharon L. Col-
son were served by publication, as appears from Proof of Publi-
catibn filed herein, and that Oscar R. Cummins was served with
Summons and Complaint on December 3, 1975, as appears from the

Marshal's Return of Service filed herein.

It appearing that the said defendants have failed
to answer herein and that default has been entered by the
Clerk of this Court.

The Court further finds that this is a suit based
upon a mortgage note and foreclosure on a real property mort-
gage securing said mortgage note and that the following?

. described real property is located in Tulsa County, Oklahoma,
within the Northern Judicial District of Oklahoma:

Lot Nineteen (19), Block Fourteen (14),

Mohawk Ridge, an Addition to the City of

Tulsa, Tulsa County, State of Oklahoma,

according to the recorded plat thereof.

THAT the defendants, Jerry D. Colson and Sharon L.
Colson, did, on the 7th day of December, 1974, execute and



deliver to the Administrator of Veterans Affairs their mort-
gage and mbftgage note in the amount of $11,250.00, with 9-1/2
percent interest per annum, and further providing for the
payment of monthly installments of principal and interest.

The Court further finds that the defendants, Jerry
D. Colson and Sharon L. Colson, made default under the terms
of the aforesaid mortgage note by reason of their failure to
make monthly installments due thereon for more than eleven
months last past, which default has continued and that by
reason thereof, the above-named defendants are now indebted
to the plaintiff in the amount of $11,302.42 as unpaid prin-
cipal, with interest thereon at the rate of 9-1/2 percent per
annum from May 1, 1975, until paid, plus the cost of this
action, accrued and accruing.

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that
the plaintiff have and recover judgment against defendants,
Jerry D. Colsoh and Sharon L. Colson, in rem, for the sum of
$11,302.42, with interest thereon at the rate of 9-1/2 percent
per annum from May 1, 1975, plus the cost of this action,
accrued and accruing, plus any additional sums advanced or to
be advanced or expended during this foreclosure action by
plaintiff for taxes, insurance, abstracting, or sums for the
preservation of the subject property.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that Athe
- plaintiff have and recover judgment, in rem, against defendant
Oscar R. Cummins.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that upon
the failure of said defendants to satisfy plaintiff's money
judgment herein, an Order of Sale shall be issued to the United
States Marshal for the Northern District of Oklahoma, commanding

him to advertise and sell with appraisement the real property



and apply the proceeds thereof in satisfaction of plaintiff's
judgment. The residue, if any, shall be deposited with the
Clerk of the Court to await further brder of the Court.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that
from and after the sale of said property, under and by virtue
of this judgment and decree, all of the defendants, and each
of them, and all persons claiming under them since the filing
of the complaint herein be and they are forever barred and
foreclosed of any right, title, interest or claim in or to the

real property or any part thereof.

United States District Judge

APPROVED.

ROBERT P. SANTEE
Assistant United States Attorney




IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA

INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
NUMBER ONE OF TULSA COUNTY,
OKLAHOMA,

Plaintiff,
vs. No. 75-C-324

CASPAR W. WEINBERGER, Secretary
of Health, Education & Welfare,

FILED
Defendant. MAK 14 gﬂm

Jack C. Silver, Clerk
ORDER U. 8. DISTRICT Cotr=v

The Court has before it for consideration and for final
determination plaintiff's Motion for Summary Judgment and De-
fendant's Motion to Dismiss or in the alternative for Judgment
on the Pleadings. Each of the parties has filed briefs in
support of their motions, and briefs in opposition thereto have
been filed in response. In addition, The League of Women Voters
has filed a brief as amicus curiae. On January 16, 1976, a
hearing was held in regard to plaintiff's Application For Pre-
liminary Injunction, at which time both parties presented evi-
dence going to the merits of the case. Based upon a thorough
examination of the briefs filed and of the applicable law, and
after careful consideration of the evidence presented, the Court

makes the following determination.

JURISDICTION

In the original Complaint, plaintiff alleged jurisdiction
pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1346. Plaintiff now seeks to be allowed
to amend its Complaint to allege jurisdiction under 28 U.S.C.
§ 1331 and 28 U.S.C. § 1361l. Title 28 U.S.C. § 1653 provides
that defective allegations of jurisdiction may be amended, upon
terms, in the tria; or appellate courts. Further, Rule 15,

Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, states that leave to amend



pleadings shall be freely given when justice so requires.
Plaintiff is, therefore, granted leave to amend its Complaint.
Title 28 U.S.C. § 1331 provides in pertinent part that
the district courts shall havé original jurisdiction of all
civil actions wherein the matter in controversy exceeds the
value of $10,000.00 and arises under the Constitution or laws

of the United States. In Board of Education, Cincinnati, v.

" Department of Health, Education and Welfare, 396 F.Supp. 203

(S.D. Ohio 1975), the plaintiff challenged HEW's determination
that plaintiff was ineligible for E.S.A.A. funds. The court
held that it had jurisdiction under its federal question juris-

diction, 28 U.S.C. 1331(a). The court in Kelley v. Metropolitan

- County Board of Education, Tennessee, 372 F.Supp. 528 (M.D.

Tennessee 1973), involving a third-party action in regard to
the Emergency School Assistant Program, stated that it was
clear that the claim was one which "arises under" the Constitu-
tion and laws of the United States. 1In Kelley, however, juris-
diction pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1331 was lacking because the
jurisdictional amount requirement was not met.

Defendant contends that plaintiff has failed to specifi-
cally allege the jurisdictional amount. However, the evidence
presented at the hearing on January 16, 1976, clearly shows
that the amount in controversy exceeds $10,000.00.

Therefore, it is the determination of the Court that the
Court has jurisdiction of this matter pursuant to 28 U.S.C.

§ 1331.

FACTUAL BACKGROUND

The plaintiff herein, Independent School District Number
One of Tulsa County, Oklahoma, brings this action challenging
the validity of certain actions taken by the defendant, the
Secretary of Health, Education and Welfare, through its Office

of Education, in connection with the processing and awarding of



grant applications under the Emergency School Aid Act, 20 U.S.C.
1601 et seq. for the school year 1975-76. Plaintiff alleges
that the Office of Education failed to follow its own regulation
in administering its 1975-76 grant (hereinafter referred to as
E.S.A.A. III) and plaintiff further alleges that the actions
taken by defendant were arbitrary aﬁd capricious, and contrary
to law. |

The purpose of thé Emergency School Aid Act, as stated by
Congress, 20 U.S.C. 1601(b) (1)-(3), is to meet the special needs
incident to the elimination of minority group‘seéregation; to
encourage the voluntary elimination of minority group isolation
in elementary and secondary schools; and to aid school children
in overcoming the‘educatiqnal disadvantages of minority group
isolation. This purpose was implemented by granting eligible
school districts federal funds with which to carry out programs
serving these purposes. The entire statutory program was funded
yearly by Congress according to a statutory formula. 20 U.S.C.
1603. Under this formula, the State of Oklahoma was allocated
$1,262,080 for basic grants for the 1975-76 school year, E.S.A.A. III.

The Act requires that, in approving applications for funding,
the Assistant Secretary for Education must take into account
those criteria contained in 20 U.S.C. 1609(c); and in evaluating
the applications submitted by the various school districts within
a state, is required to compare the districts in regard to relative
need and quality of proposed programs. The individual school
districts within a state, therefore, compete with each other for
the basic grants. |

In order for the Assistant Secretary to evaluate relative
needs within a particular state, the regqulations promulgated
under the Act require that‘ﬁhe application of each school district
be graded, and that point scores be given for the various factors

included in 20 U.S.C. 1609(c). The final composite score for each



competing school district is ascertained by adding those points
accumulated under subsection (a) of 45 C.F.R. 185.14, for ob-:-
jective criteria, known as statistical points, and those points
accumulated under subsection (b) for Education and Programic
criteria, known as quality points.

In order to be eligible for funding, the application
must meetAthe requirements set forth in the statute and regula-
tions, and must set forth programs, projects or activitieg which
show sufficient promise of achieving the purpose of the Act.

45 C.F.R. 185.14(c) (2). Before an application may be finally
approved, it must receive a minimum quality score and a minimum
composite score. The minimum scores for E.S.A.A. III are con-
tained in the regulations at 40 F.R. 20660, May 2, 1975.

The Act, however, also provides that the Assistant Secre-
tary shall not finally disapprove an application without afford-
ing the applicant an opportunity to modify its application.

20 U.S.C. 1609(d) (2). 1In order to comply with this provision,
the Office of Education established a procedure for granting
E.S.A.A. funds in funding cycles. By regulation, 40 F.R. 20660,
May 12, 1975, the Assistant Secretary provided that not less
than 20 percent of the state's apportionment for basic grants
would be placed in a reserve fund to provide for resubmitted

applications.

E.S.A.A. I and II

In administeriﬁg the funds for the E.S.A.A. I (school year
1973-74) and E.S.A.A. II (school year 1974-~75) programs, in
effect four cycles were established: a first cycle, a "mini"
resubmit cycle, a second cycle, and a reallocation cycle. The
deﬁermination was made in both E.S.A.A. I and E.S.A.A. II to
distribute 66-2/3 percent of the basic grant funds in the first
cycle, and 33-1/3 percent of the funds was withheld to be dis-
tributed in the second cycle. At the beginning of the first

funding cycle, after the applications were graded and received



composite scores, all the applications, including those not "~
attaining a minimum quality and composite score, were placed in
rank order according to the composite score by the Project
Officer, and were sent to the Regional Commissioner for review.
The Regional Commissioner then made a recommendation to the
Office of Education in Washington on every application. The
Office of Education reviewed them and issued a decision memoran-
dum to the Regional Director as to which projects would be funded
in the first cycle. The applications were funded in rank order,
provided the applicant had met the minimum score requirements.
Funding proceeded down the list in order of rank until the point
was reached where the amount requested by the school district
next in line exceeded the amount of funds remaining in the first
cycle. Those applicants for which only partial funding was
available were not immediately funded. However, subsequently,

in the "mini" resubmit cycle utilized in E.S.A.A. I and 11,

these schools were allowed to resubmit their applications

revised downward to the amount of funds remaining in the first
cycle, so long as the amount remaining was 75 percent of the
amount initially applied for. After this "mini® cycle, applicants
who ranked below the schools funded and also those who had not
met the minimum quality points requirements, were allowed to
amend their applications and resubmit them for the second cycle.
All of these applications were then re-evaluated and again

ranked according to score. Thereafter the funds were distributed
according to rank until the fund was exhausted.

Certain states fulfilled all of their requirements in the
first funding cycle and had no need for the remaining funds.
These funds were, therefore,- granted to other states and dis-
tributed in a reallocation cycle to school districts which had
received only partial funding, pursuant to the "75 percent rule",
in order to fund them 100 percent.

The distribution of the grants pursuant to this procedure



of providing a first cycle, a "mini" resubmit cycle, a second .

cycle, and a reallocation cycle took from four to six months.

E.S.A.A. III

The procedures were modified somewhat in the E.S.A.A.
III funding program as a result of the limited time available
in which to disburse the funds. In the Congressional appro-
priation bill for fiscal year 1975, there was no money appro-
priated for Emergency School Aid. Thereafter; the supplemental
appropriation bill was passed and again no money was appro-
priated for E.S.A. In April, 1975, in a supplemental supple-
mental bill, the House appropriated $75,000,000.00 for E.S.A.
and the Senate appropriated $236,000,000.00 and this went to
the conference committee. Although the Office of Education did
not know what the final budget would be, the Department made
a decision in April to proceed to take applications, because
it knew the authority of the continuing resolution ended on
June 30, 1975, and any money not obligated on June 30 would
return to the treasury. The Department also knew it took a
school district at least thirty days to prepare an application.
Therefore, it published notice on April 11, 1975, that the
deadline for receipt of applications for E.S.A. would be May
23, 1975. On May 23, several applicants arrived at the Regionai
Office hand-carrying their applications between five and thirty
minutes late. When this was brought to the attention of the
Commissioner of Education in Washington, a decision was made
to extend the deadline to June 2, 1975. (It does not appear
that any of the Oklahoma school districts filed applications
after May 23, 1975.) -

Because of the limited time available to disburse the
anticipated funds, several procedural changes were made from

those implemented in E.S.A.A. I and II. First, the requirement



for a presite grant review by the Program Officer to verify
information and ensure the school district's management capa-
bility was eliminated. Also, the time allocated for the Reg-
ional Director to review the applications was reduced from
thirty days to five days. The time'given state departments
of education to respond to applicaﬁidns was likewise reduced
to five days.

Due to the limited time available, it was also determined
that the "mini" resubmit cycle utilized in E.S.A.A. I and II,
whereby a school district could revise its application downward
to the amount of funds available at the end of the first cycle
as long as the amount was 75 percent of that originally requested
was eliminated. Further, because of the limited time and the
elimination of the resubmit cycle, the determination was also
made to allocate more money to the first cycle, so that the
school districts would have a larger fund for which to compete
initially. Therefore, 80 percent of the anticipated funds were
allocated to the first cycle, and 20 percent to the second cycle.

In the first cycle of E.S.A.A. III, the applications were
ranked as they had been in E.S.A.A. I and II. The funds were
disbursed according to this ranking, until insufficient funds
remained in that cycle to fully fund the next-ranking applicant.
No applicants were partially funded and any application which
could not be totally funded was placed in fiscal hold. A
school district whose request could not be fully funded was
notified by telephone that it was in fiscal hold and that its
application would be reconsidered in the second cycle. Such an
applicant could either amend its application or "stand" on its
original application. Allvapplications were then again ranked
for the second cycle, and the funds were disbursed according
to rank until the funds were exhausted.

The plaintiff, Independent School District Number One of

Tulsa County, Oklahoma, received funding under E.S.A.A. I of



i @pproximately $724,000.00... Tulsa received-approximately... . -ww oo

.

“directly affected by the desegregation of the schools.

$595,000.00 under E.S.A.A. II. With these funds, the Tulsa .
School District implemented programs designed to provide assis-
tance to children who were impacted by the integration program
in the area of cognitive skills and also to provide beneficial
approaches to these skills through counseling, human relations
services and assistance to parents and students who would be

In 1975, $1,262,080.00 was apportiéned to Oklahoma for
E.S.A.A. IIT basic grants. Pursuant to the reservation of
funds requirement, 20 percent of that amount, $252,416.00 was
reserved for the second funding cycle, leaving $1,009,664.00
available for funding in the first cycle. Tulsa received a
composite score of 68-1/4 in the first cycle. Four school
districts ranked above Tulsa on the first cycle and received
granté totalling $331,845.00 leaving a balance of $677,819.00.
Tulsa's request as revised was $782,425.00, or $104,606.00 more
than the amount remaining at the end of the first cycle. Tulsa
was therefore notified that its application had been placed in
fiscal hold and that it could amend its application by a specific
date, if it wished, to attempt to increase its quality score
for the second funding cycle.

When the point was reached in the first funding cycle
where the funds remaining were not sufficient to fully fund
Tulsa, the remaining $677,819.00 was placed with the $252,416.00
previously reserved under the 20 percent reservation of funds
regulation. In addition, funds in the amount of $178,002.00
acquired in reallocation from other states which had fulfilled
all their requirements in the first funding cycle and had no
need for the remaining funds were added to Oklahoma's allocation.
Therefore, the total funds available for the second cycle in
Oklahoma for E.S.A.A. III were $1,108,237.00.

In the first cycle, the Oklahoma City School District

-8-
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application achleved a comp051te score of.70~-1/2 points. It...
failed, however, to attain a minimum quality score, and therefore
did not qualify for funding in the first cycle. Oklahoma City,
as well as eleven other districts which did not qualify in their
first submissions, was informed that it was required to amend
and resubmit its application in order to attain the minimum
score required in order to be ranked for the second funding
cycle. |

Oklahoma City did amend and resubmit its‘application: Tulsa
did not amend and relied on its original application. The pro-
cess of ranking the school districts was again carried out for
the second funding cycle. In the second funding cycle, Oklahoma
City ranked first with 91-1/2 composite points; the Porter School
District ranked second with 71-1/2 composite points; and Tulsa
ranked third with 68~1/4 points. Based upon this ranking,
Oklahoma City was awarded $1,066,045.00 and Porter received the

remaining funds of $32,192.00.

ISSUES OF LAW

Were Actions Contrary to Regulations

In its Motion for Summary Judgment, plaintiff first contends
that the failure of the defendant to grant plaintiff the funds
remaining in the first funding cycle was contrary to 45 C.F.R.

§ 185.14(c)(2). This regulation states in pertinent part:

"In applying the criterion set out in this
subparagraph, the Assistant Secretary shall
award funds to applicants from a State (whose
applications meet such requirements and are
of sufficient promise to warrant approval)

in the order of their ranking on the basis

of the criteria set out in this section

until the sums allotted to such State for

the purposes of thlS subpart have been ex-
hausted."

As stated, in the first funding cycle, after the funds were
awarded in order of ranking to the top four school districts,
$677,819.00 remained. Tulsa's request as revised was $782,425.00.

Tulsa contends tha; it should have been allowed to resubmit, as



_it had done in previous years, to seek the $677,819.00 pur-
suant to the 75 percent rule; and furthervthatﬁthe*regulationv*
required that the funds in the first funding cycle should have
been exhausted.

As stated, in E.S.A.A. I and II the Office of Education
provided for a "mini" resubmit cycle for those applicants who
could only be partially funded in the first funding cycle, but
the exhaustion of the remaining funds in the first fundinq
cycle by partially funding the next-ranked school district was
not automatic. In determining whether a school district should
be partially funded, the Office of Education had to examine the
resubmitted request to determine whether the applicant could
effectively carry out its programs with the remaining funds.
This was the basis for the decision in E.S.A.A. I and II that
no applicant would be partially funded if the remaining funds
were not at least 75 percent of the amount originally requested.

Title 20 U.S.C. § 1609 provides that one of the criteria
for approval of applications is "the degree to which the program,
project, or activity to be assisted affords promise of aghieving
the purpose of this chapter."” Similarly, 45 C.F.R. § 185.14(c) (2)
provides that the Assistant Secretary is not required to approve
any épplication that does not meet the requirements of the Act
or which sets forth a program, project or activity of such in-
sufficient promise for achieving the purposes of the Act that
its approval is not warranted. This requirement that the appli-
cant show that it is able to carry out an effective program with
the funds awarded, militates against a finding that the regula-
tion, 45 C.F.R. 185.14(c) (2) should be held to require that the
funds remaining in the firs? funding cycle should be exhausted.

As stated, Title 45 C.F.R. 185.21(c) (2) requires that the
funds appropriated by Congress be awarded to applicants until
the sums have been exhausted.  For this reason, at the conclusion

of the second funding cycle, the Porter school district was
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awarded the balance of the funds remaining, even though it was

»~ thereby-only partially funded. While-~suchspartial funding must = =

occur at the conclusion of all funding in order to exhaust the
appropriated funds in accordance with 45 C.F.R. 185.21(c) (2),
such partial funding of a school district regardless of whether
it can carry out an effective program should be limited to

the conclusion of the program and not be required at the end of
the first cycle.

Clearly the regulation does not require that all the funds
available be exhausted in one funding cycle, because of the
following provisions of 20 U.S.C. § 16009:

"The Assistant Secretary shall not finally
disapprove in whole or in part any applica-
tion for funds submitted by a local educa-
tional agency without first notifying the
local educational agency of the specific
reasons for his disapproval and without
affording the agency an appropriate oppor-
tunity to modify its application."

An examination of the statutes and of the regulations
indicates, therefore, that the Assistant Secretary was required
to withhold a portion of the appropriation in order to afford
an opportunity to a school district to modify its application.
Further, the Assistant Secretary could not properly grant funds
unless the school district could carry out an effective program,
except that at the conclusion of the distribution of the appro-
priation, the funds appropriated had to be exhausted. Therefore,
it is the determination of the Court that defendant's failure to
exhaust the funds available in the first funding cycle was

not contrary to statutory provisions or the regulations promul-

gated thereunder.

Were Actions Arbitrary and Capricious

Title 5 U.S.C. § 706 provides that a reviewing court shall
hold unlawful and set aside agency action found to be arbitrary,
capricious, an abuse of discretion, or otherwise not in accordance

with law. In applying this statute, the court in Sabin v. Butz,

i
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515 F.2d 1061 (1l0th Cir. 1975) stated:

"Review under this provision of,the A.P.A.. ..
provokes inquiry whether the administrative
decisions were based on a consideration of
all the relevant factors and whether there
was a clear error of judgment. Although
this inquiry into the facts is to be search-
ing and careful, the ultimate standard of
review is a narrow one. The court is not
empowered to substitute its judgment for
that of the agency. The court's function
is exhausted where a rational basis is

- found for the agency action taken."
(cites omitted)

See also Glass v. United States, 506 F.2d 379 (10th Cir. 1974).

As stated in Mourning v. Family Publications Service, Inc., 411

U.S. 356, 93 s.Ct. 1652, 36 L.Ed. 24 318 (1973):

"That some other remedial provision might

be preferable is irrelevant. We have

consistently held that where reasonable

minds may differ as to which of.several

remedial measures should be chosen, courts

should defer to the informed experience

and judgment of the agency to whom Congress

delegated appropriate authority."
Therefore, while this Court may feel that the agency might have
adopted a more equitable procedure, the only determination to be
made by this Court is whether there was a rational basis for
the agency's actions.

The evidence clearly shows that due to the conduct of
Congress, defendant reasonably anticipated that only a very
limited amount of time would be available in which to distribute
an appropriation, if passed by Congress. Faced with the apparent
deadline of June 30, 1975, the agency determined that the pro-
cedures followed in E.S.A.A. I and II had to be modified. The
decision was therefore made to eliminate, among other procedures,
the "mini-resubmit" cycle. At the same time, and because of the
elimination of the resubmit cycle and the time limitation, the
agency decided to allocate 80 percent to the first funding cycle
rather than the 66-2/3 percent which was allocated in E.S.A.A.

I and II. The Court finds there was a rational basis for the

procedural changes adopted by the agency in light of the factual

situation. Further, the Court notes that had the procedures
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utilized in E.S.A.A. I and II been adopted for E.S.A.A. III,
the plaintiff would not have been funded.. If 66-2/3 percent ..
had been allocated to the first funding cycle épproximately
$832,972.00 would have been made available. As stated, four
school districts ranked above Tulsa in the first cycle and they
were awarded grants totalling $331,845.00, leaving a balance
remaining of approximately $501,127.00. The revised request of
Tulsa was-$782,425.00. Tulsavwould not have received funding,
therefore, because the amount remaining would not have beeg 75
percent of the amount requested.

Plaintiff discusses at some length the telephone conversa-
tion of June 5, 1975, between Edward Kelson, the Equal Educational
Opportunity Program Officer, and Roger Eugene Kruse, Director of
Federal Programs for the Tulsa Public Schools. Plaintiff contends
that in this conversation Mr. Kruse was only told to reduce Tulsa's
overall request, taking into consideration the exceptions that
the Regional Office had made to the original application. ’Ih
response to this request, Tulsa did submit a modified or amended
narrative and budget reducing the original request from $850,000.00
to $781,000.00. Mr. Kelson testified, however, that when he
called Mr. Kruse, he informed Mr. Kruse that the Tulsa application
had been placed in fiscal hold and that Tulsa had an opportunity
to resubmit an amended application fof the second funding cycle
if it so desired, and also that Tulsa should submit the revised
budget. Mr. Kelson testified further that he informed Mr. Kruse
that the deadline for resubmitting an amended application for
the second funding cycle was June 16, 1975, at 4:30 p.m.

Based upon the testimony‘and the evidence submitted by both
. parties in regard to the conversation, the Court finds that Mr.
Kruse was informed of fhe fact that the Tulsa application was
placed in fiscal hold and that Tulsa had the option of amending
its application. Furthermore, even if Mr. Kruse had not been

so informed, no evidence was presented to indicate that if
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.. Tulsa-had: amended its application.itscould have:increased its. u:iews vrm:

quality points above the 91-1/2 composite score of Oklahoma City.

PUBLIC POLICY CONSIDERATIONS

The Tulsa School District undoubtedly has done a fine job
in utilizing the funds provided by fhe E.S.A.A. I and II programs.
As pointed out by the amicus curiae brief filed by The League of
Women Voﬁers of Tulsa; Inc., the Tulsa School District established
several highly successful programs to meet the needs of the school
children in this area in overcoming educationél disadvantages and
minority grouphisolation. Unfortunately, many of these beneficial
projects cannot be continued without E.S.A.A. III funds. The
Court also, however, recognizes that the funds in controversy are
meeting similar needs in the Oklahoma City School District. That
district has also, no doubt, implemented programs to meet the
special needs incident to the elimination of minority group seg-

regation and discrimination.

The parties having presented all the evidence in this
matter and the case having been submitted for final determina-
tion by the Court upon the pleadings, briefs filed herein, and
the evidence presented at the hearing held January 16, 1976, itf,
is the determination of the Court that the procedures established
by the defendant were neither contrarv to the regulations nor
arbitrary and capricious. Plaintiff's Motion for Summary Judgment

is therefore overruled. Defendant's Motion to Dismiss is hereby

sustained.

It is so Ordered this /’Z = day of March, 1976.

H. DALE "COOK
United States District Judge
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA Jack c deer Clerk
1] ] '

~ U. S. DISTRICT CotteT

NO. 75—C-406/

MARK H. SCHNEIDER, : )
Petitioner, )
vs. )
)
RICHARD CRISP, Warden, et al., )
‘ Respondents. )
ORDER
The Court has for consideration a pro se, in forma pauperis, pro-
ceeding brought pursuant to the provisions of 28 U.S.C. § 2254 by a
State prisoner confined in the Oklahoma State Penitentiary, McAlester,
Oklahoma. Petitioner attacks the validity of the judgment and sentence
imposed by the District Court of Pawnee County, Oklahoma, in Case No.
CRF-71-30. After a plea of not guilty to the charge of attempted rape,
the petitioner was tried by a jury and upon a finding of guilty of the

lesser included offense of assault with intent to commit a felony, he

was, on the 6th day of December, 1972, sentenced to three years confine-

ment and directed to pay a fine of $500.00.

Petitioner sought post-conviction relief of said judgment and sen-
tence and on the 1l6th day of September, 1974, the District Court of

Pawnee County, Oklahoma, entered its Order denying the requested relief.

- An appeal was perfected and on the 15th day of July, 1975, the Court of

Criminal Appeals of the State of Oklahoma rendered its opinion affirming

the judgment and sentence of the District Court of Pawnee County, Oklahoma.

Schneider v. State, Okl. Cr., 538 P.2d 1088 (1975). Petitioner subse-

quently filed a petition for rehearing and on the 8th day of August, 1975,
the Court of Criminal Appeals of the State of Oklahoma entered its Order

denying said petition for rehearing. Petitioner alleges that he has ex-

hausted all remedies available to him in the Courts of the State of Okla-
homa.

Petitioner demands his release from custody and as grounds therefor
alleges that he is_deprived of his rights under the Constitution of the
United States of America. In particular, petitioner alleges:

l. That he was denied a speedy trial;

2. That the instructions by the trial Court were improper
and prejudicial; and

3. That improper statements were made by the prosecuting
attorney at the time of trial.
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Petitioner in his first allegation states that he was denied a
"speedy trial" in violation of his rights .under the Sixth Amendment to
the Constitution of the United States of America. This allegation is
not supported by the record. A careful review of the record reveals
that petitioner was arrested on the 25th day of July, 1971, and was
subsequently brought to trial on the 4th day of December, 1972, ap-
proximately 20 months later. The question of whether the petitioner
has been afforded his constitutional right to a speedy trial requires
consideration of the various related and relevant facts. .

In the case of Barker v. Wingo, 407 U. S. 514, 92 s.Ct. 2182, 33

L.E4d.2d4 101 (1972), the Supreme Court of the United States of America
in addressing itself to the issue of "Speedy Trial" stated at page 530:

"The approach which we accept is a balancing test,
in which the conduct of both the prosecution and
defendant are weighed . . ."

"A balancing test necessarily compels courts to
approach speedy trial cases on an ad hoc basis.

We can do little more than identify some of the
factors . . . Length of delay, the reason for the
delay, the defendant's assertion of his rlght, and
the prejudice to the defendant.™

~Continuing at page 533, the Court states:
"We regard none of the four factors identified
above [length of delay, reason for delay, de-
fendant's assertion of his right, and prejudice
to the defendant] as either a necessary or suf-
ficient condition to the finding of a deprivation
of the right of speedy trial. Rather, they are
related factors and must be considered together
with such other circumstances as may be relevant.
In sum, these factors have no talismanic qualities;
courts must still engage in a difficult and sensi-
tive balancing process. But, because we are deal-
ing with a fundamental right of the accused, this
process must be carried out with full recognition
that the accused's interest in a speedy trial is
specifically affirmed in the Constitution."

In light of this authority and under the circumstances of this case,
the record conclusively shows that petitioner was provided with as expe-
ditious a trial as possible. A careful review of the record in this case
reflects that during the 20 month interim period, the petitioner changed
attorneys three times, appeared in two preliminary hearings, and was
~granted three jury docket changes at his request over the objection of
the State. The record also establishes that at no time did petitioner in-
_terpose a demand for speedy trial and further shows that petitioner was
free on bond for the majority of the time prior to trial. The record re-
flects that petitioner was not deprived of his constitutional right to a

speedy trial and has in effect waived this right by his own actions.

~



Petitioner's second allegation is that he was denied due process
of law as guaranteed by the Constitution of the United States of America
in that the trial Court's instructions were inadequate. This claim is
based on the fact that the trial Court instructed on the crime of at-
tempted rape, assault with intent to commit a felony, and assault and
battery, as lesser included offenses. It appears from the record that
petitioner may not have exhausted his State remedies as to the specific
basis asserted here regarding the trial Court's instructions, however,
he did presentvobjections té instructions to the State appellate Court,
and this Court has before it the complete transcript and instructions,
.and giving the petition the broad interpretation required, the Court
finds that the issue should be treated herein. Collateral relief is not
available to set aside a conviction on the basis of erroneous jury in-
structions unless the error had such an effect on the trial as to render
it so fundamentally unfair that it constitutes a denial of a fair trial

in a constitutional sense. Lorraine v. United States, 444 F.2d 1 (10th

Cir. 1971). This Court perceives no such infirmity in this case. It is

clear that the giving of said instruction is authorized by the law of the

,Staté of Oklahoma. Woodruff v. State, Okl. Cr., 125 P.2d 211 (1942).
The record in this case reflects that petitioher'é claim relatinq to the
instructions of the trial Court fails to raise an issue of constitutional
amagnitude.
Petitioner in his third allegation asserts that his constitutional
right of Due Process as guaranteed by the Constitution of the United
~States of America was denied when the prosecuting attorney commented on
his failure to produce certain witnesses. Also, petitioner asserts that
improper questions directed toward him during cross—-examination, regarding
his pre-trial silence, violated his constitutional right to remain silen£.
The record discloses that the acts by the prosecuting attorney com-
plained of were comprised of questions asked of the petitioner on cross-
examination. The questioné asked were properly objected to by petitioner's
attorney ‘and said objections were sustained by the Court, and no answers
were given. Other than the testimony as shown at pages 164-65 and at 196
of the transcript of the trial proceedings, the record is silent as to
petitioner's allegation; The Court is of the belief, considering the

record in this case in its entirety, with the overwhelming sufficiency
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of evidence to support the verdict, that the questions asked were harm-
less beyond a reasonable doubt in the circumstances of this trial and

did not constitute constitutional error. See, Chapman v. State of Cal-

ifornia, 386 U. S. 18, 24, 87 S.Ct. 824, 17 L.Ed.2d 705 (1967).
Moreéver, where a State Supreme Court fully and adequately con-

sidered a State prisoner's Federal claims on appeal and in post-con-

viction proceedings, no further evidentiary hearing is necessary in

Federal habeas corpus proceedings. Dhaemers v. State of Minnesota,

456 F.2d 1291 (8th Cir. 1972). The Oklahoma Court of Criminal Appeals
has fully, adequately, and accurately considered petitioner's proposi-
tions and Federal claims, and the record reveals that no further evi-
dentiary hearing in this matter is necessary and that petitioner is not

entitled to relief. Putnam v. United States, 337 F.2d 313 (1l0th Cir.

1964); Maxwell v. Turner, 411 F.2d 805 (10th Cir. 1969); Cranford v.

Rodriguez, 512 F.2d 860 (l0th Cir. 1975).

IT IS, THEREFORE, ORDERED that the petition for writ of habeas
corpus of Mark H. Schneider be and it is hereby denied and the case is
dismissed.

4
Dated this Zg%é’day of March, 1976, at Tulsa, Oklahoma.

CHIEF JUDGE, UNITED STATES DISTRICT
COURT FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF
OKLAHOMA
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA

BERKEY COLORTRAN, INC.,

)
Plaintiff, )
v ; NUMBER: 75-c-410-C-
WALTER S. BREWER, Et al, ;
Defendants. )
FILEZLD
NOTICE OF DISMISSAL BY PLAINTIFF ]
MAR 17 188 7t
TO: Gene P. Dennison Jack C. Silver, Clefk? v
and 1. S. DISTRICT CO!'°]

Robert M. Butler,
ATTORNEYS FOR DEFENDANTS

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the Plaintiff discontinues

the above-entitled action and dismisses the Complaint without
prejudice.

DATED this lfﬂay day of March 1976.

msll

w L

Jaﬁés R. Head
ATIORNEY FOR PLAINTIFF
212 Beacon Building,
Tulsa, Oklahoma 74103
( ) 584-4187

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

THIS WILL CERTIFY that, on the lfffk day of March
1976, the undersigned mailed a true and correct copy of the
foregoing NOTICE OF DISMISSAL BY PLAINTIFF to GENE P. DENNISON
and ROBERT M. BUTLER, 124 South Denver, Tulsa, Oklahoma 74103,
Attorneys for Defendants, and to WARREN M. McCONNICO, 4815
South Harvard, Suite 350, Tulsa, Oklahoma 74135, Attorney for
Trustee-in-Bankruptcy, and to DON B. FINKELSTEIN, 700 South
Flower Street, Suite 508; Los Angeles, California 90017,and

GERALD TARLOW, Tarlow and Tarlow, 3812 Sepulveda Boulevard,

Suite 400, Torrance, California 90505.

e (| Heal)

Jamés R. Head
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE 1IAR 17130
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA .
Jack C. Silver, Clerk

- EUGENE ANTHONY NOLAN ‘_ T I
- Petitioner, |))[2 e U S: DISTRICT COI*T
VSe. if\l()\.,,/ Sy § 9T M g Lok
'UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, ) MR 1g 1976 ,;
: Respondent. ) , ¢
L) ! :
ORDER U. S. ATTCRNEY e

This Court has herein for consideration a motion pursuant to 28 U.S.C.
§ 2255 of Eugene A. Nolan falling pursuant to regular case assignment to

~me, Allen E. Barrow, Chief Judge, United States District Court for the
“Northern District of Oklahoma. | ’

Respondent has filed a motion for :eassignment to the Honorable Fred
;Déugherty on grounds that the § 2255 motion is based on conviction by jﬁry
-of Eugene A. Nolan in criminal Case No. 14,406 prosecuted in 1966 and 1967
in this Northern District of Oklahoma in which Judge Daugherty was the
trial and sentencing Judge. .

Petitioner responds requesting Government's motion for teassignment
be denied on grounds that this § 2255 proceeding is a new civil case and
-assignment in the sentencing District is principally a matter of logistics,
in which the Chief Judge has the duty and responsibility for case assign-
ments.

It is my clear recollection that, at and near January 8, 1975, the
time of the’robing of the Honorable H. ﬁale Cook, the new resident Judge
in this Northern District of Oklahoma, Judge Daugherty most explicitly
and emphatically stated that he would no longer accept any civil cases
in this District and would promptly transfer a number of cases then pend-
ing and assigned to him to Judge Cook.

I am informed by the Court Clerk that this § 2255 proceeding under
consideration was originally filed in the criminal case, CR 14,406, and
that it was correctly returned by Judge Daugherty with the instruction
to counsel that it be filed as a civil action. It was so filed as this
Case No. 75-C-247 and it fell to me. I am told by the Court Clerk, Jack
Silver, that he was phoned by Judge Daugherty who stated that he would ac-
cept the assignment of the civil action. I informed Mr. Silver that there
was undoubtedly some misunderstanding and to ask Judge Daugherty to phone
me, as we had signed an Order stating that he should receive no case as-

signments after January, 1975, from this District, and I could not believe
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that he had askedifor a specific case. My purpose was to make sure of
his wishes so_thaﬁ if he wished to take the § 2255 motions filed in his
cases, we coﬁld éhange the assignment Order. To date Judge Daugherty

has not called regarding this subject. Although I have every confidence
in Judge Daugherty's motives, under such circumstances, the propriety of
assigning this case to him, since he asked for it, could be questioned,
even though it has been the usual procedufe that the trial and sentencing
Judge handle § 2255 motioné in a case he tried. However, as provided by
our Local Court Rules, that is to be done "if possible" and it is not a
mandatory procedure, particularly where an assignment Order signed by all
the Judges of this District agreed that he should have no further assign-
héﬁté;'fggé,‘Attachment I. The Judges have taken all precautions to pre-
veﬁt attorneys from "Judge shopping" and we can do no less for "case .
shopping”.

Further, it was the procedure in 1966 and has been since, until Jan-
uary 8, 1975, that I, as Chief Judge, impanel all grand juries and re-
ceive their reports. Judges Bohanon and Daugherty assisted with the crim-
inal trials, but pleas, and pre-trial motions, were handled by me prior to

turning some cases over for trial only by Judges Bohanon or Daugherty.*

In the criminal Case No. 14,460, challenged by Eugene A. Nolan, I
.find from personal recollection that I spent equally as much time, if not
more, én this proceeding than did Judge Daugherty, which is supported by a
review of the criminal file as follows:

1. On September 14, 1966, the grand jury reported the indictment
filed against Leroy Dale Hines and Eugene Anthony Nolan, and bail was set
at $15,000 eéch defendant by Judge Barrow.

2. On September 15, 1966, Defendant Hines was permitted to transfer
$15,000 surety bond posted before the Commissioner to bond in this Cr.
14,406 by Judge Barrow. |

3. On September 19, 1966, Defendant Nolan filed bond.

4. On September 27, 1966, Defendant Hines was arraigned and granted

’és:days to file motions by Judge Barrow. |

5. bn October 11, 1966, Defendant Nolan was arrai§ned, pled not

guilty to Counts 1 and 2; and he was granted 60 days to file motions by

Judge Barrow.
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6. On April 19, 1967, hearing was held and defendants' motions to
adopt were sustained; defendants' motions for an Order staying all pro-
«ceedings -and for continuance were overruled by Judge Barrow.

7. On April 20, 1967, hearing was held and defendants' motions for
discovery and inspection were held moot; defendants' motions to suppress
were sustained as to all evidence except tapes legally obtained by the
Telephone Company. Defendant Hines motion for relief from misjoinder
.and/or prejudicial joinder of offenses was overruled. Defendant Nolan's

~motion for severance as to Counts 3, 4, 5 and 6 was overruled, and his
motion for severance for trial was overruled. Defendants' motions to
-recuse were overruled, all by Judge Barrow.

8. On April 24, 1967, an evidentiary hearing was held on motions
4£0 quash indictment by Judge Barrow.

9. On April 27, 1967, the continuation of the evidentiary hearing
on defendants' motions to quash indictment and to strike venire and en-
tire jury list was held and overruled. Defendants' motions to suppress
-«evidence as to telephone tapes were overruled, and the defendants were
permitted to listen to the tapes in the custody of the Court Clerk with
presence of'coﬁnsel or their agents under protective Order of the Court.
Defendants were also permitted to make copies of the telephone tapes.
All by Judge Barrow. This was the firs; time since 1929 that hearings
_bf this length had been required on criminal pre-trial- motions.

10. On May 3, 1967, the Court's Order.was entered that various and
,séveral motions filed by defendants be sustained in part and overruled
in part, and the cause was set for jury trial on Monday, May 22, 1967, at
9:30 a.m. by Judge Barrow.

1l1. On May 10, 1967, a further hearing was held on motions,‘and de-
fendants supplemental motion for discovery and inspection and to suppress,
were overruled. Defendants' motions for enlargement of the protective
Order relating to joint exhibits Nos. 6 through 40, inclusive, were over-
ruled by Judge Barrow.

12. On May 19, 1967, Defendant Leroy Dale Hines withdrew his plea
of not guilty and entered plea of nolo contendere to Counts 3 and 5 of
the indictment. The Government's objection to the nolo contendere plea

was overruled, and Defendant Hines' nolo contendere plea to Counts 3 and
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5 was accepted. Defendant Nolan reinstated his motion for severance
which the Court sustained, and Counts 1 and 2 of the indictment were
..severed from.Counts -3; 4,.5 and.G,ﬂand thewdefendantsuwere’severeﬁ%foﬁaﬂﬁa
trial. These severance motions were reinstated with the agreement of
the Government. The jury trial of Eugene A. Nolan waé set for Wednesday,
May 22, 1967, at 9:30 a.m. The sentence of Leroy Dale Hines was passed
to Wednesday, June 7, 1967, at 10:00 a.m. All by Judge Barrow. Mandamus
was filed attempting to stop the trial, but the Tenth Circuit Court of
Appeals through the late Honorable Orie L. Phillips refused and the case
continued. | 4 |

13. At this stage of the procéedings, the trial of Eugene A. Nolan,
by agreement with Judge Daugherty, was assigned to him.* On May 24, 1967,
Judge Daugherty overruled Defendant Nolan's motion to dismiss and to quash,
and jury trial was commenced and held on May 24, 25, 26 and 27, 1967, with
a verdict of guilty returned on Counts 1 and 2 of the indictment.

14. On June 7, 1967, Defendant Leroy Dale Hines appeared before
-Judge Barrow for sentence and the Government requested that Counts 1, 2,
4 and 6 be non-prossed as to Defendant Hines. The Court accepted the
Government's recommendation, and dismissed Counts 1, 2, 4 and 6 as to De-
fendant Hines. After Edward T. Joyce, Assistant Attorney General of the
Department of Justice, Washington, D. C., a member of the Organized Crime
Task Force; stated to the Court that Defendant Hines was'ndt a part of
organized crime as they contended with respect to Defendant Noian, the
Court placed Defendant Hines on three years probétion on Count 3, with
the condition that he not associate with any known members of organized

crime, and on Count 5 a ‘$10,000.00 fine was imposed, and it was made a

condition of probation on Count 3 that the fine be paid within the period
~of one year. All by Judge Barrow. See, Attachment II.

15. On June 28, 1967, Judge Daugherty overruled the motion of Eugene
A. Nolan for new trial and sentenced him to, on Count One, four years im-
prisonment and a fine of”$10,006.00, and on Count Two, four years imprison:
ment and a fine of $10,000.00, consecutive to the sentence in Count One.
Defendant Nolan was granted 60 days to pay the fines. The sentence was
Ordered consecutive to the sentence imposed in the United States District

Court, Southern District of Texas, or any other Court. Defendant Nolan
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was advised of his right to appeal and his appeal bond was fixed at
$15,000.00 cash or surety.
- 16. dn Novémbér 2, 1970, the ﬁandate'of the Tenth Ciréﬁit ééuréfofk:
Appeals was issued affirming the conviction of Eugene A. Nolan. When
Certiorari was denied by the Supreme Court of the United States, the de-
fendant was directed to report to the United States Marshal within ten
days. On November 16, 1970, defendant failed to appear and arrest war-
rant was issued by Judge Daugherty. Defendant Nolan's bond was forfeited
by Order of the Court dated December 15, 1970. .

17. Defendant Nolan was picked up in 1974, and pled guilty to the
bond jumping indictment’returned by a grand jury reporting to Judge
Barrow. In this separate case, No. 71-CR-21, handled by Judge Barrow,
Defendant Nolan was sentenced to 36 months, six mohths in a jail-type
institution, and the remainder of the sentence suspended and the defendant
placed on probation for 30 months. It was a condition of probation that
defendant repay the Ajax Bonding Company for their loss by bond forfei-
ture when defendant failed to appear in CR 14,406.

18. Defendant Nolan was delivered to the United States Penitentiary,
Leavenworth, Kansas, on April 16, 1974, to start service of his sentence
in CR 14,406, and this case was closed.

It has seemed provident to set forth the chain of pertinent events
herein because there haye been newspaper articles in regard to these pro-
ceedings asserting "behind-the-scenes" controversy; a "disparity in even-
handed justice" for Nolan and a co~defendant, Leroy Dale Hines; and in
which the reporter purportedly quoted "court sources", "all court sources",
and "one high-level federal source". Under such circumstances it is
proper to set out the record and let it speak for itself proving that
these proceedings were handled in the commonplace, customary, ordinary
and usual procedure, and that they are in no way suspect. It is indeed
unfortunate when the work of the_Court‘is presented to the public infer-
entially and inaccurately, buttressed by purported quotations of phantom
®court sources." It seems that we have never had so great a need for a
competent, responsible press, and yet we are so often informed by the
sensationalism of a headline seeking ambition rather than fact. Never-

theless, the Court can rely on its record, and conduct its duties and
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responsibilities undaunted by the contumacy and aspersions of ill-
informed cfitics.
-~~~ The-Court finds that both Judge Barrow and Judge Daugherty ‘are -
thoroughly familiar with the criminal proceedings in Case No. 14,406
that the full and complete record and transcripts of the proceedings
are available and before the Court, and either Judge may competently
handle the § 2255 motion under consideration herein. Since Judge
- Daugherty is accepting no qivil assignments from this District, the
motion for reéssignment should be overruled.

IT IS, THEREFORE, ORDERED that the motion for‘reassignmené of this
cause be and it is hereby overruled.

Dated this /& 43ay of March, 1976, at Tulsa, Oklahoma.

5 . . - CHIEF JUDGE, UNITED STATES DISTRICT
- ' COURT FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF

OKLAHOMA '

*See, Attachment III.
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA

IT IS ORDERED THAT: ; o M-128
The civil cases shall be divided as follows:
Judge Barrow

Judge Cook

The Clerk will assign such civil cases when filed in the
~above numerical'sequenée and follow such sequencé in rotéﬁiénQ A
Judge desiring to transfer a case assigned to him, for any reason
including companion cases, will effect-the transfer with the Judge
to recelve the case. The Clerk will furnish éach Judge shortly
after the first of each mbnth a list of the cases assigned during
the previous month. This gssignmeht procedure will be kept
confidential. o

The criminal and bankruptcy business shall be handled as

follows:

- ‘ asi
To the extent that it 1s possible, Judge Cook will carry ZESE

¢4u4&6&»050(:zgaﬂ0°w4(

of the bankruptcy cases and @ out of @ of the grand Juries,‘ arraignments

AL O ‘
,far the convenience of each JudgeYmay be made with mutual agreement

between Judge Barrow and Judge Cook, to meet any emergency or to
avoid any inconvenience.

'Dated and effective this 8th day of January, 1975.

Honorable Allen E. Barrow
Chiiﬂ Judge U. S. District Court

/’1'»“ '-DC’«L«’ fZ /‘L%

'Honorable Fred Daughérty

Judge U._S. District Court
“~u}\14( 412_A2?46¢/1¢ﬂ7££;///

Honorable H. Dale Cook
Judge U. S. District Court

ATTACHMENT I




)

® Clenns Fres ([,,»‘

S~

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT IN AND FOR THE

, ‘ NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA tL E [ y
o ’ - My 151975 .
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, ‘ - Jack C. sitye

A f, Cler;
Plaintiff, S. D‘{STRICT Courr

-vs- | | No. 14,406"
LEROY DALE HINES,

Defendént,

REPORTER S TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS
HAD ON JUNE 7, 1967

. -«
- . SENTENCING
EFORE THE HONORABLE ALLEN E. BARROW, Judge Presiding

PEARANCES : " |
Mt;'Edward Joyce, United4States Attorney; Deéartmeht of

ustice, Washingtén, D.C., and Mr. Lawrence A. Mcébud, United

tates Attorney, Northern District of Oklahoma, appeared on

ehalf of the Plaintiff. o

MR. L.K. Smith, Atto:':x.mé}}y at Law, Tulsa, Okiahbma;

ppeared on behalf of the Defendant.

LARRY E. MARKS
UNITED STATES COURT REPOPTER
TULSA. OKLAHOMA

ATTACHMENT II
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. THE éOURT: . .1‘4061 United States of

America versus Leroy Dale Hines. ' !

»

- Mr. Smith?
‘ iMR.4SMITH: Yes, sir.’ '
THE COURT: Mr. McSoud? Mr. Joyce?

Are both of you going to participate?

MR. McSOUD: I think so, Your Honor.
THE COURT: All right.
MR. McSOUD: Is your true and correct

name Leroy Dale Hines?

- DEFENDANT HINES: Yes, sir.

MR. McSOUD: And, Mr. Hines, you are
represented by Mf. L.K. Smith, who has represented you
throughout these proceedings, is that correct?

DEFENDANT HINES: Yes, sir.

“MR;'McSOUD; | if the Court please, this
matter.is on for sentencing;»the Defendant having previously
entered pleas of guilty to Counts Three and Fivé within the
indictment. Nolo Contendere, he Plead, your Honor.

“Tﬂg COURT#I Mr. Smith was’just getting
ready to correct you. Nolo Contendere.
Then you are ready to proceed?
’ Mﬁ. SMITH: Yes, sir.
.'THE.COURT: The Government is ready to

.

pProceed?

.
oo
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. MR. McSOUD: &, sir.ﬂ !

THE COURT: ) Mr. Newt Scott, would‘you
give the presentence repor£ on Leroy Dale Hines. .
 OFFICER SCOTT:  Your Honor, Mr. Hines is
49 years old. He was born in Arkansas City, Kansas. Lived
there during his formative years. He has been in Tulsa.for
about the past 20 years.

He's a graduate of high scho§1: has about a year and
a half of college work. He's in good health. - -
’ He has been twice married; having three children by hi:
first wife. That marriage ended in divorce. He's currently
separated from his second wife.

During the past 20 years, while residing in Tulsa, he
has 6perated a number of élubs or sporting parlbts here. He
has an extensive misdemeanor arrest and ;onviction record
having to do with gambling activities in the City of Tulsa.

The details of this offense were outlined, or at least
portions of it purpbrtedly were outlined, in another trial in
this district, along with the investigative file, indicating
that Mr. Hines dealt in ihtérstate activities héving to do
with gambling. | ﬂ

Mr. Hines, in interview with Howard Scott, indicated
that he had; indeed, carried(oh the aétiﬁiﬁkes with which he
was‘charged fbr a number of years in furthering his local

-

activities, being unaware that he was violating Federal Statut

-
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}.does have some assets. ‘;has ,tlhe community
resources of having financial assets, living in an areca with
which he is familliar. | e . .

VI have got littie else'tofrepdrt ét tﬁisrtime.

I would make this addendum, Your Honor. There have
been letters mailed both to the Probation Office and the
Court's attention from responsible citizens here in Tulsa,
among them a C. Dorrough, Paul Schultz, Ray Siegfried, Tom
Graﬁt, Jr., giving character references for Mr. Hines.

I make thét as an open statement so that the Defense
counsel and prosecution both are aware that these letters
were mailed and received, and they speak iﬁ good regard for
Mr. Hines.

- THE COURT: Mr. McSoud?

MR. McSOUD: | We have nothing to add, Your
Honor. I think fhe Court is familliar with the factuai cir-
cumstances involved in the case because of the .pretrial
hearings and other métters involved. |

I don't know if Mr. bece has anything to add. Do you
Mr. Joyce? N V‘ | |

MR. JOYCE: | I have nothing to add, Your
Honor. |
THE COURT: All right. I think it would
help the Court, before I call on Mr. Smith, the Court is‘

aware of these four other counts. What is the disposition

.
Lrl
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7

MR. JOYCE: Your Honor, we would move,
now, to present the four counts after the sentencing is over.

THE COURT:  Well, I would rather that .-
be done before sentencing is over.

MR. JOYCE: | It doesn't really --

iHE COURT: ’ In other words, I want all
the information.of the Couft available, Mr. Joyce, before
I aentence in,ahe‘reégrd; up till then .-- the plea of guilty,
as.I understand, has;alfeady been accepted by the bourt,
Nolo Contendere. Now, if there are four other counts, if
that is the intent, then I want to know prior to sentencing.

' MR.‘JéYCE: Well, we will move to now

dismiss the'fourt counts.

QR. Masdﬁ@:- ) .fhose arévCoants One, Two,
Four and Six. H i | ; |

THE COURT: All right; The Court does
accept the recommendation of the District Attorneys inice

on those four counts,’and that leaves befqre this Court,

‘then, the two counts to which the Defendant has entered a

plea. |
MR. McéOUD: »Thraa‘aad five.
_THE COURT: | AThfee‘aAd five. And three
and five are "using tae mails to promote gambling,®" in Count

Three; and Count Five, "using mails between Chicago, Illincis,

.
LX3
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and Tug, Oklahoma," in Count Fi,e, and Count Three being

r

between Los Angeles and Tulsa. Right?

MR. JOYCE: "~ That's right.
i . < . 5, B .
| THE COURT: All right, Mr. Smith.
MR. SMITH: ' Well, if the Court please,

this Court is immanently aware of this case, having had the
duty to pass upon numerous motions that were filed as Pretria
Motions here; heard arguments for some week regérding the
various motions that were made; and, I might say, .that now
we-are down to the point where we have for consideration only

two counts of the indictment'that all the motions were

directed toward. These two counts, as I understand it now,

-are the only matters before Your Honor, and the only matters

for determination.

There are, naturally, tpings that can be properly said
abouﬁ a charge or a federal criminal statute at a'hearing
such as this that would noﬁ neées#é;ily 5e'feievaﬁt in the
determinatiﬁn of guilt or innocence of that same statute. I
think it is important to note this statute under which Mr.
Hiﬁes has entered his bleanof Nolo Contendere is a'statute,
without holding-me to the dates, passed éomewhere around 1961
or '62. | | . | o | |

Essentially, what he was charged with is this: He has
held a Federal Gambling Stamp, as this Court is probably

aware, for a period of time. Prior to the time the 18, U.S.C

.
,e
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1952, Jl! Passed, which is the stdtute under which he ﬁas

entered his plea here, there were times when he would order,

in the mail, a sheet of paper which had prxnted on it nothing
i

except -- and this is just a letter size sheet of paper -

which would have the names of ball teams printed on it.

Nothing more.

Now, that is the nature and_the essence of the charge
to which the plea has been made. One charge waskthat these
matters came to him through the mail from.Los Ahgélés,
Caiifornia, and another from Chicago, Illinois.

As I Say, a matter such as this, I think, is relevant
in a determination at the time of sentence. These pieces of
paper, these form sheets, what-have-you, would cost virtually
nothlng to order. They are capable of bging ordered by
anyone in this room. It}is not‘a viblation of the law, as
I understand it, for the manufactﬁrer to make and prlnt and
dlspurse these.‘ o | | ” ‘

I feel that the Court is entitled to know what kind of

thing we are talking about here. We are talking about a

transfer in the mail of:sheets upon which the names of ball

teams are printed. »That is essentiélly'what’we aie'discussing
I do not mean by this statement to 1nd1cate that Mr. Hines,
nor I, fail to recognize that under the interpretation of
other Courts of this statute, if these are used in a business

establishment in which a gambling operation is carried on,

o’
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that i ould be a violation. Ye®; it would be. And,

accordingly, we recognize that by our plea. But, it is sig-

nificant to note that we don't deal here with a situation

which connotes, to me, a lack -- lack of regard for mofal

turpitude at all. I think that we must recognize that there
are, indeed, differences in offenses. This offense would
carry the same length of time, as far as a maximum sentence,
as_yould the other four counts that have now been dismissed
this morning. . -

. I might say this. Before the péssage of this statufe,
this would not have been a violation; that which had always
been done, not only by this man, but it could have been done -
I could have‘érdered,these, others in the community do, I
understand, obtain theSe form sheets, not for use in business
establishments having to do with gambling, of course, that
being the crux of the charge. .

But, suddénly upon the passége of this.statute, this
became a violation. - it'é not a defense to the guilt or
innocence that he did not know that it waé a violation, but
it should be’an extremeiy iﬁportant,‘relevant, fgctor in.
determining what sentence should be imposed.

i'm‘éuite sure’that I can say, without any fear of
contradiction, that had Mr. Hines known that this rather

innocuous act was a violation, it most definitely would have

been discontinued. It was certainly not that important to

el
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him, in any respect.

Now, enough of that. I would like to say to the Court

.that.in the seven, eig}}t;—.ff-:nsifnewmonthsu that I have worked-with

Mr. Hines in regard to this case, I have been very impressed
and I'm very certain that I can report to the Court, as.an
officer of this Court, that Mr. Hines is a thoroughly honest
individual. I regard his integrityvextremely highly. I am
qui;e sure thaﬁ.he is not a man who would be inclined, in
any respect, to violate the &riminal law qf'the st%te or
the federal except for this one area; this area of gambling
and bookmaking. ‘He has no previous felﬁny convictions of
any sort; of any kind at al;. He has éerved hisycountry in
a very normal fashion, I think.

| He was born and raised just north. of here in Arkansas
City; attended high schdcl:-atténded college} sérved in the
armed fofces VeryAhoncrably and with declaration; and haé
not indicated, in anyway, himself tq be a criminal person,

as I think of it. The misdemeanor charges are confined soley

to gamb;ing~arrests and charges over the years. They are

ali df ﬁhat néture.
Now,-I further feel that I;can very candidly‘tell the
Court and say to the Court that I regard that which he has
here plead guilty to, and thét which he has done, as not
justifying an institutional sentence from this Courtf I do

-

not feel it is justified here. I think that this man is

.
o0
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deserving of this Court's leniency.
I have, quite candidly, informed Mr. Hines that. the

2

»géggigity which gave. rise- to-.this -charge must: be-diiscentinued:

I'm quite positive he understands it, and it shall be dis-
continued, if I am to believé him, and I do. I regard his
word as extremely good, as I say.

I think this Court ﬁould, under these facts, under
thése'circumsténces, particularly under the conclusions that
I have drawn and have made over these months, I tﬁink this
maA is deserving of this Court's leniency without the imposi-
tion of an institutional senﬁence.

I doubt that I have anything further which I could add
which would be of help to the Court. |

THE COURT: All right.
' Mr. Hines, what a&vyou have to say in your’behalf
before the Court imposes sentehce? |
DEFENDAN$‘3INES£ Nothing, sir, except I would
appreciate any lenience he Court could Qee fit to give.

- HE COURT: . Well, I have studied this.
quite thoroughly, and,gas you say, I had almost a week of
motions involving this case with a co-defendant, and'I,heard
the details of ig, and I have seen the action here of a
Nolo Contendere plea and dismissal 6f four others.

I have noticed that this man does not have a previous

felony conviction. This is true, I assume. The record

-
s
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speaks -.the record I have beforeQe. :

Is this true?
MR, SMITH: That is true..
'THErcbuR;:' . I have thélF;;:I.~égée£,ia§??
you know, and it doesn't show é felony conviction, nor does-
the Tulsa Police Department, but one wouldn't have to be
very observing to realize he's a gambler.
q#. SM;TH: ’ True.
THE COURT: He's licensed, aqﬁ the
Federal Government'provides for licensing -- that is a stamp;
a Revenue Stamp. He has always, as I take it, had a Federal
Revenue Stamp. So, that isn't involved in this charge..
One oﬁ the charges dismissed, as I see here, was one
where possibly a wrong address was giVen for aﬁplication for

a stamp. 1Is that nq£ right?

MR. MéSOUD: . No, that was not in this
case. ‘ - |
MR.‘SMITﬁQ'"" | Tﬁgtiwéé not in this case..
7 Tﬁﬁ COURT:" 'k~zﬁell, what is the status of
“MR.:SMITﬁE‘ : Well, I really am not posi-
tive.‘ y - o A
-ﬁR.“ﬁcSOUD: | ~'J_?here has been no indictment

in that case.. It involves a matter completely outside the

indictment in this case.

L3



] ® MR. SMITH: 'lbffe has been no indjctment

2 )l in this case, nor has there been an information filed in it.

3l  {¥EE COURT: Well, it appears on my F.B.I
- 4 } :«sh.eeth’j. = | }
§ - :.ua. JOYCE: Thei:e was a complaint filed
8§ 1]l and an arrest made on that.
7 .2THE COURT: In other words, there has
3 'bee”n no action in that at ali?
9 ‘ﬁR. JOYCE: | Been no further action.
“10 . MR. McSOUD: No further actio;x.
11 - . "THE COURT: ; And that was based on t':he
12 1} wrongful éddress, I understand, for a wégering stamp?
13 -MR. JOYCE: ' Thaﬁ's correct.
7| | .JHE COURT: That is neither here nor

15 || thexe. Hs nétibeen before tfx,epoﬁrt. N |

‘16 H S R . - 59 SMITH: - "No, and,:.n all pfobability,
17 || Your Honor, will probabiy ;iever' be..

18 - TBE COURT: =~ = I havé concluéed, ln listeri—
19 ing té all the infomatian before this Court, all the Proba-
”‘% tic.m«Offi‘cer‘has,beeﬁ able to find for the Court, wh:‘.'cr.x‘_h_;sm
; nf? been,: I say, gm-‘t'e'thorough, and the letters Ahe me’nt':ivo'ned‘

» from different citizens, the Court_ recognizes, and all the
:‘3 Federal Courts do, the character witnesses,. They speak of

-4

2 him and think of him, interestingly enough, as a Tulsa busine

man. And I liken, somewhat, his situation to what I used to

* N
)
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Vﬁwangéd to drink, my contention was, there wouldn't be an

feel abc. bootleggers when this "s.t‘e was dry. If we didn't

have people that wanted to gamble, there wouldn't be an

| ©ccasion to have a bookie. 1If we didn't have people that -

occasion for bootleggers.

But, the thing that impresses me more about your plea
for mitigation, in this instan;e, contrasting it with the
ot@er charge of the co-defendant in this case, is I think thaf
the Court certainly, through all the information that has
come to the Court's'information,.through all the hearings in -
Qourt, through all the hearings‘éf the motions, address?ng
themselves to the Court by the Department of Justice to the
Assistant Attorney General, who is here, and the U.S. District
Attorney here in this Court, has been that this Court feels
this man is not ;inked to organized crime. I have now made
that determination. Ivdon't think he is. He deniés it,
you deny it, and I have nothing afi;mative to counteract
this denial. In’fact, on the contrary, evidence presented to
this Court, or comes to thiS'Court's attention, is that he is
not linked to’organizea érime}‘and I might say td'yoﬁ, Mr.
Hines, if this Court thought for one moment that you were
linked, in any way, to ofganiied crimé;.the~Mafia, the Costra
Nostra, and the relate@ arms of that operation; gambliné:
prostitution, narcotics and et cetera; I think the plea for

mitigation here would be an idol gesture on the part of

.
oo
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cofmsel. I think you have been s.ctly local, from what I

can learn. Any interstate has been, as your counsel explaine

in the mailing of a letter or getting some bets, or one thing

‘f-and another; odds on football games or basketball or whateves

you said -- baseball games.

But, there is no doubt -- We are not going into
whether or not you should haye eﬁtered a plea of Nolo Conten-
dere. That is here. So, you ére not saying as to your wisdon
or'knowledge in the affirmance of your plea. )

But, I do want it clearly understood that the Court

has determined, now, through the study, that you are not

.linked to organized crime, but I want it clearly understood

by you, too, that if the Court thought for a moment you were,
I wouldn't even be discussing this thing.right now.

DEFENDANT HINES:  Yes, sir.

THE COURT; Bééausé‘I,have seen tﬁe
evils of it already, and there are so man& things that the
public, I think, doesn't evenyknow yet involved in the
organized crime; the ramifications of the thing. I don't
think you have been involved in aﬁy of the violence that
emanaéespfrom those;pgéanizations, including threats and
deaths. I think you have been strictly in association with
the co-defendant, who was'apparently linked with it and has

been found linked, apparently, by you placing money for your

bettors here in Tulsa, and by the necessary association in

.
.o
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‘tions. I thlnk that -

3
that bet‘!Lu have been linked into that situation.

Now, the Court allowed severance of those two, and

vmthe other co—defendant went to- tr1a1 and has been found

gullty.
Now, if there is any view other than that which the
Court has stated, I would like to know. If the Department
of Justice thinks there is a_linkage, for the Court's benefit,
with organized crime, I would like to know it. This is what
I have determlned through all the hearlngs that there is not
a llnkage here. But, if the Department of Justlce has a
different view; I would like to know it, because I want to
impose the sentence accordingly. |
MR. McSOﬁD: I would have to concede to
Mr. Joyce on-that aspeet, Your Honor, if.he has any statement.
| | TﬁE COURT: . He might want to concede
to you. ’ /. | :o‘v'_ti.;, o N | i
| MR; JOYCE:iv | ‘_,Yoor‘Honor, we‘have no‘ R

informatlon that dlrectly llnks Mr. Hines w1th the Costra

Nostra or the Mafla, other than through his gambllng assoc1a—

e e

THE COURT'“" o Weil, Mr Joyce, are you
saylng to the length that I had determlned, then, the associa-
tion belng the placxng of bets that would be the llnkage, that
he had taken here, to that extent° | |

MR. JOYCE: :.‘ Insofar as he was dealing

.
,.
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with otl"'s around the United Statg in his gambling activiti

that is the only connection that I know of with organized

|} crime, per say. We have no information about-Mr: Hines other

tﬂan.that.~

THE COURT: Very weli,

Mr. Hines, you are probably as clogé as you have ever

been to being racked up. You were éwfully borderlined, and I,
even with your experience in having been around the mulberry
bush in your activities, I should think that you would benefit
from this experience; that you had an éwfﬁlly close call to
a serious Situation here.

DEFENDANT HINES: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: And I certainly am for the
Department of Justice in their complete push -~ énd there is
a push on, obviously, and I am for them completely -- for
the routing out of all of this organized crime and the many
ramificationg*aséociated Qith it; the ﬁanj‘facéts associated
with it. It is a sore in the democracy's side, Mr. Joyce,’

as far as I'm concerned, and it's festering. But, when you-

associate with those, -even to the extent that you d4id, you

~almost got -involved, and you better_stayﬂlpcal>in.nature,*5'

un-incorporated, and if you obey the federal law --. that is
all that is before me -- but you have been awfuliy borderlined
and in your behalf, I might add, in being.consistent, I have

always given credence to a man that comes before me with an

-
e
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) )
avoidanc’:f felonys. It is true &t you have Plenty of

charges of the nature of your business, namely gambline, but

~that wasn't a violation of federal law .and.it wasn't . a-felony.

It waé treaied -- it was apparently looked upon as a*ffne’for
gambling. |

DEFENDANT HINES: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: - But you have -- you have
entered a plea in this case to those charges,‘although they
would be -~ as Mr. Smith tried to even make them smaller than
thé pléa, almost, the letters and got back a baseball game =-
but I don't look at it as tﬁaﬁ innocent. I don't quite go
along that far wiﬁh you; |

But, I do see where you have avoided this association,
and that you were involvea to the extent that you state you
were, before this Court, oﬁ a Nolo Contendere plea on the
two counts.‘ | | . |

| Having that in:gind, and having’in‘mind'the fact that
four other cases were invcl?ed against yod, and only two

counts involved in this; one of mailing a letter to Los

‘Angelgs and one mai%&qg a létter to, I believe”ip was,

New York, the Courtiisigoing to suspend the imposition of -
sentehce and place yo&lon three years probation. T
. How many counts db‘I have here?
MR. SMITH: - Two.

MR.~JOYCE: , Two counts, Your Honor.

o




B Y TR ¥

W O w9 O

10

1

N ]

8

24

organized crime; the Mafia or Costra Nostra.

) .
’\ ‘Count One ==

Three and five.

’ .

THE COURT:
. MR. McSOQUD:

- M

THE COURT: - Three and fivg. o

In Count Thrée;;nd iﬁ Count Five. In Count Five I an
going to fine yéu the sum of $io,obo.oo, and as a cond;tion
to your probation, on the payment of that $10,000.00, to be
paid within one year. One of the~¢onditions of probation,
M:}'Hines,'aha,f might Say this to you, Mr. Smith knows me
well enough, he ha; been here‘as.an Assistant District
Atéorney, it might be better for you if the'Court sentences
you todéy than if you go out here and violate this probatior
because I will tell you right now, I won't have any hesitanc
in throwing the ﬁcok at you if you violate the probation,
because that was confidenge'ofthe Courts It is not a matte
of right that you have. | E

So, I hope yoﬁ éxﬁlain fhé ;e;idusﬁess qf'this.

:Ohé.bf éhé éonditions ofwthé probétion‘is that you.

in no manner whatsoever associate with, do business with,

or link you:;élf with, in any manner, interstate with any

e e e e e e e e Dy g n g e

o ' DEFENDANT HINES: Yes, sir.

- . - . -

. THE COURT: Is that understood?
"~ MR. SMITH: Yes, sir.
THE COURT: That is the judgment of

this Court. I hope you prove this Court ro be right.
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DEFENDANT HINES: Thank you, sir.
MR. SMITH: Thank you, Judge.

Wb BT

- (PROCEEDINGS CLOSED)

A TRUE AND CORRECT TRANSCRIPT
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE NORTHERN L
DISTRICT OFAOKLAHOMA WVmef_mw M,FEMI,L:,EE [)

IT IS ORDERED THAT:

The civil cases shall be divided as follows:
1l case in §

Judge Bohanon
Judge Daugherty

~Judge Barrow

1l case in 5§

DEC-5 1966

NOBLE C, HOOD
Clerk, U. 8, District Co

| 3 cases in 5.

The Clerk will assign such civil cases when filed in

the above numerical sequence and follow such sequence in

‘rotation. Any Judge desiring to transfer a case assigned

to him, for any reason including companion cases, will

- effect the transfer with the Judge to receive the case. The

Clerk will furnish each Judge shortly after the first of

- each month a list of the cases a331gned during the previous

month. This assignment procedure will te kept confidential.

The criminal business shall te handled as follows:

Judge Barrow shall empanel all Grand Juries and receive

their reports. Judges Bohanon and Daugherty will assist -

.Judge Barrow in the trial of criminal cases as arranged be-

tween the Judges for each jury docket.

Dated and effective this 2nd day of December, 1966.

jct Court ) 8s
¢ Oklahoma)
ing
the forego
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Un ted States Distr
srinhern District ©
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¢ ® FILED

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE  ,.x 17 1878}
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA

Jack C. Silver, Clerk

EUGENE ANTHONY NOLAN ) ‘
' . petitioner, ) U. S. DISTRICT COM'°T
vs. ' ) NO. 75-C-247
)
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, )
Respondent. )
ORDER

The Court has for consideration the motiqn pursuant to 28 U.S.C.
§ 2255 on behalf of Eugene Anthony Nolan, a prisoner in the United States
Penitentiary, Leavenworth, kansas. He was found guilty by jury on Sep-
tember 14, 1966, in Case No. CR 14,406, of an indictment chargiﬁg in Couﬁt |
One conspiracy to use facilities in interstate commerce to carry on a
business enterprise involving gambling in violation of the laws of the
States of Oklahoma and Louisiana in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 371; and in
Count Two of uéing interstate telephone lines between Oklahoma and
Louisiana to promote, manage, carry on and facilitate the promotion,
management and carrying on of an unlawful business enterprise involving
gambling in violation of the laws of the States of Oklahoma and Louisiana
inkviolation of 18 U.s.C. §§ 1952 and 2. On June 28, 1967, he was sen-
tenced on Count One to four years imprisonment and fine of $10,000; and
on Count Two to four years imprisonment and fine of §10,000, consecutive
to the sentence in Count One. He was released on an appeal bond of
$15,000 cash or surety, and upon affirmance of the conviction by the
Tenth Circuit Court of Appeals and denial of Certiorari by the Supreme
Court of the United States, he failed to appear as ordered to start ser-
vice of his sentence. He remained a fugitive for seven years before
being taken into cusﬁody, and he WasAdelivered to £he United States Peni-
tentiary to start service of the said sentence-on A?ril 16, 1974.

As grounds for the § 2255 motion, petitioner asserts the following:

l. Newly discovered evidence requiring the vacation of Judgment
and a new trial. '

2. The indictment, trial, and conviction of the Defendant on the
separate counts of conspiracy in Count One and a Substantive
Offense which was the object of the conspiracy in Count Two
constituted double jeopardy and thus denied the Defendant due
process of law.

3. The Court lacked jurisdiction to try and convict the Defendant
on the substantive charge in Count Two. '

4. The evidence doeg not support a finding of guilt with regard
to all the material allegations of the Government's charge
against this Defendant. '



® @
5. The sentence imposed was too severe and inconsistent with
the basic principles of equal protection of the law.
6. Defendant was denied effective assistance of counsel in
violation of the Sixth Amendment of the United States
Constitution.
7. The Court had no jurisdiction to try, convict and sentence
the Defendant for the reason that the prosecutor in the
case was never specifically appointed by the Justice De-
partment as required by law.
The Court will consider each assertion in the Order presented by
the petitioner except that assertions Nos. 2, 3 and 7, regarding the
Court's jurisdiction, will Ee considered together.
On the first issue presented that a new trialkshould be grénted on
the basis of allegedly newly discovered evidence, the Court finds that
the affidavits offered are mere hearsay, and at most would be impeaching,
if that, of some of the trial evidence, and nothing more. It is most as-
suredly not a confession by a stranger‘absolving petitioner of guilt, nor
is it newly discovered since it was knowﬁ and raised at trial. The pur-
ported newly discovered evidence comes long after the two-year period of
limitation for a motion for new trial under Rule 33, Federal Rules of
Criminal Procedure, and it is even more suspect in that it comes after
the statute of limitation has run on the charges in the indictment. The
defendant's brother, as well as a co-defendant, whom he now infers will
come forward and tell the truth, did not testify during his trial based
on their assertion of their constitutional right against self-incrimina-
tion, and it does not appear that their testimony would be helpful to the
defendant at this time. The petitioner fails to comprehend that the
charges on which he stands convicted are (1) conspiracy and (2) aiding
and abetting in the use of interstate telephone facilities to carry on
an unlawful gambling activity. He is charged in the conspiracy with two
named co-conspirators "and with others to the Grand Jury unknown." Once
the conspiracy and an overt act in furtherance thereof are proved, as a
review of the transcript shows clearly was done in the criminal prosecution,
it is not necessary to prove that the petitioner actually spoke to or even
knew other co-conspirators. All that need be proved is that the petitioner
with understanding of the unlawful character of the agreement or conspir-
acy, with specific intent, knowingly assisted for the purpose of furthering

the unlawful undertaking. He thereby becomes a willful participant and a

conspirator.
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On the second count, petitioner should remember that he is charged with
aiding and abetting, and to be an aider and abettor reqqires that a de-
fendant associate. himself with the illegal venture, participate in it as-
something he wishes to bring about, and that he seek by action to make it
succeed. He is then punishable as a principal once the proof establishes
the commission of the offense by someone, regardless of whether the peti-
tioner directly committed the act constituting the offense. The proof at
trial, as supported by the'transcripts, is more than ample to support peti-
tioner's conviétions on Count One and Two of the indictment as charged.
His assertion of newly discovered evidence under. the charges and proof,

the Court finds to be frivolous and incredible. Therefore, the assertion

~does not require an evidentiary hearing and it is without merit.

On petitioner's assertions two, three, and seven, the Court finds
that the double jeopérdyvclaim in issue two was considéred‘on direct ap-
peal and found to be without merit. The'allegation need not again be con-
sidered here. Nevertheleés, a review of the record shows that the claim

is clearly without merit. See, Nolan v. United States, 423 F.2d4 1031 (10th

Cir. 1970) and cases cited therein, cert. den. 400 U. S. 848; United States

V. McGowan, 423 F.2d 413 (4th Cir. 1970); United States v. McLeod, 493 F.24

1186 (7th Cir. 1974); Iannelli v. United States, 420 U. S. 770 (1975).

The jurisdictional issue in assertion three is without. merit. Count Two
of the indictment charges the use of interstate telephone lines in further-

ance of illegal gambling under the laws of the States of Oklahoma and -

- Louisiana. The charge may properly be prosecuted in any District in which

the offense against the United States was begun, continued, or completed.
18 U.S.C. § 3237(a). The jurisdictional issue in assertion seven is also
without merit. The petitioner's attention is called to page 89, Vol. I,
Record on Appeal No. 9730, filed January 15, 1968; consisting of the af-
fidavit of Edward T. Joyce that he was appointed and directed by the At-
torney General of the United States to assist the United States Attorney
for the Northern District 6f Oklahoma in the Grand Jury presentation which
resulted in the indictment in Case No. CR 14,406. Even if this were not
so, petitioner makes no claim or showing of prejudice by the presence of
the special attorney's appearance before the grand jury; Therefore, fail-

ure to make an objection on this ground prior to trial pursuant to Rule



12(b), (f), Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure, results in the issue

being waived. United States v. Coppola, 526 F.2d 764 (10th Cir. 1975).
On petitioner's fourth assertion that there was insufficient evi-.

dence to support the verdict, that has been previously considered on

direct appeal and decided against the petitioner as appears at page 1047

Nolan v. United States, supra. The transcripts clearly show that the

jury's verdict of guilty was not so devoid of evidentiary support that
a due process issue is raised. This issue is without merit. Lorraine

v. United Statés, 444 7,24 1, 2 (10th Cir. 1971); wWilliams v. United

-

States, 371 F.2d 536 (1l0th Cir. 1967).
On assertion five, the sentence imposed is within the statutory

limits, and thereby invulnerable. United States v. Winn, 411 F.24 415

(10th Cir. 1969) cert. den. 396 U. S. 919. Under these circumstances,
this issue is not cognizable in a § 2255 motion. ‘

On the sixth assertion alleging that petitioner was denied effective
assistance of counsel, the Court upon careful review of the record finds

this allegation without merit. As was stated in Frand v. United States,

301 F.Zdv102 (10th Cir. 1962), " . . .the constitutional,right to the ef-
fective assistance of counsel does not vest in the accused the right to
the services of an attorney who meets any specified aptitude test in point
of professional skill. Aand common mistakes of judgment on the part of
counsel, common mistakes of strategy, common mistakes of trial tactics,
or common errors of policy in the course of a criminal case do not con-
Stitute grounds for collateral attack upon the judgment and sentence by

- motion under the statute." This Court after a thorough review of the
entire record in light of petitioner's specific contentions, finds that
the trial was by no means a farce, sham, mockery of justice, or shocking

to the conscience of the Court. Lorraine v. United States, supra; United

States v. Roche, 443 F.2d 98 (10th Cir. 1971). o

The Court being fully advised in the premises by the conducting of
all pre-trial proceedings, as well as from a careful review of the trial
transcripts, finds that the § 2255 motion of Eugene Anthony Nolan should
be overruled.

IT IS, THEREFORE, ORDERED that the motion pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 2255

of Eugene Anthony Nolanvbe and it is hereby overruled and denied, and the



case is dismissed.

Dated this Zf.ﬁc day of March, 1976, at Tulsa, Oklahoma.

W

CHIEF JUDGE, iINITED STATES DISTRICT
COURT FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF
OKLAHOMA



UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA

W. J. USERY, JR., Secretary of Labor,
(Successor to John T, Dunlop),
United States Department of Labor,

Plaintiff

V. Civil Action
ALUMINUM WINDOW PRODUCTS COMPANY, INC.,
REPUBLIC GLASS COMPANY, INC., VEGA
ALUMINUM WINDOW PRODUCTS, INC.,

and BOB POOL,

No. 75-C-389

MAR 17 97

T N . R W N R N W s ot

Defendants
Jack C. Siiver, cje
: ¢ Ulerk
JUDGMENT U.s. DISTRICT Coner

Plaintiff has filed his complaint against the defendants.
Thereafter, plaintiff and defendants announced that they have
reached an agreement in this métter,'and it appearing to the
Court that plaintiff and defendants are in agreement that this
judgment should be entered, it is therefore,

ORDERED, ADJUDGED and DECREED that the defendant, Bob Pool,
his agents, servants, employees and those persons in acﬁive con-
cert or participation with him are permanently enjoihed and re-
strained from violating the provisions of sections 15(a) (2) and
15(a) (5) of the Fair Labor Standards Act of 1938, as amended
(29 U.s.C. 201, et seq.), hereinafter referred to as the Act; in
any of the following manners:

I

Defendant Bob Pool shall not, contrary to the provisions of
section 7 of the Act, employ any employee engaged in commerce or
in the production of goods for commerce, or in an enterprise en-
gaged in commerce or in the production of goods for commerce, for

a workweek longer than 40 hours unless defendant compensate such
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employee for émployment in excess of 40 hours in a workweek at
a rate not less than one and one-half times the regular rate at
whicn sucn employee 1s empioyed.
IT
Defendant Bob Pool shall not, contrary to the provisions
of section 1ll(c) of the Act, fail to make, keep and preserve the
records required by the Code of Federal Regulations, Title 29,

Part 516.

It is further ORDERED, that defendants Bob Pool, Aluminum

Window Products Company, Inc., Republic Glass Company, Inc.,

and Vega Aluminum Window Products, Inc., be enjoined and restrained
from withholding payment of overtime compensation in the total
amount of $2,000.00, which the Court finds to be due under the

Act to defendants' employees, together with interest at the maximum
legal rate. The provisions of this paragraph shall be deemed
satisfied when ﬁhe defendants deliver to the plaintiff's Regional
Solicitor a certified or cashiér's check, payable to “Employmeﬂt
Standards Administration, Labor"” in the total amount of $200.00,
within ten days of the entry of this judgment, and pay the balance
by delivery of certified or cashier's checks, payable to "Em-
ployment Standards Administration, Labor", in the amounﬁs and the

9

time herein set forth:

Payment of $1,800.00 in 18 equal consecutive monthly
installments of $100.00, without interest, with the
first installment being due and payable on or before
April 1, 1976, and the remaining installments being

due and payable on or before the same day of each
succeeding month thereafter until all installments have

“ -~

been paid.

It is further ORDERED, that plaintiff, upon receipt of such
certified or cashier's checks from the.defendants, shall promptly

proceed to make distribution, less income tax and social security
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withholdings, to defendants' employees entitled thereto, or to the
legal representative of any deceased person so named. If, after
mahing reasonable and diligent efforts tou Jdistribute such amounts
to the persdn entitled thereto, plaintiff is unable to do so be-~
cause of inability to locate a proper person, or because of a
refusal to accept payment by any such person, plaintiff, pursuant
to 28 USC section 2041, shall deposit such funds with the Clerk of
this Court. Any such funds may be withdrawn for payment to a per-
son entitled thereto upon order ofvthis Court.

It is further ORDERED that this action, insofar as it re-
lates to an injunction against future violations of the Act by the
corporate defendants, Aluminum Window Products Company, Inc., Republic
Glass Company, Inc. and Vega Aluminum Window Products, Inc., be
and the same is hereby dismissed.

It is further ORDERED, that defendants will pay the costs

of this action.

DATED this /Z day of M , 1976.

UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE

Entry of this order is consented and agreed to:

lode (ly

WILLIAM J. K¥LBERG
icitor of Labor

/ / L} - /
™ J v/ 3/} / /ﬂ% 2 oA 4/
" RONALD M. GASWIRTH

é; 1onal Solicitor

ﬁ/\oum\ - g‘/{"l«éux S,

WILLIAM E. EVERHEART, III

i /j 1 for i&??
AL ZZ ,,/;\'1?'~ : . .

/ /ﬁERIBE'RTO DE LEON
Attorney

Attorneys for Plaintiff

£

DONALD E. HERROLD =
Attorney for Defendants

SOL Case No. 00170



IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA

THE FIRST NATIONAL BANK & TRUST
COMPANY OF TULSA, a national
banking association,

72-C-90
Plaintiff,

vs.

NELSON AUCTION SERVICE, INC., a
corporation; and NELSON
INTERNATIONAL, INC., a corporation,

Defendants.

N’ N o N S N N N o N N N

JUDGMENT

Based on the order entered this date sustaining the
Motion for Summary Judgment filed by Nelson Internationl, Inc.,
JUDGMENT is entered in favor of Nelson Internatibnal, Inc.
and against the plaintiff, The First National Bank & Trust Company
of Tulsa.

ENTERED this 8th day of March, 1976.

CHIEF UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE



IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA

THE FIRST NATIONAL BANK & TRUST
COMPANY OF TULSA, a national
banking association,

72-C-90
Plaintiff,

vSs.

—

hik G g

D

NELSON AUCTION SERVICE, INC., a
corporation; and NELSON
INTERNATIONAL, INC., a corporation,

N N Mo N’ N o N N S N N N N

Defendants. or' 0 Qhivar e
JELE UL ollver, Glerk

" MRTRICT pOneT
ORDER

The Court has for consideration the Objections to Findings
and Recommendations of the Magistrate, the briefs in support and
opposition thereto, and having carefully reviewed the Motions
involved, the pleadings and the entire file, and, being fully
advised in the premises, finds:

A history of the present litigation is necessary to place
the issues raised by the Motions for Summary Judgment in the proper
perspective.

Plaintiff commenced this action on March 15, 1972, against
Nelson Auction Services, Inc., to recover for the alleged conversion
of a truck owned by B & T Trucking Co., Inc. It was alleged that said
truck was sold by Nelson Auction Services, Inc. on September 15,
1970, and that plaintiff has a valid and subsisting security
interest in said vehicle.

On April 4, 1972, Nelson Auction Service, Inc., filed a Motion
to Dismiss, alleging as one 6f the grounds, that there was presently
pending in the District Court of Garfield County certain litigation

by plaintiff in this case against Nelson Auction Service, Inc., as



Security National Bank of Enid, and that said litigation encompassed
the same issues as in the present case.

Said Motion was overruled on June 27, 1972.

Thereafter, and on September 14, 1972, plaintiff filed an
application for default with the Clerk of the Court, and the Clerk
entered default on that same date.

On October 19, 1972, plaintiff filed a Motion for Judgment
by Default to be heard by the Court.

On November 3, 1972, Nelson Auction Service, Inc., filed
an application to file answer out of time and set aside the
default. It was for the first time in these pleadings that the
that the assertion was made by Nelson Auction Service, Inc. that
the proper party had not been sued.

In the interim, it appears that the Garfield County action
was dismissed. |

On August 14, 1972, an Order was filed by the Court, wherein
among other things, the Court granted plaintiff leave to correct
the name of defendant from Nelson Auction Service, Inc., to Nelson
International, Inc. By the same order the Court granted plaintiff
default judgment against Nelson International, Inc., on the issue of
defendant's liability to plaintiff for conversion of a 1968
Auto-Car truck tractor. The case was set for hearing on the amount
of damages to be awarded.

On September 11, 1973, Nelson Auction Service, Inc., moved
the Court to vacate the order entered on August 14, 1972. At this
time Nelson Auction Service, Inc., set forth the following grounds:

1. That it is the sole defendant sued in the cause;

2. That no appearance had been entered for Nelson International,
Inc., by any attorney;

3. That Nelson Auction Service, Inc., and Nelson International,
Inc., are separate‘éorporations;

4. That the information received by Joel L. WOléemuth,
attorney for plaintiff, was predicated on erroneous information

received by him from the Clerk in the office of the Secretary of

State.



5. That Nelson Auction Service, Inc. was incorporated in
the State of Texas on February 16, 1962, and its name was changed
to E.M.S. Agency, Inc., in Texas on January 31, 1972.

6. On February 6, 1969, a separate corporation, H.A.N.
Enterprises, Inc., was incorporated in Texas and its name was
changed to Nelson Auction Service, Inc., on February 24, 1969. Its
name was further changed to its present name of Nelson International,
Inc. on May 11, 1970.

On October 18, 1973, plaintiff moved for an brder adding
Nelson International, Inc., as a party defendand.

On June 26, 1974, the Court entered its order vacating the
order entered on August 14, 1973, granting the motion for default
judgment against Nelson Auction Service, Inc., and amending the
caption in the cause to substitute '"The E.M.S. Agency, Inc., formerly
Nelson Auction Service, Inc.'", in lieu of Nelson Auction Service,
Inc.

On July 2, 1974, the Court granted plaintiff's motion to
add Nelson International, Inc., as a party defendant, and an
amended complaint was filed that date.

On August 13, 1974, Nelson International, Inc. filed its
answer to the amended complaint. As a part of its answer, Nelson
International, Inc., set up a judgment obtained in the District
Court of Tulsa County, Oklahoma, by plaintiff against B & T Trucking
Company, Inc., and other defendants, in the amount of $6,565.13.

On October 15, 1974, plaintiff filed its motion for partial
summary judgment against the defendant, Nelson International, Inc.

On December 6, 1974, Nelson International, Inc., filed its response
to plaintiff's motion.

On December 23, 1974, Nelson International, Inc. filed a
Motion for Summary Judgment, predicated on the ground that plaintiff's
claim for relief is barred by the Oklahoma Statute of Limitations
and that plaintiff's claim for relief is barred by its prior money
judgment and by the judgment of the District Court of Garfield County,

Oklahoma, denying plaintiff any relief.
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The Magistrate recommended that defendant's Motion for
Summary Judgment be sustained, finding that the cause of action
was barred by the Oklahoma Statute of Limitations, and that Rule
15)c) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure had not been satisfied
to allow relation back to March 15, 1972 of the amendment.

Objections by plaintiff were duly filed and it is in this
posture that the case now comes on for consideration by this Court.

At the outset, the Court notes that Mr. Jack Brady, of Dallas,
Texas, who has represented all defendants throughout this litigation,
presently represents Nelson Auction Service, Inc. (the original
defendant) and Nelson International, Inc.

The Court, additionally notes that Mr. Brady did not raise
the defense that the wrong party had been sued until November 23,
1972, shortly after the expiration of the statute of limitations
and four months after the motion to dismiss had been overruled.

Plaintiff contends as follows:

1. That both Nelson International and Nelson Auction Service
have their offices at 6060 Northe Central Expressway, Dallas, Texas;

2. That Mr. Jim Short of Dallas, Texas is the President of
both corporations;

3. Both corporations have the same agent for service of
process;

4. Both corporations are represented by Mr. Jack Brady of
Dallas, Texas, who is also an incorporator of both corporations;

5. That the officers and directors of both corporations are
substantially similar.

The above contentions are cited in support of plaintiff's
argument on notice and the identity of interest doctrine.

Nelson International has responded to said contentions as
follows:

1. Nelson Auction Service, Inc. (now The E.M.S. Agency, Inc.)
and Nelson International, Inc., do not share the same offices in
Dallas, Texas;

2. Jim Short is not President of both corporate defendants.

.



That he has not been President of Nelson Auction Service, Inc.

(The E.M.S. Agency, Inc.) since 1971, and was not president of

said defendant, Nelson International, when this action was commenced
on March 15, 1972. That the affidavit of William C. Archer,
reflects the following statement:

"After the election of new directors and new officers in

1971, there were no common directors and officers, with

the single exception of myself (William C. Archer), in

Nelson Auction Service, Inc. and Nelson International,

Inc. These two corporations are owned by different

stockholders and managed and controlled by different

individuals."

3. That while both corporate defendants have the same agent
for service of process, suchagent was a corporate professional
service agent used by countless corporations for out-of-state
representation and thus, this is not the type of identity which
imparts notice to a second corporation when the first corporation
is served with process.

4. That the fact that Jack Brady now represents Nelson Inter-
national, Inc., in this cause, after initially representing Nelson
Auction Service, Inc., or even that he was an incorporator of both
corporations, if such be a fact (there being nothing in the pleadings,
exhibits or affidavits on file to show who were the incorporators of
Nelson Auction Service, Inc.), does not establish an identity of
interest between the two corporations. |

5. That the officers and directors of Nelson Auction Service,

Inc., and of Nelson International., Inc. are not substantially

similar.

There is much discussion in the briefs concerning correspondence
wherein the name of Nelson International, Inc. was mentioned and
the fact that in the proposed answer submitted with the Motion for
Leave to File Answer on November 3, 1972, the name Nelson International
Inc. was used on nine different occasions.

Plaintiff, in its brief in support of its objections to the
Recommendations of the Magistrate cites the following facts, taken

from the.Affidayit of William C. Archer, a common officer of both

corporations:



1. Nelson Auction Service, Inc. had the right to conduct
business under the name of "Nelson Auction Service International";

2. Nelson Auction Service International, Inc. was the
predecessor to Nelson Internatinal, Inc.

3. Some of the former stockholders of Nelson Auction Service,
Inc. purchased stock with Archer in Nelson Auction Service International
Inc. and some of those individuals were elected officers and directors
of Nelson Auction Service, Inc.

4. William Archer, the author of the affidavit, was a common
officer of Nelson International, Inc. and Nelson Auction Service,
Inc. |

Nelson International, Inc., in its brief alleges the contrary.

Due to this dispute'over the affidavit, the Court has perused
the affidavit and finds the following statements made under oath
by Mr. Archer:

"Nelson Auction Service, Inc. was a Texas corporation,
incorporated in February of 1962. It conducted its
business in Texas and in other states, including Oklahoma,
in which it qualified to do business on May 20, 1965.

I helped to organize H.A.N. Enterprises, Inc., a Texas
corporation, incorporated on February 6, 1969. This cor-
poration, in February of 1969, purchased from Nelson
Auction Service, Inc. certain assets, including the right
to conduct business under the name of ''Nelson Auction
Service International'. Upon the completion of that
transaction, H.A.N. Enterprises, Inc. changed its corporate
name to Nelson Suction Service International, Inc. Some
of the former stockholders of Nelson Auction Service, Inc.
also purchased stock with me in Nelson Auction Service
International, Inc., and some of those individuals were
elected officers and directors of Nelson Auction Service
International, Inc. The transaction with Nelson Auction
Service, Inc. required that company to change its corporate
name after a reasonable period of time, and on January 31,
1972, by an amendment to its charter, its name was changed
to The E.M.S. Agency, Inc.

"Within about 15 months after becoming Nelson Auction Ser-
vice International, Inc. this company shortened its corporate
name to Nelson International, Inc. by a charter amendment

on May 11, 1970, in order to avoid any confusion and to
better represent the business image of the company.

"In the latter part of 1970, almost all of the stockholders
of Nelson Auction Service, Inc., sold their stock to a third
party, and these sellers included all of the stockholders

of Nelson International, Inc. who had previously retained
any stock ownership in Nelson Auction Service, Inc. at the
time of the transaction in February of 1969. Shortly there-
after, in January of 1971, new directors were elected for
Nelson Auction Service, Inc., replacing all of the former
directors who were then associated with Nelson International,
Inc. This new board also in 1971 elected new officers for
that corporation.



"After the sale of stock in 1970, there were no common
owners of stock in Nelson Auction Service, Inc. and
Nelson International, Inc. After the election of new dir-
ectors and new officers in 1971, there were no common
directors and officers, with the single exception of
myself, in Nelson Auction Service, Inc. and Nelson
International, Inc. These two corporations are owned

by different stockholders and managed and controlled

by different individuals.

"After the transaction of February, 1969, Nelson Auction
Service, Inc. conducted very little b usiness, and sub-
sequently, changed the nature of its business activities,
following which a formal change of its corporate name

to The E.M.S. Agency, Inc. was accomplished by amending
the charter in January of 1972.

"The E.M.S. Agency, Inc. does not share office space at
6060 North Central Expressway, Dallas, Texas, with
Nelson International, Inc."

&

The Court, initially, then must determine ‘the questions of
notice and identity of interest doctrine, and relation back.

Rule 15(c) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure provides,
in pertinent part:

"Whenever the claim or defense asserted in the amended

pleading arose out of the conduct, transaction, or

occurrence set forth or attempted to be set forth in

the original pleading, the amendment relates back to

the date of the original pleading. An amendment chang-

ing the party against whom a claim is asserted relates

back if the foregoing provision is satisfied and,

within the period provided by law for commencing the

action against him, the party to be brought in by amend-

ment (1) has received such notice of the institution of

the action that he will not be prejudiced in maintaining

his defense on the merits, and (2) knew or should have

known that, but for a mistake concerning the identity

of the proper party, the action would have been brought

against him"

Under said rule, amendments that merely correct technical
deficiencies or expand or modify the facts alleged in the earlier
pleading meet the Rule 15(c¢c) test and will relate back. The
rationale of the relation back rule is to ameliorate the effect
of the statute of limitations. The standard for determining
whether amendments qualify under Rule 15(c¢) is not simply
an identity of transaction test. The Courts also inquire into
whether the opposing party has been put on notice regarding the
claim or defense raised by the amended pleading. Kimbro v. U. S.

Rugger Co. (D.C. Conn., 1958) 22 F.R.D. 309; Bethlehem



Fabricators, Inc. v. British Overseas Airways Corp. (2nd CCA,
1970) 434 F.2d 840.

Since 1966, Rule 15(c) has expressly provided that an amend-
ment changing the parties relates back to the date of the original
pleading if certain conditions are satisfied. The Advisory Committee
stated, with reference to Rule 15(c¢) that said Rule 15(c) was "amplifie
to state more clearly when an amendment of a pleading changing the
party against whom a claim is asserted (including an amendment to
correct a misnomer or misdescription of a defendant) shall relate
back to the date of the original pleading."

The Tenth Circuit Court of Appeals said in Travelers Indemnity
Co. v. U.S. for Use of Construction Specialties Co. (1967) 382 F.2d
103, 106:

"The 1966 amendment simply clarifies, by explicitly stating,

the permissive procedure and its appropriate safeguards which

have existed under Rule 15(c¢) since its promulgation."

If the prerequisites of Rule 15(c) are satisfied and if
the amended claim arose out of the same conduct, transaction, or
occurrence set forth or attempted to be set forth in the original
pleading, then any amendment changing a party against whom a claim is
asserted will relate back.

When an amendment merely invoives correcting a misnomer and does

"

not entail the actual ''changing' of the parties, it would be
allowed as a mtter of course as long as it satisfied the standard

in the first sentence of Ri - 15(c) and without regard to the
special requirements of the second sentence of the subdivision.
Thus, when the plaintiff seeks to correct the name or description of
a defendant, the amendment will relate back provided the proper
defendant was served and the party before the court is the one
plaintiff intended to sue. Wright & Miller, Federal Practice, page
513.

Identity of interest generally means that the parties are so
closely related in t 'r business operations or other activities
that the institutior ¢! an action against one serves to provide
notice of the litigation to the other.

The relationship needed to satisfy the identity of interest

tests exists between a parent and a wholly owned subsidiary or



or between related corporations whose officers, directors, or

shareholders are substantially identical and who may have similar

names or conduct their business from the same offices. Identity of

interest also has been found between past and present forms of the

same enterprise.

If the originally named defendant or the party sought to be

added either knowingly allows plaintiff to think he has sued the

proper party or actually misleads him as to the identity of the

party that should be held responsible, the new defendant will be

estopped from asserting a statute of limitations defense.

In Archuleta v. Duffy's Inc. (10th CCA, 1973) 471 F.2d 33

the Court said:

"#%*Although this court is committed to the general
proposition that it will not allow technicalities to
defeat the proper administration of justice, e.g.,
Travelers Indemnity Co. v. United States for Use of
Construction Specialties Co., 10 Cir., 382 F.2d 103,
and will allow misnomers to be amended and relate

back as a matter of course, Wynne v. United States for
Use of Mid-States Waterproofing Co., 10 Cir., 382 F.2d
699, the court is equally committed to the necessity

of distinguishing betwecen misnomers and substitution of

parties. Graves v. Genrral Insurance Corp., 10 Cir., 412

F.2d 583. The trial ¢ '+t has here allowed a sul.-
stitution of parties b amendment. Such amendmei: can

relate back to the date the complaint was filed only if the

provisions of Rule 15(c) are met.

"Plaintiff has not by amendment changed the factual content

of his complaint and has thus met the compulsion of the

first sentence of Rule 15(c¢). And the trial court correctly

found that defendant has suffered no prejudice in fact,
a partial requirement under the rule's second sentence.

"Howcvoer, this latter sentence further requires that the

part: dded 'knew or shouldhave known that, but for a mis-

take - oncerning the identity of the proper party, the

actiocn would have been brought against him'. This has been
said to be analogous to an estoppel test, Professors Wright

and Miller summing‘it up as:

"Thus, when plaintiff merely misdescribes defendant and
serves the party really intended to be named in the com-

plaint, that party certainly has knowledge of the misnomer

and the quoted portion of the rule has been satisfied.
Similarly, when plaintiff names an incorrect party but
serves the person attempted to be sued, the latter is

considered to have notice of plaintiff's mistake and the
amendment will qualify under Rule 15(c). 1In other con-

texts, the courts probably will apply something akin to a
reasonable man test to determine whether the party 'should
have known' he was the one intended to be sued. 6 Wright
& Miller, Federal Practice and Procedure, §1498, at 515

(footnotes omitted).

The Court went on to say:
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"We cannot say that knowledge of the existence of a poten-
tial action constitutes, per se, reasonable grounds for
notice of the institution of an action. The Ninth Circuit
has reached a similar conclusion stating:

"In our opinion, 'action' as used in Rule 15(c) means a
lawsuit, and not the incident giving rise to a lawsuit.
The relevant words are 'notice of the institution of the
action'. A lawsuit is instituted; an incident is not."

In Simmons v. Fenton (7th CCA, 1973) 480 F.2d 133, the Court said:

"An adequate consideration of the basic principles to be
applied in cases involving a change or alteration of the parties to
an action pursuant to Rule 15(c¢) has been furnished by Judge
Grubb **%*:. 'Thus, amendment with relation back is generally
allowed in order to correct a misnomer or defendant where the
proper defendant is already in court and the effect is merely
to correct the name under which he is sued. But a new
defendant cannot normally be substituted or added by amend-
ment after the statute of limitations has run.'" Similar
interpretations of Rule 15(e¢), with numerous citations in
support, are to be found in Archuleta v. Duffy's Inc., 10 Cir.,
471 F.2d 33, 35 (1973) #*%%*

"The second sentence in Rule 15(c¢) was added by amendment in
1966, 383 U.S. 1029, 1044. This amendment has been the
subject of our present consideration. It appears to incor-
porate precisely the holding in Martz v. Miller Brothers

Co., D.Del., 244 F.Supp. 346. As was pointed out in Martz,
state statutes of limitations are frequently geared to

the filing of a complaint. This appears to be so in Illinois.
However, Rule 15(c¢) is geared to notice. The party to be
substituted must receive notice of the action 'within the
period provided by law for commencing the action against
him.' Following Martz, given the facts in this case, it

is apparent that Doris J. Fenton had no notice until after
the statute of limitations had run. She could not have had
notice that a suit had been filed against her until she heard
about it."

At page 7 of its brief, plaintiff's counsel makes the following
statement:

"In any event, there has been no showing of inexcusable
neglect on the part of plaintiff's counsel. While it is true
that plaintiff's counsel did receive, prior to the expiration
of the two-year period, correspondence from attorneys for
Security National Bank of Enid wherein it was stated that the
auction sale was conducted by 'Nelson International', it is
also true that the purchaser of the tractor at the auction
wrote a letter to plaintiff's counsel stating that the
auctioneer was 'Nelson Auction Service'. *%% Moreover,

the representation by counsel for NAS in its motion to dismiss
that Seucirty was a necessary part confirmed plaintiff's brlief
that the proper defendant had been named. The confusion

in names should be reviewed within the perspective that

NAS had the right to conduct business under the name 'Nelson
Auction Service International'---which is the exact name of
NI's predecessor.

-10-
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Based on the foregoing law and recitation of applicable
facts, the Court finds:

That the plaintiff had sufficient notice prior to the time
it amended its complaint and substituted parties to be charged with
knowledge that the party against whom they should assert their
claim was Nelson International, Inc. and not Nelson Auction Service,
Inc.

Exhibits attached to the various pleadings reflect that Nelson
International, Inc. was referred to many, many times in connection
with the transaction that is the subject matter of the instant
litigation.

The mere fact that the same attorney represents the two entities
involved herein, does not, in this Court's judgment, impute knowledge
and notice of the kind contemplated by Rule 15(c) of the Federal
Rules of Civil Procedure.

This Court could go on at length with examples, as reflected
by the file, of the conveyance to plaintiff and/or counsel of the
posture of Nelson International, Inc. in the present litigation.

The file is replete with such examples.

Based on the foregoing, the Court finds that the Motion for
Summary Judgment filed by Nelson International, Inc. should be
sustained on the ground of limitations. This being the finding of
the Court, the Court need not go into other issues raised by said
Motion for Summary Judgment or Plaintiff's Motion for Partial Summary
Judgment or the question raised concerning the Third-Party Defendant.

IT 1S, THEREFORE, ORDERED that the Motion for Summary Judgment
filed by Nelson International, Inc. be and the same is hereby sustained.

ENTERED this 8th day of March, 1976.

CHIEF UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE

-11-
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA

ALVIN LeROY FOWLER,

)
Petitioner, )
vs. ) NO. 75-C-532
) o
STATE OF OKLAHOMA, )
Respondent. ) ,
ORDER (&

This is a pro se, in forma pauperis proceeding brougﬁt\édréﬁaﬁt
Jto the provisions of Title 28, U.S.C., § 2254, by a prisoner presently
confined in the Oklahoma State Penitentiary, McAlester, Oklahoma, as a
result of the judgment and sentence rendered in Case No. CR-69-47(f) in
the District Court of Washington County, State of Oklahoma. After a
plea of guilty, the Court found petitioner guilty of the crime of murder
and on the 17th day of June, 1969, sentenced him to life imprisonment.
Subsequently, the petitioner filed an application for post—conviction
relief in the District Court of Washington County, Oklahoma, and on
April 22, 1971, the Court entered its Order dismissing said application.
On December 10, 1971, petitioner filed a second application for post-
conviction relief in the District Court of Washington County, Oklahoma,
and on May 25, 1972, the District Court entered its Order sustaining the
State's demurrer and motion for summary judgment and dismissed petitioner's
application. Petitioner appealed the Order of the District Court and on
the 6th day of March, 1973, the Court of Criminal Appeals of the State of

Oklahoma affirmed the Order denying relief. Fowler v. State, Okl. Cr.,

507 P.2d 929 (1973).

The file reflects that petitioner has exhausted those remedies
available to him in the Courts of the State of Oklahoma.

Petitioner demands his release from custody for the reason that hisg
rights guaranteed by the Fourteenth Amendment to the Constitution of the
United States of America and the provisions of Title 22, 0.S.A., §§ 1le62
and 1163 have been violated. In particular, petitioner alleges:

Legal doubt was raised as to his sanity and a jury
should have been impaneled to determine the ques-
tion of sanity.
The transcript of proceedings at the time of the plea and sentence

(January 17, 1969) disclosesat pages 12 and 13 that the District Attorney

of Washington County, Oklahoma, made the following statement:
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", . . Subsequently on the 28th day of January,
1969, this Court committed him to the State Hos-
pital at Vinita for psychiatric observation and
examination for a period not to exceed ninety
days. The Court will possibly recall that on
April 4, 1969 that we received a reply from Dr.

B. F. Peterson, who is Superintendent of Eastern
State Hospital, indicating that they had completed
their examination of the patient and were ready to
return him to the jurisdiction; that they were of
the opinion that he was not psychotic at that time;
that he was able to distinguish between right and
wrong, and that they felt that he would be able to
adequately assist legal counsel in his own behalf.

"Subsequently, Mr. Boone [Ass't. District Attorney,
Washington County, Oklahoma] had occasion to dis-
cuss this matter with Dr. Peterson. The conversa-
tion took place in Nowata the last week or so. Mr.
Peterson again indicated that he did not feel that
the defendant was psychotic or that he was legally
insane under the laws of the State of Oklahoma; that
he felt that he was mean and he felt that where this
particular deceased, Alvin D. Smith, was concerned
that the same thing would happen. Possibly the rest
of society had little to worry about. But the com-
bination of ingredients between this defendant, Alvin
LeRoy Fowler, and the deceased, Alvin D. Smith, was
such that it happened. And Dr. Peterson indicated
that he felt that the defendant really had little re-
gret for what had happened."

Mr. Harris, defense counsel, stated to the Court, starting at page
17 of the plea and sentence transcript, that the defense also had the
defendant examined by three psychiatrists and psycholigsts, who found
the defendant sane.

In United States Ex Rel. Curtis v. Zelker, 466 F.2d 1092 (2nd Cir.

1972) Cert. den. Curtis v. Zelker, 410 U. S. 945, the Court stated at

page 1099, as summarized in headnote 7 at page 1093:

"Where less than two months prior to the murder, de-
fendant had been examined for two weeks by a psychi-
atrist and had been found merely to be sociopathic

and following court-ordered psychiatric study imme-
diately after crime defendant had been found to be
without a legally cognizable mental defect and capa-
ble of understanding proceedings against him, a fur-
ther judicial inquiry into defendant's competency or
sanity at the time of offense was not constitutionally
required before accepting a plea of guilty."

The record in this case conclusivély shows that petitioner's plea
of guilty was voluntary and intelligent as shown by the transcript of
proceedings at time of plea and sentencing. At pages 4 and 5 of the
~ transcript, the following questions were asked and answers given:

"THE COURT: ©No. That's true. But in entering a plea, Mr. Fowler,
the crime as charged is murder. And so you either plead guilty or not

guilty to the crime as charged.
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THE DEFENDANT: Yes, Sir.

THE COURT: Whether you went there with that intent, as the Dis-
trict Attorney points out, it is immaterial if that intent was formed
sometime before the actual shooting took place. So, again, I would
ask you how you plead to the charge?

THE DEFENDANT: Guilty, Sir.

THE COURT: Have any threats been made against you or any promises
“made to you to induce you to enter a plea of guilty?

THE DEFENDANT: No, Sir. |

THE COURT: You do so of your own free will and for the sole and
only reason you did do the acts as alleged in thé information?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, Sir.

THE COURT: You do so with the knowledge that under the laws of
the State punishment is either life imprisonment or death in the elec-
tric chair?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, Sir."

When a guilty plea is intelligently and voluntarily and knowingly
entered and the aﬁcused is represented by competent counsel, a guilty
plea in State Court is not subject to collateral attack by way of Fed-

eral habeas corpus proceedings. Moore v. Rodriguez, 376 F.2d 817 (10th

Cir. 1967); Mahler v. United States, 333 F.2d 472 (1l0th Cir. 1964) Cert.

den. 379 U. S. 993.

The authority cited by petitioner in support of his application
clearly reflects different sets of facts and it is not relevant in the
instant case. The record in this cause, which has been carefully ex-
amined, conclusively shows that petitioner's allegation is without merit
and that he is not entitled to the relief sought. Therefore, there is
no necessity for this Court to hold an evidentiary hearing. Putnam v.

United States, 337 F.2d 313 (10th Cir. 1964); Maxwell v. Turner, 411 F.24.

805 (10th Cir. 1969); Cranford v. Rodriguez, 512 F.2d 860 (10th Cir. 1975).

IT I5, THEREFORE, ORDERED that the petition for writ of habeas corpus
of Alvin LeRoy Fowler be and it is hereby denied and the case is dismissed.
Pated this _ (7/(Z day of March, 1976, at Tulsa, Oklahoma.

CHIEF JUﬁGE, UNITED STATES DISTRICT
COURT FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF
OKLAHOMA

-3 -



UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

FOR THE
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA

)
THE AETNA CASUALTY & SURETY y
COMPANY , d
Plaintiff, g
)
vs. ) No: 75-C-402
THE BURGUNDY COMPANY, INC., ;
ALPHA PROPERTIES, INC., 4
BURGUNDY MILL & LUMBER 3
SUPPLY, GARY HARKREADER, ]
CHRISTI HARKREADER, ] ﬁ%; I
CHARLES O. HUBBY, 3 @M
m
Defendant. '; AR
a;#ﬁ?i%a'SﬁV&' e,
JUDGMENT RICT ronne

Plaintiff's Complaint involved one cause of action wherein
the Aetna Casualty and Surety Company pleaded amoung other things
that the Burgundy Company, Inc., executed a contract with the
Board of Regents for the Oklahoma Agricultural and Mechanical
Colleges, acting for and on.behalf of Oklahoma State University
of Agriculture and Applied Science. The date of the contract
was December 12, 1974 and the contract price was $205,062,00,

The plaintiff further pled that the Burgundy Company defaulted
on that contract and failed and neglected to pay the suppliers
for material in the amount of $51,579.28 and that it is estimated
an additional $8,976.00 is necessary for the completion of the
job. That a General Contract of Indemnity was made, executed

and delivered by the Burgundy Company, Inc., Alpha Properties,
Inc., Burgundy Mill & Lumber Supply, with personal indemnitors

of Gary Harkreader, Christie Harkreader, and Charles 0. Hubby
wherein the principals and indemnitors shall indemnify and
exonerate Aetna Casualty and Surety Company from and against

any and all loss and expense of whatever kind, including interest,
court costs and counsel fees which may incur or sustain as a
result or in connection with the furnishing of any Bond or the

enforcement of this agreement.



This action came on for a pretrial conference, before the
Honorable H. Dale Cook, District Judge, on January 8, 1976, at
which time Jerry R. Nichols, Attorney for the Defendants Gary
Harkreader and Christie Harkreader and Gene D. Daubert, Attorney
for the Defendants, The Burgundy Company, Inc., Alpha Properties,
Inc., Burgundy Mill and Lumber Supply and Charles 0. Hubby con-
fessed judgment in favor of the plaintiff on behalf of their
respective clients, and each of them, in the amount of SIXTY
THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED FIFTY FIVE AND 28/100 DOLLARS ($60,555.28),
with attorney's fees in the sum of TWO THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED
AND 00/100 DOLLARS ($2,500.00) together with interest at the
maximum legal rate from the date of this judgment until fully
paid and all costs of this action.

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that the above
stated allegations are found to be true and the plaintiff should
be and is hereby granted judgment in its favor and against the
defendants The Burgundy Company, Inc., Alpha Properties, Inc.,
Burgundy Mill and Lumber Supply, Gary Harkreader, Christi Harkreader
and Charles O. Hubby, and each of them individually, for the
sum of SIXTY THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED FIFTY FIVE AND 28/100 DOLLARS
($60,555.28), attorney's fees in the sum of TWO THOUSAND FIVE
HUNDRED AND 00/100 DOLLARS ($2,500.00), together with all the
costs of this action and interest from the date of this Judgment

at the maximum legal rate until fully paid.

H. Dale Cook, Judge of the District
Court of the Northern District of
Oklahoma

APPROVAL AS TO FORM:

C e KOvon )

L

erry ichols, AttHrney for
Gary Harkreader and §

Gene D. Daubert, Attorney for the
Burgundy Company, Inc. Alpha Properties,
Inc., Burgundy Mill & Lumber Supply,

and Charles 0. Hubby

John B. Stuart, Attorney for the
Plaintiff, Aetna Casualty & Surety Company




LESLIE 8, HAUGER, Jr.
Attorney at Law
TULSA. OKLAHOMA
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CHICK NORTON LEASING CO., INC., aeh o
W b, 'J{;”»-_’l?* Fo
" G

o) | — y L ',‘j.f".x
»"?e’gi ‘%I(‘T pr-
No. 75 C-471

Plaintiff,
vs.

WAYNE A. REID,

L . 2L W N W)

Defendant.

JOURNAL ENTRY OF JUDGEMENT

On the 24th day of February, 1976, this case came on
for Non-jury Trial before the undersigned Judge. The Plaintiff,
CHICK NORTON LEASING CO., INC., appeared by its General Manager,
William H. Dysart, and its attorney, Leslie S. Hauger, Jr., and
the Defendant, WAYNE A. REID, appeared in person and by his
attorney, William C. Kellough of Blackstock, Joyce, Pollard,
Blackstock & Montgomery.

Afﬁer opening statements, the Plaintiff called William
H. Dysart and the Defendant, WAYNE A. REID, as its witnesses,
testimony was received therefrom, both direct and by cross-
examination, and the Plaintiff rested.

The Defendant called, as his only witness, Dorothy
Reid, who was examined by the Defendant's attorney, cross-
examination was waived, and both parties rested.

Wherefore, after due consideration of the premises and
testimony given in open Court, the Court finds as follows:

That the parties hereto entered into a lease agreement
for a certain 1973 Cadillac El1l Dorado, and that pursuant to said
lease the Defendant had possession of said automobile from March
24, 1973, to April 1, 1975.

That when the automobile was returned the Defendant
was in arrears 65 lease payments in the sum of $377.00, and is

liable to the Plaintiff therefor.
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That when the automobile was returned to the Plaintiff
the odometer on the automobile read 17,254 miles, and pursuant
to the practice of the Plaintiff and 15 U.S.C. 1988, the Defend-
ant executed an Odometer Mileage Statement stating that the
automobile had 17,254 actual miles on it, said statement not, in
fact, being true.

That the subject automobile had been driven a distance
well in excess of 17,254 miles and further that the Defendant
personally had disconnected the odometer and turned back the
mileage therein with the intent to defraud the Plaintiff.

That subsequent to the return of the subject automo-
bile by the Defendant, the Plaintiff discovered that the subject
automobile had been driven well in excess of 17,254 miles,
confronted the Defendant with such discovery, and verified that
such was a fact.

That because the Plaintiff could not certify the
actual mileage on the automobile, the value of the automobile
was substantially reduced and was sold by the Plaintiff, after
notifying the Defendant, for the sum of $3,000.00.

That the value of the subject automobile would have
been $5,275.00 if the Plaintiff could have ce:tified the mileage
to a subsequent. transferor, and therefore, the Plaintiff suffered
damage due to the odometer tampering by the Defendant in the
amount of $2,275.00.

That pursuant to 15 U.S.C. 1989, which reads, in part

"(a) Any person who, with intent to defraud, violates
any requirement imposed under this title [15 U.S.C. 1981-1991]
shall be liable in an amount equal to the sum of-

(1) three times the amount éf actual damages
sustained of $1,500.00, whichever is the greater";
the Defendant is liable to the Plaintiff for $6,825.00 which is
three times the $2,275.00 damages sustained.

IT IS, THEREFORE, ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that
the Plaintiff, CHICK NORTON LEASING CO., INC., is awarded judge-

i

ment against the Defendant, WAYNE A. REID, in the amount of
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$7,202.00, interest thereon at the rate of ten percent (10%) per
annum and the costs of this action.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that
pursuant to 15 U.S.C. 1989 the Plaintiff is awarded an attorney's
fee for the benefit of its attorney against the Defendant, the
amount to be determined by the Court after evidence has been
presented in support thereof by the Plaintiff. The Plaintiff is

~given five (5) days from date of judgement to file its Affidavit,
the Defendant is given five (5) days thereafter to reply, and if
a party desires a hearing a request for same shall be made upon

filing its Affidavit or Reply.

H. DALE. COOK, JUDGE OF THE DISTRICT
COURT

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Will o C KW

WILLIAM C. KELLOUGH ., 2/6/

Attorney for Défénd-;;////
»\J\é/?

LESLIE S. TAUGER, JR. ¢
Attorney for Plalptlff




UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA

RICHARD B. SHAW,
Plaintiff,

—-\S - NO. 75"'C"376

CHARLES J. DAVIS, ISLA B.
DAVIS, JOHN T. FORSYTHE,
SHIRLEY R. FORSYTHE, E. W.
CALVERT, MELVA CALVERT,

R. JAMES STILLINGS, AND
HANNAFORD CONSTRUCTION,
COMPANY, INC.,

Defendants.

ORDER

The Court has for consideration defendants', except
Hannaford Construction Company, Inc., Motion to Dismiss in
its entirety and have carefully perused the entire file, the
briefs and all of the recommendations concering said motion,
and being fully advised in the premises, finds:

That the defendants', except Hannaford ConstructionkCompany,
Inc., motion should be granted for the reason that the assignment
of Hannaford Construction Company, Inc. to Richard B. Shaw was
improperly or collusively made or joined to invoke the jurisdic~
tion of this court within the meaning of Section 1359 of Title
28 of the United States Code and that this Court is without
jurisdiction for lack of diversity of citizenship.

IT IS THEREFORE, ORDERED that the motion of defendants,
except Hannaford Construction Company, Inc. should and is hereby
granted.

Dined

Dated this 6‘7%/ day of-February, 1976.

M o {w 3 #e o W

Chief United States District Judge




IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, %
Plaintiff, )
vs. ) No. 76-C-158
)
AN ARTICLE OF FOOD CONSISTING )
OF 133 BURLAP BAGS, MORE OR )
LESS, LABELED IN PART: ) J<E
gbag) ) : N ﬁ ﬁ Ry
"WET WT. 50 LBS. HHH BRAND ) R I A
EXTRA LARGE PECANS, HINES ) AR 5, g
NUT COMPANY, DALLAS, TEXAS", ) N
) Jack ¢ o 4
g AN e
Defendant. ) "< mﬂn@ﬁ,fx

4

DECREE OF CONDEMNATION

On January 15, 1976, a libel of information against the
above described article was filed in this Court on behalf of
the United States of America by the United States Attorney and
the Assistant United States Attorney for this District. Thelibel
alleges that the article proceeded against is a food which
was shipped in interstate commerce and is adulterated in viola-
tion of the Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act (21 U.S.C. 342
(a) (3)). Pursuant to Monition issued by this Court, the United
States Marshal for this District seized said article on January
20, 1976. Thereafter, Safeway Stores, Incorporated, of Tulsa,
Oklahoma, intervened and filed claim to said article.

Claimant consents that a decree, as prayed for in the libel,
be entered condemning the article under seizure.

The Court being fully advised in the premises, it is on
motion of the parties hereto:

ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that the said article under
seizure is adulterated in violation of 21 U.S.C. 342 (a) (3),
and is therefore hereby condemned pursuant to 21 U.S.C. 334(a);
and it is further

ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED, pursuant to 21 U.S.C.

334(e), that the United States of America shall recover from




said Claimant court costs and fees, and storage and other
proper expenses, as taxed herein, to-wit, the sum of $ 31.64
and

Claimant having petitioned this Court that the condemned
article be delivered to it pursuant to 21 U.S.C. 334(d), it is
further

ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that the United States
Marshal of this District shall release said article from his
custbdy to the custody of Claimant for the purpose of bringing
said article into compliance with said Act if Claimant, within
twenty (20) days from the date of this decree (a) pays in full
the aforementioned court costs and fees, and storage or other
proper expenses of the proceeding herein, and (b) executes and
files with the Clerk of this Court a good and sufficient penal
bond with surety in the sum of Nine Thousand Five Hundred
Seventy-six Dollars ($9,576.00), approved by this Court, payable
to the United States of America, and conditioned on the
Claimant's abiding by and performing all the terms and condi-
tions of this decree and of such further orders and decrees as
may be entered in this proceeding; and it is further

ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that:

1. After the filing of the bond in this Court the
Claimant shall, at its own expense, cause the article to be
shipped to the Hines Nut Company plant at Dallas, Texas. When
the article arrives at the Hines Nut Company in the Dallas,
Texas, plant, Claimant shall give written notice to the Dallas
District, Food and Drug Administration, Department of Health,
Education, and Welfare, 3032 Bryan Street, Dallas, Texas 75204,
that the article has arrived and that Claimant is prepared to
bring it into compliance with said Act under the supervision of
a duly authorized representative of the Department of Health,
Education, and Welfare.

2. Claimant shall at all times, until the article has been




released by a duly authorized representative of the Department
of Health, Education, and Welfare retain intact the entire

lot of goods comprising the article for examination or in-
spection by said representative, and shall maintain the records
or other proof necessary to establish the identity of said lot
to the satisfaction of said representative.

3. The Claimant shall not commence reconditioning opera-
tions until it has received authorization to do so from a duly
authorized representative of the Department of Health, Education,
and Welfare.

4, The Claimant shall at no time, and under no circum-
stances whatsoever, ship, sell, offer for sale, or otherwise
dispose of any part of said article or of the article into
which it is converted until a duly authorized representative
of the Department of Health, Education, and Welfare shall have
had free access thereto in order to take any samples or make
any tests or examinations that are deemed necessary, and shall
in writing have released such article for shipment, sale or
other disposition.

5. Within thirty (30) days from the date of the filing
of the bond in this Court, Claimant shall complete the process
of reconditioning said article at the Hines Nut Company, Dallas,
Texas, plant under the supervision of a duly authorized repre-
sentative of the Department of Health, Education and Welfare.

6. The Claimant shall abide by the decisions of said duly
authorized representative of the Department of Health, Education,
and Welfare, which decision shall be final. 1If Claimant breaches
any conditions stated in this décree, or in any subsequent decree |
or order of this Court in this proceeding, Claimant shall return
the article immediately to the United States Marshal for this
District at Claimant's expense, or shall otherwise dispose of
it pursuant to an order of this Court.

7. The Claimant shall not sell or dispose of said article




of any part thereof in a manner contrary to the provisions of
the Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act, or the laws of any
state or territory (as defined in said Act) in which it is sold
or disposed of.

8. The Claimant shall compensate the United States of
America for cost of supervision at the rate of $8.00 per hour
per representative for each hour actually employed in the
supervision of the conversion process, as salary or wage;
where laboratory work is necessary, at the rate of $10.00 per
hour for such laboratory work; where subsistence ekpenses are
incurred, at the rate of $25.00 per day per person for such
subsistence expenses. Claimant shall also compensate the
United States of America for necessary traveling expenses and
for any other necessary expenses which may be incurred in
connection with the supervisory responsibilities of said De-
partment of Health, Education, and Welfare,.

9. 1If requested by a duly authorized representative of
the Department of Health, Education, and Welfare, Claimant shall
furnish to said representative duplicate copies of invoices of
sale of the released artiéle, or shall furnish such other evi-
dence of disposition as said representative may request.

The United States Attorney for this District, upon being
advised by duly authorized representative of the Department of
Health, Education, and Welfare, that the conditions of this
decree have been performed, shall transmit such information to
the Clerk of this Court, whereupon the bond given in this pro-
ceeding shall be cancelled and discharged; and it is further

ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that if the Claimant does
not avail itselfiof the opportunity to repossess the condemned
article in the manner aforesaid, the United States Marshal for
this District shall retain custody of said articlelpending the
issuance of an order by this Court regarding its disposition;

and it is further




ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that this Court expressly

retain its jurisdiction to issue such further decrees and orders
as may be necessary to the proper disposition of this proceed-
ing, and that should the Claimant fail to abide by the formal
terms and conditions of this decree, or of such further order

or decree as may be entered in this proceeding, or of said bond,
the said bond shall on motion of the United States of America

in this proceeding be forfeited and judgment entered thereon.

| i,
Entered at Tulsa, Oklahoma, this Q?LLL day of beﬂﬁpd&\, s
1976.

o

CHIEF UNITED STATE

S DISTRICT JUDGE

We hereby consent to the entry of the foregoing decgee:




IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA

ALVIN LEE JENKINS, ;
Plaintiff, )
) 76-C-5
vs. g
TULSA COUNTY DISTRICT COURT ) ! g gm Ez gﬁ
THE STATE OF OKLAHOMA ) FAR 5 1a/m
(Don E. Austin), g R 1976
ook O Sivar [i=
Defendant. ) sl o etz Glory
C PRTRICT P

ORDER
SUSTAINING THE MOTIONS TO DISMISS AND DISMISSING CAUSE OF

ACTION AND THE COMPLAINT
The Court has for consideration the Motion to Dismiss filed

by Leslie R. Earl, Jr. and the Motion to Dismiss filed by Don E.
Austin, Clerk of the District Court of Tulsa County, Oklahoma, the
briefs in support thereof, and, being fully advised in the premises,

finds:

That the plaintiff issued summons issued to Leslie R. Earl, Jr.,

Public Defender, and Don E. Austin, Clerk of the District Court of
Tulsa County, Oklahoma, and they have timely filed their motions to
dismiss.

On February 9, 1976, a minute order was entered directing the
plaintiff to respond to said Motions 10 days‘thereafter.

Turning to the parties listed by the plaintiff in the style
of the case, the Court finds:

1. That State is not amenable to suit under the civil rights
statute; the District Court is not amenable to suit under the civil
rights statute.

In his complaint, plaintiff alleges violations of Sections
1983 and 1985 of the Civil Rights Act and certain constitutional
amendments.

The crux 6f his complaint reveals that he is complaining that
he has been deprived certain transcripts for an appeal.‘ He states

he wrote Don Austin, the Clerk of the Court for said transcripts

and did not receive them. There is no allegation whatsoever against

-1-



" R. Earl, Jr., the Public Defender.

The Court finds that said complaint does not comply with the
requirements of Rule 8(a) (2). |

The Court finds that Don Austin can avail himself of the judicial
immunity doctrine to shield him from liability of a civil nature in
that his acts are performed in higéfficial'capacity as the Clerk of
the Court. /

The Court finds that no cause of action is stated against Don
Austin or Leslie R. Earl, Jr.

The Court further finds that the plaintiff has not responded
to the Motions to Dismiss as ordered by the Court; |

IT IS, THEREFORE, ORDERED that the Motions to Dismiss be and
the same are hereby sustained and the cause of action and complaint

are hereby dismissed.

ENTERED this 5th day of March, 1976.

CHIEF UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE




IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA

JAMCO INTERNATIONAL, INC., ;
Plaintiff, ) o
) 76-C-3
vs. g
NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD; ) x -
JOHN IRVING, General Counsel of ) oLl E D
National Labor Relations Board ) L
and EDWIN YOUNGBLOOD, Regional ) iR S J
Director Sixteenth Region, ) o
) Jack C. Silvar, Gicig
Defendant. )

WS DISTRICT £0HR

ORDER OVERRULING PLAINTIFF'S MOTION FOR
ORAL ARGUMENT

The Court has for consideration the Plaintiff's Motion for
Oral Argument on the Motion for Injunction Pending Appeai, and,
being fully advised in the premises, finds:

That said Motion should be overruled.

IT IS, THEREFORE, ORDERED that Plaintiff's Motion for Oral
Argument be and the same is hereby overruled.

ENTERED this 5th day of March, 1976.

Corow & A —

CHIEF UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE



IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA
JAMCO INTERNATIONAL, INC,,
Plaintiff,

76-C-3 /

FiL B D
MAR o 1976 /V*/

Jack C. Siiver, Claiit
WS, DISTRIOT €0

vSs.

NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD;
JOHN IRVING, General Counsel of
National Labor Relations Board

and EDWIN YOUNGBLOOD, Regional

Director Sixteenth Region,

N N S S S i N Nt N ot Nt o

Defendant.

ORDER OVERRULING PLAINTIFF'S MOTION FOR INJUNCTION
PENDING APPEAL

The Court has for consideration the Plaintiff's Motion for
Injunction Pending Appeal, the briefs in support and opposition
thereto, and, being fully advised in the premises, finds:

That Rule 62(c) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure,
provides, in part:

"When an appeal is taken from an interlocutory or final
judgment granting, dissolving, or denying an injunction,
the court in its discretion may suspend, modify, restore,
or grant an injunction during the pendency of the appeal
upon such terms as to bond or otherwise as it considers
proper for the security of the rights of the adverse

alentoals 11
WAl
.

party.*
Moore's Federal Practice states:

" Rule 62(c) is merely expressive of a power inherent in
the court to preserve the status quo where, in its sound
discretion, the court deems the circumstances so justify.
'The question presented was not whether the court could

or should grant the ultimate relief sought. That question
was being transferred to another tribunal. The question
was: Upon a consideration of all the facts, would harm
result to either party as a result of the granting or
denial of the stay, and were there probable grounds for

an appeal to protect rights which might be prejudiced by
the refusal to grant the stay?' No action of the court
pursuant to Rule 62(c) should be distrubed by an appellate
court unless there has been an abuse of discretion."

With the above in mind, the Court will now turn to the Motion

for Injunction Pending Appeal.



The>questions, thus to be considered by this Court on the

present motion are as follows:

1. Upon consideration of all the facts, would harm
result to either party as a result of the granting or
denial of the stay; and

2. Were there probable grounds for an appeal to protect

rights which might be prejudiced by the refusal to grant

the stay. '

The Court has considered the various contentions of both
litigants and finds that the above referenced questions must be
answered in the negative, relative to the contentions of the plaintiff.

Plaintiff will not be foreclosed from any of its rights by
virtue of the lack of a stay; but it isvnecessary in order to
protect the integrity of the defendant to allow it to proceed in the
normal course of its activities pending the resolution of the question
presented by the appeal.

IT IS, THEREFORE, ORDERED that the Plaintiff's motion for injunctio:

pending appeal be and the same is hereby denied.

ENTERED this 5th day of March, 1976.

CHIEF UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA

DYCO PETROLEUM CORPORATION,
Plaintiff,
v. No. 75-C-314-~C

SPARKS DRILLING COMPANY,

formerly Osage Drilling Company, FE I &; =

MAR 01975

Jack C. Silyar, Cler

e mgTINT O =
ORDER OF DISMISSAL AR %
idn‘gq

IT IS ORDERED that the plaintiff's Compla

Defendant,

N N N Nt N N N N N

and defendant's
Counterclaim in this action both be dismissed with prejudice
pursuant to stipulation between the parties.

Given under my hand this ﬁ ; day of March, 1976.

UNITED STATES DTSTRICT JUDGE




UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA

WILLIAM J. USERY, JR., (Successor to
John T. Dunlop), Secretary of Labor,
United States Department of Labor,

Plaintiff
Civil Action

v.
No. 74-C-316

1‘( S E ‘S"’ e
o G

THE RESQURCE SCIENCES CORPORATION,
a Corporation,

-

£

")

Defendant

. ‘f’r{ : £ \‘J -

PARTIAL DISMISSAL WITH PREJUDICE

COMES NOW Piaintiff and dismisses with prejudice all
its issues and causes of action alleged in this proceeding
against Defendant which are based upon the sex discrimination
provisions of Section 6 of the Fair Labor Standards Act, with
réspect to employees Norman Freeze and Victor Houser, upon
failure to pay overtime compensation under Section 7 of the Fair
Labor Standards Act, with respect to employees Sharon Chesser
Collins and Sally Martin Cotten and Section 11l (c), and upon the
record-keeping requirements of the Fair Labor Standards Act.
The sole issue and cause of action in this proceeding not hereby
dismissed with prejudice, which issue has been left to be decided
by the Court, and has been decided by Orders dated January 23,
1976 and February 13; 1976, is the questions of the discharge

of Victor Houser under the Age Discrimination in Employment Act.
Ly

Dated this ;?Z ay of February, 1976.

WILLIAM J. KILBERG 3

Szé?citQ” of Labi;f%’ /)
i //‘ N , o
A /?7 g &%Z#%”Zf%é

RONALD M. GASWIRTH

P

WILLIAM E. EVERHEART

Acting /bu el f/r 5/77
g[/fMZf 7 j%

RICHARD L. COLLIER
Attorney

ATTORNEYS FOR PLAINTIFF

la¥atd Y e a¥a¥ata W] ~ aWath BEAWLY



Partial Dismissal With Prejudice
Approved:

HALL, ESTILL, HARDWICK, GABLE,
COLLINGSWORTH & NELSON, INC.

e N

Harry L. %eayWIII

805 National Bank of Tulsa Bldg.
Tulsa, Oklahoma 74103

(918) 585-9161

ATTORNEYS FOR DEFENDANT

The foregoing Partial Dismissal With Prejudice by Plain-

. . 74 t,// }L&-i»(,.» /’\,/
tiff is hereby approved and allowed this ‘Q?" day of -February-,

1976.

fZ/
UNITED STA'.[‘*ES DISTRICT JUDGE




IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT IN AND FOR
THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA

LYNN CLYMA,

Plaintiff,

7 ﬂ
No. 73_c-312“ﬁ>v///

VS,

MISSQURI-KANSAS~TEXAS RATILROAD
COMPANY, a corporation,

Defendant and
Third-Party Plaintiff,

vs.

THE CITY OF TULSA, OKLAHOMA,
a municipal corxporation,

L L i N . L N e N S e e

Third-Party Defendant.

MODIFICATION OF JUDGMENT ON GENERAL
VERDICT AFTER REMITTITUR

This action came on for trial before this Court and a jury,
the Honorable Allen E., Barrow, U. S. District Judge presiding, and
the issues having been duly tried and the jury having duly rendered
its verdidt in the amount of $146,129.00, and the Court having ordered
a new trial in said action unless said Plaintiff file with the Clerk
of the Court within seven (7) days, a written consent to reduce the
verdict to $85,000.00 inclusive of costs, and said consent having
been duly signed, acknowledged and filed with said Clerk,

IT IS ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that the Plaintiff recover
of the Defendant Missouri-Kansas-Texas Railroad Company the sum of
$85,000.00 inclusive of costs with interest thereon from date, at
the rate of ten percent (10%) per annum.

., G
DATED this i4 ~ day of March, 1976.

69::%
st B Lt

ALLEN E, BARROW, Chief Judge of the
United States District Court for the
Northern District of Oklahoma




IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE

NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA

EDUCATIONAL DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION,

)
)
Plaintiff, )
)
vs. ) No. 73-C-256
)
THE ECONOMY COMPANY, ) Fy : o
) — g E&a E;‘g: gl‘?z
Defendant. ) irls . Sui
R 1119z
’7‘!&!4 .
gii,!;%:'ii @g Sf;{i\ef’ Cfﬂ'/g’
for i
JUDGMENT § DISTRICT pasis

This action came on for non-jury trial befofe the Court,
the Honorable H. Dale Cook, District Judge, presiding. The
issues having been duly tried and decision having been duly
rendered, the following Order is entered: ‘

IT IS ORDERED AND ADJUDGED that the Plaintiff take

nothing and that the action be dismissed on the merits.

, 75
Dated at Tulsa, Oklahoma, this ZZ ~ day of March,

1976.

H. DALE' COOK
United States District Judge




+ IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA

KANSAS CITY FIRE & MARINE INSURANCE ) .
COMPANY, a corporation, ) &u 5 gm~ =
; N ] Hozgmg D
Plaintiff Bk 4 o
’ ) AR 1}.]3/{)
VS e g ja?C:’( C,6 81{2‘,5}’, C!“.‘}i’(
DALLAS-MEADE CONSTRUCTORS, INC., ) s DISTRICT P,
a corporation, )
)
Defendant. )} No. 76-C-28 — Q- &

JUDGMENT

The defendant, Dallas-Meade Constructors, Inc., a
corporation, having failed to plead or otherwise defend in
this action and its default having been entered, now, upon
application of the plaintiff and upon Affidavit that defendant
is indebted to plaintiff in the sum of Fifty-Eight Thoﬁsand,
Nine Hundred Eleven and 51/100 Dollars ($58,911.51), that
defendant has been defaulted for failure to appear and that
defendant is not an infant or incompetent person and is not
in the military service of the United'States, it is hereby
ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that plaintiff recover
of defendant the sum of Fifty-Eight Thousand, Nine Hundred
Eleven and 51/100 Dollars ($58,911.51), plus interest in the
amount of Three Thousand, Twelve and 43/100 Dollars ($3,012.43),
computed at the rate of six (6) percent per annum as shown on
Statement of Amount Due submitted by plaintiff’ and costs in
the sum of Eighteen Doll§r§MT$18.OO). //

,//’

\\\ f/“/;/7§ ' ///‘{4;

"
//& ; A P A N,

CLERK'OF THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT
COURT FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF
OKLAHOMA

» 1976,




IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
Plaintiff,

vVS.

)

)

)

)

)

)

, o )

HOSIE L. MILLER a/k/a HOCIE LEE MILLER )

a/k/a HOSIE MILLER a/k/a HOSIL MILLER, )

GENEVA A. MILLER a/k/a GENEVA MILLER ) iR 1 1
a/k/a GENEVA ANN MILLER, ; MER T L1ypg
A

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

i s
wi B
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THE BETTY CLAIRE SHOP, INC., o
DORMAN STITES d/b/a DORMAN HOME SUPPLIES, Jack C. Sitver, Clerk
AMERICAN STATE BANK, A CORPORATION, S, DISTRICT i
_ B O LISTRICT 0Ot
MID-PORT INVESTMENT CORP.,
SURETY LOAN SERVICE, INC.,
COUNTY TREASURER, TULSA COUNTY,
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS, TULSA COUNTY.
- v

Defendants. Civil Action No. 75-C-494

JUDGMENT OF FORECLOSURE

THIS MATTER COMES on for consideration thisw§%§ day of
February, 1976, the.plaintiff appearing by Robert P. Santee,
Assistant United States Attorney, the deféndants Board of County
Commissioners and County Treasurer, Tulsa County, appearing by
their attorney Andrew B. Allen, Assistant District Attorney, the
defendant Mid-Port Investment Corp. appearing by their attorney
William B. Lee, the éefendant Betty Claire Shop, Inc. appearing
by their attorney William R. Grimm, the defendant American State
Bank appearing by Arlie E. Piguet, and the defendants Hosie L.
Miller, Geneva A. Miller, Dorman Stites d/b/a Dorman Home Supplies,
and Surety Loan Service appearing not.

The Court being fully advised and having examined the
file herein finds that the defendant Hosie L. Miller a/k/a Hocie
Lee Miller a/k/a Hosie Miller a/k/a Hosil Miller was served with
Summons and Complaint on November 12, 1975, and was served with
Summons and Amendment to Complaint on Januaxy 12, 1976; that the
defendant Dorman Stites d/b/a Dorman Home Supplies was served with

Summons and Complaint on November 4, 1975, and was served with



Summons and Amendment to Complaint on December 30, 1975; that

the defendant Surety Loan Service, Inc. was served with Suwmmons
and Complaint on November 4, 1975, and was served with Summons

and Amendment to Complaint on December 17, 1975; and the defendant
Geneva A. Miller was served with Summons and Complaint on

November 4, 1975; and was served wiﬁh Summons and Amendment to
Complaint on January 6; 1976; that the defendant American State
Bank, A Corporation was served with Summons and Complaint on
November 4, 1975, and was served with Summons and Amendment to
Complaint on December 30, 1975; that the defendant The Betty
Claire Shop, Inc. was served with Summons and Complaint on
November 4, 1975, énd was served with Summons and Amendment to
Complaint on December 17, 1975; that the defendant Mid-Port
Investment Corp. was served with Summons and Complaint on November 18,
1975, and was served with Summons and Amendment to Complaint on
December 17, 1975; and that the Board of County Commissioners

and the County Treasurer were served with Summons, Comélaint

and Amendment to Complaint on December 17, 1975.

It appearing that the American State Bank has duly filed
its Disclaimer herein on November 18, 1975; that the Betty Claire
Shop, Inc. has duly filed its Answer and Cross Complaint on
November 25, 1975; that the defendant Mid~-Port Investment Corp.
has duly filed its Disclaimer on December 9, 1975:; that the County
Treasurer and the Board of County Commissioners have duly filed
their Answer on January 5, 1976; and that the defendants Hosie
L. Miller, Geneva A. Miller, Dorman Stites d/b/a Dorman Home
Supplies and Surety Loan Service have failed to answer herein
and that default has been entered by the Clerk of this Court.

The Court further finds that this is a suit based upon
a mortgage note and foreclosure on a real property mortgage securing
said mortgage note and that the following described real property
is located in Tulsa County, Oklahoma, within the Northern Judicial

District of Oklahomd:



Iot Nineteen (19), Block Seven (7),
Suburban Acres Second Addition to
the City of Tulsa, County of Tulsa,
State of Oklahoma, according to the
recorded plat thereof

THAT the defendants, Hosie L. Miller and Geneva A.
Miller, did, on the 4th day of October, 1972, execute and deliver
to the Administrator of Veterans Affairs their mortgage and mortgage
note in the sum of $10,500.00, with 4-1/2 percent interest per
annum, and further providing for the payment of monthly install-
ments of principal and interest.

The Court further finds that the defendants Hosie L.
Miller and Geneva A. Miller made default under the terms of the
aforesaid mortgage note by reason of their failure to make monthly
installments due thereon for more than 12 months last past, which
default has continued and that by reason thereof the above-named
defendants are now indebted to the plaintiff in the sum of
$10,190.02, as unpaid pfincipal, with interest thereon at the
rate of 4~1/2 percent per annum from December 1, 1974, until
paid, plus the cost of this action accrued and accruing.

The Court further finds that The Betty Claire Shop, Inc.
is entitled to judgment against Hosie L. Miller a/k/a Hocie Lee
Miller a/k/a Hosie Miller a/k/a Hosil Miller and Geneva A. Miller
a/k/a Geneva Miller a/k/a Geneva Ann Miller in the amount of
$327.39, plus interest at the rate of 18 percent per annum from
April 25, 1974, until paid, plus attorney's fees in the amount of
$150.00, plus accrued court costs, but that such judgment would be
subject to and inferior to the first mortgage lien of the plaintiff
herein.

The Court further finds that there is due and owing to
the County of Tulsa, State of Oklahoma, from defendants Hosie L.
Miller and Geneva A. Miller,ithe sums of /’52 Cfc} for the year

ér y for personal property taxes
// . é’ for the year 1975,/ and that Tulsa

1974, and the sum of

County should have judgment, - in rem, for said amount, but that such
judgment is subject to and inferior to the first mortgage lien of

the Plaintiff herein.



IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that the
Plaintiff have and recover judgment against Hosie L. Miller and
Geneva A. Miller, in personam, for the sum of $10,190.02, with
interest thereon at the rate of 4-1/2 percent per annum from
December 1, 1974, plus the cost of this action accrued and
accruing, plus any additional sums advanced or to be advanced or
expended during this foreclosure action by plaintiff for taxes,
insurance, abstracting, or sums for the preservation of the
subject property.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that
The Betty Claire Shop, Inc have and recover judgment against the
defendants Hosie L. Miller and Geneva A. Miller, in the amount of
$327.39, plus interest at the rate of 18 percent per annum from
April 25, 1974, until paid, plus attorneys fees in the amount
of $150.00, plus accrued court costs, as of the date of this
judgment, but that such judgment is subject to and inférior to
the first mortgage lien of the plaintiff herein.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that the
County of Tulsa have and recover judgment, in rem, against
defendants, Hosie L. Miller and Geneva A. Miller, for the sum

¢
of 4/§Z( Z é;, il/’ as of the date of this judgment plus interest

- =
theréggter according to law for personal property'taxes, but that
such judgment is subject to and inferior to the first mortgage

lien of the Plaintiff herein.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that the
plaintiff have and recover judgment, in rem, against the defendants
Dorman Stites d/b/a Dorman Home Supplies and Surety Loan Service,
Inc.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that upon
the failure of said defendants to satisfy Plaintiff's money
judgment = in, o Order of Sale shall be issued to the United
States Marshal for the Northern District of Oklahoma, commanding
him to advertise and sell with appraisement the rcal property

and apply the proceeds thereof in satisfaction ¢ . Plaintiff's



) o | o

judgment. The residue, if any, shall be deposited with the Clerk
of the Court to await further order of the Court.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGEb AND DECREED that from
and after the sale of said property, under and by virtue of this
judgment and decree, all of the defendants and each of them and
all persons claiming under them since the filing of the complaint
herein be and they are forever barred and foreclosed of any right,
title, interest, or claim’in or to the real property or any part
thereof, specifically including any Yen for personal property

taxes which may have been filed during the pendency of this action.

UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE

APPROVED

ROPERT D, CANTEER

of Cou ty
Sa Coun y

‘WILLIAM R GRIMM
Attorney for Defendant, Betty
Claire Shop, Inc.



IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA

E. R. McKEE and RUTH McKEE,
Plaintiffs,
vs NO. 75-C-373

GENE HOPKINS, SHARON HOPKINS,
ET AL.,

FEILED
MAR 10
Jack C. Silver, Clerk
JUDGMENT 1. 8. DISTRICT core

Defendants.

NOW on this {ngzday of March, 1976, this cause came on

for hearing upon plaintiffs' Motion for Default Judgment as

against the defendants, Ralph Grimmer and Amanda B. Grimmef, and
upon examination of the file, it is found that the defendants,

Ralph Grimmer and Amanda B. Grimmer, have been personally served
with summons by the United States Marshall on August 15, 1975,

and have failed to plead or answer and are, therefore, adjudicated
in default and judgment should be granted in favor of the plaintiffs,
E. R. McKee and Ruth McKee, and against the defendants, Ralph
Grimmer and Amanda B. Grimmer, for the sum of $112,280.85.

NOW, THEREFORE, EE IT ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED by the
Court that the plaintiffs, E. R. McKee and Ruth McKee, have and
recover judgment of and from the defendants, Ralph Grimmer and
Amanda B. Grimmer, for the sum of $112,280.85.

Dated this l@&fzaay of March, 1976.

S L) feeb O Lot

Clef¥k Hf the United States
District Court
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE NORTHERN
DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA

GERALD C. ANGUS and CARMEN
ANGUS, individually and as
husband and wife,

Plaintiffs,

No. 75-C-~408

ot L
AR 10 1975

vs.

SOUTHWESTERN BELL TELEPHONE CO.,
INC., a corporation, and PATRICK
B. FOWLER, agent, servant or
employee of Southwestern Bell
Telephone Co., Inc.,

Jack C. Silver, Clerk
't S DISTRICT cotrr

i g Tl L W W Y

bDefendants.
ORDER

The Court has considered the plaintiffs' Motion
to Remand, the.defendant, Patrick A. Fowler's Motion to Dismiss
and the defendant, Southwestern Bell Telephone Company's Motion
to Dismiss in their entirety and has carefully perused the
file, the briefs and all of the recommendations concerning
said motions, and being fully advised in the premises, finds
as follows:

That plaintiffs' Motion to Remand should be overruled
for the reason that the joinder of the resident defendant is
neither proper nor necessary to any claim for relief asserted
by plaintiffs and that removal of this cause is proper under
28 USCA §1441 (c).

Defendant, Patrick A. Fowler's Motion to Dismiss
should be granted for the reason that the Complaint fails to
allege facts sufficient to constitute a cause of action against
said deféndant.

Defendant, Southwestern Bell Teleplt ne Company's
Motion to Dismiss should be overruled for thg'yeason that there
are sufficient allegations to state a claim against the defend-
ant Southwestern Bell Telephone Company upon which relief could

be granted.



IT IS, THEREFORE, ORDERED that the motion of
plaintiffs to remand should be and hereby is overruled,
the motion of defendant, Patrick A. Fowler to dismiss should
be and hereby is granted, the motion of defendant Southwestern

Bell Telephone Company should be and hereby is overruled.

Dated this Zé)a%day of %@ML/ , 1976.

& -
') v ::k - o /
- A mﬁf P e (S eyt m’\eﬁ&mf&mﬁ'@wam

CHIEF UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE
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bt 10 1976
NORTHERN DIQTRICT OF OXLAHOMA }aﬁiQmSEm; LSI

b S. DISTRIGT COURT
Petitioner,

)
)
VS. ) NO. 75-C-388
)
)
)

YR

JAMES SCOTT BAUHAUS,

‘THE STATE O OKLAHOMA, et al.,
Respondents.
ORDER

The Court has for consideration a pro se, in forma pauperis pro-
ceeding brought pursuant to the provisions of 28 U.S.C. § 2254 by a
State prisoner presently confined in the Oklahoma State Penitentiary
at McAlester, Oklahoma, as a result of the judgment and sentence entered
in Case No. CRF~-73-~24 in the District Court of Tulsa County, State of
Oklahoma. After a plea of not guilty to the charge of murder, petitioner
was tried by a jury'and upon a finding of guilty, he was, on the 5th day
of June, 1974, sentenced to life imprisonment. Thereafter, on the 19th
day of February, 1975, the conviction and sentence was affirmed, No. F-
74-535, by the Court of Criminal Appeals of the State of Oklahoma. Re-

ported Bauhaus v. State, Okl. Cr., 532 P.2d 434 (1975).

Petitioner demands his release from custody and as grounds therefor
alleges:

1) That his constitutional rights were violated because he
was not afforded a speedy trial; and,

2) That his constitutional rights were violated by improper
interrogation, comments, and closing argument made by the
prosecuting attorney at the time of trial.

The Court has carefully reviewed the petition, response, transcripts,
records, and opinion of the Oklahoma Court of Criminal Appeals, and finds
that, although the delay here was considerable, it was not attributable
to the instant offense and was not unreasonable in view of the circum-
stances, the defendant's making no demand for trial, and the minimal prej-

udice attendant upon the matter. Petitioner's first allegation is without

merit. In the case of Barker v. Wingo, 407 U. S. 514, 92 S.Ct. 2182, 33

L.Ed.2d 101, the Supreme Court of the United States of America in address-
ing itself to the issue of "Speedy Trial" stated at page 530:

"The approach which we accept is a balancing test,

in which the conduct of both the prosecution and

defendant are weighed . . .V

"A balancing test necessarily compels courts to
approach speedy trial cases on an ad hoc basis



’ .

We can do little more than identify some of the
factors . . . Length of delay, the reason for the
delay, the defendant's assertion of his right, and
the prejudice to the defendant."

and, continuing at page 533 with the statement that:

"We regard none of the four factors identified
above as either a necessary or sufficient con-
dition to the finding of a deprivation of the
right of a speedy trial. Rather, they are re-
lated factors and must be considered together
with such other circumstances as may be relevant.
In sum, these factors have no talismanic quali-
ties; courts must still engage in a difficult
and sensitive balancing process."

The Court in Barker v. Wingo, supra, at page 532 further states:

"Prejudice, of course, should be assessed in the
light of the interests of defendants which the
speedy trial right was designed to protect. This
Court has identified three such interests: (i) to
prevent oppressive pretrial incarceration; (ii) to
minimize anxiety and concern of the accused; and
(iii) to limit the possibility that the defense
will be impaired. Of these, the most serious is
the last, because of the inability of a defendant
adequately to prepare his case skews the fairness
of the entire system."

The Oklahoma Court of Criminal Appeals has thoroughly examined the mat-

ter in Bauhaus v. State, supra, and this Court, upon further review and

examination concurs that the delay in bringing petitioner to trial in
Tulsa County, Oklahoma, did not result in violation of his constitutional
right to a speedy trial and did not prejudice his rights or impair the
preparation of his defense to the charges..

Petitioner has made myriad assertions of error in the course of
pursuing his second allegation. However, these assertions are all re-
lated to what petitioner has deemed improper interrogation of witnesses,
primarily petitioner's own alibi witness, and purportedly prejudicial
arguments and comment of the prosecutor. Again, the Oklahoma Court of

Criminal Appeals has exhaustively surveyed the points raised by petitioner

and his authorities before concluding, at page 444 of Bauhaus V. State,
supra, that:

"Although there are respects in which the conduct of

the prosecutor cannot be condoned, we hold against

this proposition as there is no error sufficiently

prejudicial to require reversal.

In conclusion, we observe that the record is free

of any error which would justify modification or

reversal,"

This Court has carefully scrutinized the records and transcripts and

has in turn viewed each instance cited by petitioner and his authorities

)



‘ ‘

as well as surveying the entire case. This Court finds that pet@tioner's
assertions are not supported by the full record and the authorities cited
are clearly distinguishable or are inapplicable under the facts. The
Court also finds that, although the prosecutor's conduct in some re-
spects may not have been of the highest standard for trial attorneys,
there was no error sufficiently prejudicial cited by petitioner when
viewed on the evidence and the record to warrant the relief demanded.
Moreover, where a State Supreme Court fully and adequately considered

a State prisoner's Federal claims on appeal and in post-conviction pro-
ceedings, no further evidentiary hearing is necessary in Federal habeas

corpus proceedings. Dhaemers v. State of Minnesota, 456 F.2d 1291 (8th

Cir. 1972). The Oklahoma Court of Criminal Appeals has fully, adequately,
and accurately considered petitioner's propositions, and his Federal claims
and the record reveals that no further evidentiary hearing in this matter
is necessary and that petitioner is not entitled to relief. Putnam v.

United States, 337 F.2d 313 (10th Cir. 1964); Maxwell v. Turner, 411 F.2d

805 (10th Cir. 1969); Cranford v. Rodriquez, 512 F.2d 860 (10th Cir. 1975).

IT IS, THEREFORE, ORDERED that the petition for writ of habeas corpus
of James Scott Bauhaus be and it is hereby denied and the case is dismissed

A
Dated this 5£2éﬁ~day of March, 1976, at Tulsa, Oklahoma.

P o

TN iy Bt ot
CHIER JUDGE, UNITED STATES DISTRICT
COURT FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF
OKLAHOMA




UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA FILED
MAR 91976

Jack C. Silver, Clerk
LS. DISTRICT CONP”

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,

)
)
Plaintiff, )
)
VS. ) CIVIL NO. 76—C~84~’§
)
JERRY EVATT, )
)
Defendant. )
JUDGMENT

Based upon the Findings of Fact and Concluéions of Law
filed in this civil action on the glzz;_day of March, 1976,

It is therefore, ORDERED, ADJUDGED and DECREED that
the Defendant, Jerry Evatt, his officers, agents, principal,
servants, employees, attorneys and all persons in active concert
or participation with him, are permanently enjoined from inter-
fering in any way with the ingress and egress of the oil and gas
lessee, Leonard, Palm and Cook Explorafion, an Oklahoma partner-
ship, its officers, agents servants, employees and contractors
for the purpose of drilling and production operations including
laying and maintaining a pipeline and erection and maintenance
of an electric line on electric poles on any of the real property
described as follows, to-wit:

The NW/4 NW/4 and Lot 1, of Section 9,

T. 23 N., R. 3 E., in Osage County, State

of Oklahoma, ‘
and this injunction shall remain in full force and effect until
such time as the oil and gas mining lease, described in the
Findings of Fact filed herein, shall expire by operation of law.

It is further ORDERED that the Defendant, Jerry Evatt,
pay the costs of this proceeding to the Plaintiff, United States

of America.

Allen E. Barrow

UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE




IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA

RICHARD L. HUDSON,
Plaintiff,

vSs. 75-C-151
SWAN ENGINEERING AND SUPPLY

COMPANY, INC., a Kansas corporation;
SEALCO, INC., an Oklahoma
corporation; H. A. SMITH and
EUGENE P. MITCHELL,

MR 91978

Jack . Silver, Cler:
WS NSTRICT O

Defendants.

N M St o N N N N N N N N N

ORDER

The Court has for consideration the Motion to Remand filed
by the plaintiff, the briefs in support and opposition’thereto,
the recommendations filed herein and the objections to such
recommendations, and, having carefully perused the entire file,
and, being fully advised in the premises, finds:

That heretofore and on October 6, 1975, the Court entered its
order remanding the cause of action as against the defendant,
Sealco, Inc., to the District Court of Tulsa County, Oklahoma,
and the Motion to Remand, as to the other defendants was overruled.

The Court notes that in the original complaint filed in the
District Court of Tulsa County, Oklahoma, plaintiff states that
hék”is é citizen of the State of Oklahoma, residing in Tulsa, Tulsa
County, Oklahoma'.

In the petition for removal, the defendants, Swan Engineering
and Supply Co., Inc., H. A. Smith and Eugene P. Mitchell, allege
that this is a controversy between plaintiff, "who, at the time of
commencement of this suit was and is not a citizen and resident of
the State of Georgia'.

There is nothing in the file to indicate that the(allegation
in the removal petition as to the citizenship of the plaintiff had

been at the time of the commencement of the action and the time of



removal, a citizen of the State of Georgia.

The Court, further reaffirms and readopts its prior order entered
herein on October 6, 1975.

Title 28 U.S.C.A. §1441, provides:

"Whenever a separate and independent claim or cause of

action, which would be removable if sued upon alone, is

joined with one or more otherwise non-removable claims or

causes of action, the entire case may be removed and the

District Court may determine all issues therein, or in its

discretion, may remand all matters not otherwise within

its original jurisdiction."

The Court finds that plaintiff has stated a separate and independent
claim or cause df action agaiﬁst the defendants, Swan, Smith and
Mitchell, which would be removable if sued on alone. The allegations
against Swan, Smith and Mitchell are identical to the allegations
asserted in the original action brought in this court and later dismis:
by plaintiff.

The only new allegation is the dissolution of Sealcb, Inc., which
the Court originally found, in its order of October 6, 1975, should,
in the Court's discretion, be remanded to the State Court, as provided
by Title 28 U.S.C.A. §l441.

IT IS, THEREFORE, ORDERED that the Objections to Findngs and
Recommendations of the Magistrate and Order of the Court and Motion
for Hearing filed by the plaintiff be and the same are hereby
overruled.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the Order of this Court entered on
October 6, 1975, remain in full force and effect as the Order

of this Court.

ENTERED this Z/4¢ day of March, 1976.

e
gﬁ@ﬁ&@w e ve— /"’"\».

CHIEF UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE




UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE

NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA M‘?l‘? 9
v 2%9';“@
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’ 3 f
) !}gquﬂr, Clers
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, ) G0
)
Plaintiff, )
) A
vs. ' ) CIVIL NO. 76-C-84""
' )
JERRY EVATT, )
)
Defendant. )

" FPINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

This matter came on for hearing, at 10:30 A.M. on
Thursday, March 4, 1976, on the Plaintiff's Motion for Prelim-
inary Injunction. The Plaintiff, United States of America,
appeared by Hubert A. Marlow, Assistant United States Attorney
for the Northern District of Oklahoma. The Defendant, Jerry
Evatt, did not appear in person and no attorney or other person
appeared for him.

Pursuant to Rule 65(a) (2) of the Federal Rules of Civil
Procedure, the Court accelerated the hearing on preliminary in-
junction with a hearing on the merits.

In view of the hearing, the Court has considered the
following factors in determining whether a preliminafy and pef—
manent injunction should issue:

(1) Whether there is a strong showing that Plaintiff
is likely to prevall on the merits of the case; (2) whether
Plaintiff will suffer irreparable harm if the preliminary in-
junction and permanent injunction are denied; (3) whether the
Defendant will suffer harm if the preliminary injunction and
permanent injunction are issued; and (4) whether the public
interest will be served in granting the preliminary injunction
and permanent injunction. After reviewing the pleadings filed in
this case and having considered the evidence, the Court makes the

following findings of facts and conclusions of law:



FINDINGS OF FACTS

1. The Defendant, Jerry Evatt, was personally served
with notice of the hearing set for March 4, 1976. Such service
was made by Deputy United States Marshal Frederick R. Strike,
at 8:15 P.M. on February 27, 1976.

2. The Defendant, Jerry Evatt, has never filed any
document in this case either in person or by attorney and did not
appear at the hearing set for March 4, 1976, either in person or
- by attorney.

3. The Osage Tribe of Indians is the owner of the oil,
gas, coal and other minerals under the following described prop-
erty, to-wit:

The NW/4 NW/4 and Lot 1, of Section 9,

T. 23 N., R. 3 BE., in Osage County, Oklahoma.
Hereinafter this described property will be referred to as the
subject property.

4. On October 20, 1975, the Osage Tribe of Indians
granted to Leonard, Palm and»Cook Exploration, an Oklahoma partner-
ship, an o0il and gas mining lease for three years from the date of
approval thereof, and as long thereafter as oil and/or natural gas
is produced in paying quantities, which lease covered the subjectv
property. This lease was approved by an agent of the Department
of Interior on November 21, 1975.

5. One Yvonne Colombe Evatt owns the surface only of
the subject property and the Defendant, Jerry Evatt, is her tenant
and in possession of said property.

6. On or about December 23, 1975, the above-named
lessee announced a location for drilling an oil and gas well on
the subject property and applied to the Osage Indian Agency for a
permit to drill such well, which was designated as Well No. 9-A.

7. On December 29, 1975, the aforesaid application of
the said lessee was approved by the Osage Indian Agency and a

drilling permit was issued by the Agency to the lessee.



8. Subsequent to the issuance of the said drilling per-
mit the aforesaid lessee tendered three hundred dollars ($3Q0.00)
to Yvonne Colombe Evatt, the owner of the surface of the subject
property, as the commencement fee for drilling the aforesaid Well
No. 9-A.

| 9. On January 13, 1976, and at all times subsequent
thereto, the Defendant, Jerry Evatt, has refused to allow the
aforesaid lessee ingress to the subject property for the purpose
of drilling the said Well No. 9-A.

10. There is a current shortage of petroleum products
which has stimulated drilling and production activity nationwide
in‘aid of our energy crisis. The Court is aware that such activity
has and is creating a shortage of drilling rigs and drilling crews

so that time is of the essence in cases such as this.

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

1. The United States of America is a proper party
Plaintiff to this action in that it acts as trustee or guardian
for the Osage Tribe of Indians; the owner of the oil, gas, coal
and other minerals under the subject property.

2. This Court has jurisdiction over the person of the
Defendant and the subject matter of this action.

3. Service of both the summons in this case and the
notice of the hearing set for March 4, 1976, was valid, and the
Defendant, Jerry Evatt, is wholly in default in this case.

4. The surface owner of the subject property and her
tenant hold such property subject to a statutory reservation of
minerals thereunder in the Osage Tribe of Indians (34 Stat. 539,
as amended) and the regulations for the mining and production of
such minerals promulgated by the Secretary of Interior reported
in 25 CFR Section 183.1 et seq., as revised July 22, 1974.

5. The oil and gas mining lease granted by the Osage

Tribe of Indians to Leonard, Palm and Cook Exploration, an Oklahoma

partnership, (as particularly described in Finding of Fact No. 4)



was a valid and subsisting lease on January 13, 1976, and has re-
mained so at all times subsequent thereto, up to and including the
present date.

6. The regulations promulgated by the Secretary of the
Interior, contained in 25 Code of Federal Regulations, Sections
183.19 and 183.20, as revised July 22, 1974, are valid regulations
promulgated by the .Secretary pursuant to Federal statutes author-
izing such action by him, and are controlling law in the factual
situation found in this case.

7. The above-cited regulations prbvide that before
commencing a drilling operation a lessee shall tender to the
surface owner in Osage County, Oklahoma, commencement money in
the amount of $300.00 for each well, after which such lessee shall
be entitled to immediate possession of the drilling site.

8. The oil and gas lessee of the subject property and
the Osage Tribe of Indians have complied with the above-cited
regulations of the Secretary of the Interior, and said lessee is
entitled to possession of the subject property for its drilling
operations.

9. The denial by the Defendant, Jerry Evatt, of ingress
to and possession of the subject property by the aforesaid lessee
is a violation of the rights of the said lessee and the Osage Tribe
of Indians as set forth in the above-cited regulations of the
Secretary of the Interior.

10. If the requested injunction does not issue, the
Osage Tribe of Indians will suffer irreparable harm in that they
will be deprived of the benefits of their mineral interests re-
seryed to them by Congress.

11. The above-cited regulations of the Secretary of the
Interior do not preclude recovery of damages by the surface owner,
but instead protect his rights by providing the procedure for
ascertainment of his damages, if any, caused by the lessee's
operations. The commencement fee required by the regulations does
not fix the amount of damages, but rather is used as a credit

toward payment of the total damages, if any, since such damages



cannot be ascertained until after completion of a well as a ser-
viceable well or dry hole or completion of the drilling operation.
In any event, the Defendant has an adequate remedy at law and will
suffer no harm if the injunction be issued.

12. The public interest will be served by granting the
injunction in that the public has a vital interest in the production
and conservation of energy.

13. A pefmanent injunction should be issued against the

Defendant in this case.

Entered this 2A§Z day of March, 1976.

UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA

CHARLES C. BAKER, et al,

No. 72-c-334V/
No. 72-C-335
No. 72-C-338

No. 72-C-417
ansolidated F l L E D
Under MAR 91978 K’

No. 72-C-334
Jack C. Silver, Clerk
W S, DISTRICT COI'™

Plaintiffs,
vs.

CENTRAL AND SOUTH WEST
CORPORATION, et al,

Defendants.

ORDERS AND JUDGMENT OF DISMISSAL

These consolidated causes come before the Court for
decision of various Motions which are delineated in the
Court's separate Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law
made and filed this date. With reference to said Motions,

IT IS ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED as follows:

1. Plaintiffs' Motions to Remand are denied,
and the Court retains jurisdiction of all causes of action
attempted to be stated in the Petition, including both the
second, third, fourth and sixth causes of action, which are
removable as a matter of right under 28 U.S.C. §l441l(c), as
well as the first, fifth and seventh causes of action, reten-
tion of which is discretionary with the Court under 28 U.S.C. .
§1441 (c).

| 2. Plaintiffs' "Application for Leave of Court to

File Amended Petition, District Court of Rogers County -
Further Leave to File Amendment to Petition Herein" is
sustained.

3. The Motions to Dismiss of the defendants United
States Steel Corporation, Public Service Company of Oklahoma,

Transok Pipeline Company, Central and South West Corporation,



1
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Panhandle Construction Company, Paul A. Mills, an individual,
d/b/a Moody Engineering Company, and the Kendall Company, all
of which Motions have been adopted by the defendant R. H.
Fulton, Inc., and all of which Motions, by agreement of
bcounsel, have been considered as being directed to the
plaintiffs' Petition, as amended by Amendment to Petition,
are sustaiﬁed.

4. The Findings and Recommendations of Magistrate
are sustained (except as modified herein or in the Court's
separate Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law), and
plaintiffs' Objections to Findings and Recommendations of
Magisﬁrate are overruled.

5. These consolidated actions are hereby dismissed
as to all defendants with prejudice to re-filing, so long as
the Findings and Order of the Corporation Commission of the

State 6f Oklahoma entered in Cause No. 24319, Gerald H. Barnes,

etc., Applicant v. Transok Pipeline Company, Respondent, now on

appeal in Case No. 45994, Gerald H. Barnes, Staff Counsel for

the Corporation Commission of Oklahoma, on behalf of Mr. and

Mrs. Charles Baker, et al, Appellants v. Transok Pipeline

Company, Appellee, now pending before the Supreme Court of the

State of Oklahoma, remain in full force and effect, and are
not altered in any material respect pertaining to the basic
finding that the pipeline is safe, properly designed and
constructed in substantial compliance with applicable safety

standards and regulations. -

ALLEN E. BARROW

Chief Judge

United States District Court for
the Northern District of Oklahoma



IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA

CHARLES C. BAKER, et al,

No. 72-c-334V
No. 72-C-335
No. 72-C-338
No. 72-C-417
Consolidated

Under F 1 L E D]
No. 72-C-334 MAR 9‘976 <

Jack C. Silver, Clerk -

FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW .S, DISTRICT Cono~

Plaintiffs,
vs.

CENTRAL AND SOUTH WEST
CORPORATION, et al,

L R N R e L T S S D g

Défendants.

These consolidated causes (all being removal actions filed
by different defendants in the same state court case) come on
for decision on this z,d day of 7 €1+ Z ., 1976, upon
plaintiffs*® Objections to Findings and Recommendations of
Magistrate. ’The Findings and Recommendations in question were
rendered by fhe Magistrate, after extensive briefing énd oral
argument by counsel for the parties, upon the following Motions:

1. Plaintiffs' Motiomsto Remand (filed in all four cases);

2. Motion of Defendant United States Steel
Corporation to Dismiss;

3. Motion of Defendants Public Service Company
of Oklahoma and Transok Pipeline Company to
Dismiss;

4, Motion of Defendant Central and South West
Corporation to Dismiss;

5. Motion of Kendall Company to Dismiss as set
forth in its Answer;

6. Plaintiffs' "Application for Leave of Court
to File Amended Petition, District Court of
Rogers County - Further Leave to File
Amendment to Petition Herein";

7. Motion of Defendant Panhandle Construction
Company to Dismiss;

8. Motion of Defendant Paul A. Mills, an
Individual, d/b/a Moody Engineering Company,
to Dismiss; ‘



9. The various Motions to Dismiss were adopted
by the Defendant R. H. Fulton, Inc.

Supplemental briefs have been filed in connection with the
plaintiffs® Objections to Findings and Recommendations of
Magistrate, and these have been considered and studied at
length by the Court, together with the briefs originally
submitted to the Magistrate, the pleadings and other contents
of the Court file.

Preliminarily, the Court would comment that for reasons
which will become apparent below, it has for some time stayed
its hand in ruling on this matter in the hope that an early
decision might be forthcoming in Case No. 45994, Gerald H.

Barnes, Staff Counsel for the Corporation Commission of

Oklahoma, on behalf of Mr. and Mrs. Charles Baker, et al,

appellants, vs. Transok Pipe Line Company, appellee, now

pending before the Supreme Court of the State of Oklahoma.

The Court was of the view that having the benefit of the
Oklahoma Supreme Court's decision would expedite the ultimate
disposition of these cases, and reduce the chances of ﬁultiple
litigation. Additionally the Court considered general
principles of comity and abstention. See, on a somewhat
related question, the dissenting opinion of Judge Brown in

W. S. Ranch Company v. Kaiser Steel Corporation, 388 F.2d

257, 262 (10th Cir. 1968), reversed, 391 U.S. 593, 20 L.Ed.2d
835, 88 S. Ct. 1753 (1968).

The Court is now of the view, however, that it should no
longer postpone its ruling ;n these cases. The appeal before
the Oklahoma Supreme Court involves a long and complicated
record; the fact questions presented are technical, and

require an evaluation of complex evidence, much of which is



expert. It is unclear how much longer the review process
will require in that case. The Court feels that the parties
to these actions deserve, and the administration of justice
requires, that a ruling be issued at this time.

The Court makes the following Findings of Fact:

1. These consolidated cases are all removal actions
involving the same state court case, which was brought as a
class action seeking to recover compensatory damages
and punitive damages on behalf of certain named individuals
"... and all other parties similarly situated along or near
[the] TRANSOK PIPELINE COMPANY ... [natural gas] transmission
pipeline from Ames, Oklahoma to Oologah, Oklahoma ...."

2. The defendants consist of the owner of the
pipeline in question (and its parent corporations), the
contractors who constructed the pipeline, and certain suppliers
of materials or services used in constructing the pipeline.

3. The Petition, while being overly long, verbose,
repetitive, and shot through with irrelevancies, apparently
attempts to state seven causes of action, each for more than
$10,000 exclusive of interest and costs, as follows: all
causes of action are predicated on voluminous allegations
that the pipeline is unsafe; the first cause of action lies
jointly against the owner and its parent corporations on
theories of trespass,nuisance, and creation of an ultra-
hazardous condition; the second through seventh causes of
action are alleged respectively against the supplier of the
steel pipe (second cause of action), a testing company
(third cause of action), the construction contractors
(fourth cause of action), a second testing and inspection

company (fifth cause of action), a supplier of protective



plastic wrapping material (sixth cause of action), and a third
testing company (seventh cause of action); the second through
seventh causes of action appear to be predicated on the theories
of breach of warranty, strict liability, negligence, products
liability and/or defective workmanship.

4. After removal petitions were filed in this Court
in Case Nos. 72-C-334, 72-C-335 and 72-C-338, but before the
removal petition was filed in Case No. 72-C-417, the plaintiffs
filed an "Amended Petition” in the state court. The sole
purpose of this "Amended Petition" is to allege that the
defendant (and petitioner for removal in Case No. 72-C-417)
Paul A. Mills, d/b/a Moody Engineering Company, is doing
business as an individual, and not, as had originally been
alleged, as a corporation named "Moody‘Engineering Company".
Without ruling on the propriety or effectiveness of this
"Amended Petition" (filed, as it was, after three removal
petitions had been filed in this Court), all further references
herein to the Petition will include the allegations of the
"Amended Petition", since they go only to the form of business
organizétion of one of the parties defendant, and since, as
set forth below, that defendant has filed a Motion to Dismiss
attacking the in personam jurisdiction of this Court.

5. There is complete diversity of citizenship and
jurisdictional emount between plaintiffs on the one hand, and
the respective defendant or defendants named in each of the
second, third, fourth and sigth causes of action. The
defendant or defendants named in each of said causes of action
have filed removal petitions, and plaintiffs have filed motions
to remand. There are thus presented questions of whether the

second, third, fourth and sixth causes of action are removable



as a matter of right under 28 U.S.C. §1441l(c) as being separate
and independent claims or causes of action, and if so (as to
one or more of said second, third, fourth or sixth causes of
action), whether the Court should exercise its discretion and
retain jurisdiction of the entire case under 28 U.S.C. §l441(c).
6. In this Court, the‘plaintiffs have filed an
"Applicatiqn for Leave of Court to File Amended Petition,
District Court of Rogers County - Further Leave to File
Amendment to Petition Herein". This "Application" is a rather
transparent attempt to defeat removal by amending the Petition
so as to lump together all causes of action against all
defendants, and thereby delete any "separate and independent
claim or cause of action". Regardless of its disposition of
this "Application", the Court must, under familiar principles,
rule on the question of remand and removability based on the
pleadings as of the time the case was properly removed. 28

U.S.C. §§1441(c), 1447(c); Brown v. Eastern States Corporation,

181 F.24 26, 28-9 (4th Cir. 1950): Jacks v. Torrington Company,

256 F.Supp. 282 (D. S.C. 1966). See also Hazel Bishop, Inc. V.

Per femme, 314 F.2d4 399 (2nd Cir. 1963); Espino v. Volkswagen de

Puerto Rico, Inc., 289 F.Supp. 979 (D. Puerto Rico 1968); Marsh

v. Tillie Lewis Foods, Inc., 257 F.Supp. 645 (W.D. S.D. 1966).

7. The Petition contains the following allegations,
among others:

a)v That the pipeline in question was constructed
in the latter part of 1970 and early 1971;

b) That preliminéfy to construction, the owner,
Transok Pipeline Company ("Transok") obtained the necessary
right-of-way for the pipeline in question; that in some
instances, this right-of-way was acquired involuntarily
by eminent domain, and in other instances, was acquired

voluntarily in the form of easements acquired in lieu of
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condemnation (The Court notes that under Oklahoma law,
a condemnor must first attempt to acquire the property
interest in question by voluntary settlement with the land
owner in lieu of condemnation, see 66 O0.S.A. §§52-3); the
Court also takes notice of the reported decision of the
condemnation action against the plaintiffs Charles and

Dorothy Baker, see Transok Pipeline Company v. Adams, 488

P.2d 1256 (Okla. 1971);

c) That in January, 1971, the plaintiffs Charles
.and Dorothy Baker initiated a proceeding before the
Oklahoma Corporation Commission, challenging the safety
of the pipeline, and seeking an Order enjoining its use
and operation;‘that on July 28, 1972, after a three week
trial on the merits of the safety issue, the Corporation
Commission found the pipeline safe and denied the
injunctive relief sought by the complainants; that it
is this decision'which is presently on appeal to the
Oklahoma Supreme Court in Case No. 45994 .

8. In addition to money damages, the instant action,
which was filed after the Oklahoma Corporation Commission
issued its decision, also seeks to enjoin use and operationv
of the pipeline. The pipeline has apparently operated without
incident since issuance of the Corporation Commission‘s decision
in July of 1972; in any event, no safety-related incidents have
been brought to the attention of the Court.

9. Numerous defendants have filed motions to dismiss
on subject matter jurisdictional grounds. Their argument is that
the Oklahoma Corporation Commission has exclusive jurisdiction
to adjudicate, and in fact has adjudicated, the merits of the
safety of the pipeline in question; that with the pipeline
having been found to be safe and properly constructed, all

damages to which the plaintiffs are entitled have in fact been
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paid in condemnation proceedings, or in voluntary settlements
in lieu of condemnation; and that the plaintiffs have not
stated a claim for relief, either injunctive or for money
damages, against any of the defendants. Additionally, the
defendants argue that all issues sought to be adjudicated by
plaintiffs in this action have alréady been adjudicated in the
Corporation Commission'proceeding, and this action is barred
on the theories of res judicata or collateral estoppel.
Lastly, the defendants Central and South West Corpofation and
Paul A. Mills, an individual, d/b/a Moody Engineering Company,
move to dismiss upon the grounds that this Court lacks in
personam jurisdiction as to them, for the reason that no basis
exists for the assertion of long-arm jurisdiction.

10. In connection with the Corporation Commission
proceeding, the Report of Referee (some 18 pages in length),
together with the Commission's Findings and Order (some 7
pages in length), are attached as exhibits to the Motion to
Di;miss of the defendants Transok and Public Service Company
of Oklahoma. It is clear from these lengthy documents,
analyzing the evidence heard by the Corporation Commission,
that the question of safety of this pipeline was fully and
meticulously litigated in an adversary proceeding. The
Commission heard many witnesses, most of them expert, and
the testimony of some 22 of them is summarized in the
Referee's Report. The record comprised some 2300 pages.

The Referee's Report touches on most, if not all, of the
specific complaints concerning the pipeline's safety which
are included in the Petition in this Court. Likewise, the
Commission's own Findings and Order cover these same issues.

The concluding Finding of the Corporation Commission



Referee is as follows:

"The overwhelming preponderance of the
evidence is that the pipeline is a safe
pipeline and substantially complies with
the requirements of the Pipeline Safety
Code as adopted by the Corporation Commission
of Oklahoma.

"The Referee therefore recommends that the
Application of Complainants be denied and
dismissed."”
The Referee's Report was found by the full Commission to
be "proper and correct and should be affirmed". The Commission
made further additional Findings, which in pertinent part are
as follows:
"The Commission finds that the line was
designed and constructed in a safe manner
and substantially complies with the appli-
cable safety regulations. The Commission
finds that the hydrostatic test completed
on the pipeline in November, 1970, proved its
integrity and showed that the line, as of that
date, was safe for its intended use."
As an added precaution, the Corporation Commission required
that the pipeline be hydrostatically tested at a pressure of 1.5
times its maximum operating pressure for a 24 hour period some

time between July 1, 1975 and December 31, 1975, and similarly

tested at each five year interval thereafter.

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

1. Removal jurisdiction (which is judged on the pleadings
as of the time of removal - see Finding Number 6 above) exists
under Title 28 U.S.C. §1441(c), in that there are separate and
independent claims or causes of action stated in the second,
third, fourth and sixth causes of action set forth in plaintiffs?
petition, together with diversity of citizenship and jurisdictional
amount as to each such separate and independent claim or

cause of action; Climax Chemical Company v. C. F. Braun

& Co., et al, 370 F.2d 616 (l0th Cir. 1966). As to the
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remainder of plaintiffs' action, the Court concludes that it
should exercise its discretion and retain jurisdiction there-
over, in that the remaining causes of action involve questions
of law and fact which are common and overlapping with those
contained in the second, third, fourth and sixth causes of
action, and retention of the entire.case by the Court will
avoid a muitiplicity of.litigation, will achieve a savings of
time and expense for the parties, attorneys, Court personnel
and potential witnesses involved, and generally will result in
a savings of judicial time, energy and expense in litigating
this matter. Plaintiffs' Motions to Remand should therefore
be denied.

‘2. Plaintiffs! "Application for Leave of Court to File
Amended Petition, District Court or Rogers County -~ Further
Leave to File Amendment to Petition Herein" should be granted.

3. The subject matter jurisdiction of this Court in a
removal action is derivative, i.e., this Court can exercise
only such jurisdiction as could the state court from which these

consolidated actions were removed, and no more. Lambert Run

Coal Co. v. Baltimore & Ohio Railroad Co., 258 U.S. 377 (1921);

Beckman v. Graves, 360 F.2d 148 (10th Cir. 1960); Grand River

Dam Authority v. Parker, 40 F.Supp. 82 (N.D. Okla. 1941).

4. Under Oklahoma law, the Corporation Commission has
exclusive subject matter jurisdiction to determine the safety
of the pipeline in question. 52 O.S.A. §§5 et seq.; 17 O0.S.A.

§52; Oklahoma Constitution, Article IX, §§18 to 20; State ex rel

Oklahoma Natural Gas Co. v. Hughes, 204 Okla. 134, 227 P.2d 666

(1951) ; Oklahoma Natural Gas Co. v. White Eagle 0il Co., 312

P.2d 879 (Okla. 1957); Southwestern Natural Gas Co. v. Cherokee

Public Service Co., 172 Okla. 325, 44 pP.2d 945 (1935);:.cf.




Shell 0il Co. v. Keen, 355 P.2d 997 (Okla. 1960), construing

52 0.S.A. §87.1

5. The Oklahoma Corporation Commission has, in response
to the complaint of plaintiffs Charles and Dorothy Baker,
exercised its exclusive jurisdiction to determine the safety
of this pipeline, and in a full and complete adversary trial
of the merits, has found the pipeline safe, properly and
safely designed and constructed in substantial compliance
with applicable safety regulations and standards. This deci-
sion is currently on appeal to the Oklahoma Supreme Court.

6. Assuming the pipeline to be safe, as the Corporation
Commission has found, the plaintiffs have already received
all.money damages to which they are entitled in the various
condemnation actions and settlements in liéu of condemnation
consummated in connection with acquisition of the necessary
pipeline right-of-way, and the damages alleged in this
proceeding are not actionable. A judgment in a condemnation
proceeding is conclusive as to all damages which were or

might have been included in the award. Graham v. City of

Duncan, 354 P.2d 458 (Okla. 1960). This same rule applies
if the property interest in question is obtained by wvoluntary
settlement in lieu of condemnation, instead of by an adversary

condemnation proceeding. Poston v. City of McAlester, 132

Okla. 4, 268 P. 1110 (1928). Damages recoverable. in condem-
nation proceedings include the impairment or depreciation in
value of remaining land owned by the condemnee and not taken;
Aand the annoyance and/or inconvenience inherent in the
entérprise for which the property interest was condemned.

Grand River Dam Authority v. Gray, 192 Okla. 547, 138 P.2d

100 (1943); Cities Service Gas Co. v. Huebner, 200 Okla. 521,

- 10 ~
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197 P.2d 985 (1948); Cities Service Gas Co. v. Williams, 200

Okla. 525,198 P.2d 204 (1948); and Oklahoma Gas and Electric

Co. v. Kelly, 177 Okla. 206, 58 P.2d 328 (1936).

7. Operation of a safe pipeline, properly and safely
designed and constructed in substantial compliance with
applicable safety standards and regulations, does not constitute
an actionable taking from persons living near the piéeline but
whose property is not traversed thereby. Damage must be
specific and not general to be actionable, and persons living
near a safe pipeline but whose property is not crossed by it
suffer "... no other or different kind of grievance or damage
than such as is common to the general public, and [they] ...

cannot recover". Choctaw, 0. & W. Ry. Co. v. Castanien, 23

Okla. 735, 102 P. 88 (1909).

8. Operation of a safe pipeline, properly designed and
constructed in accordance with applicable safety regulations
and standards, on right-of-way lawfully acquired for just
compensation pursuant to applicable state condemnation law,
does not constitute actionable nﬁisance or trespass. 50 O.S.A.

§4; E. I. Du Pont De Nemours Powder Co. v. Dodson, 49 Okla. 58,

150 P. 1085 (1915); Weaver v. Bishop, 174 Okla. 492, 52 P.2d

853 (1935); see also 58 Am.Jur.2d, Nuisances §228; Anno. -

Pipeline as Nuisance, 75 A.L.R. 1325; Humble Pipe Line Co. V.

Anderson, 339 S.W.2d 259, 265 (Tex. 1960).

9. The case of Grevhowmd Leasing & Financial Corpcration

v. Joiner City Unit, 444 F.2d~439 (10th Cir. 1971) is inappli-
cable and distinguishable for the following reasons, among

others: First, in the Greyhound Leasing case, the Orders and
Findings of the Oklahoma Corporation Commission were not being

challenged nor otherwise subject to collateral attack. As

- 1l1l -
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Judge Seth put it:

"This is not a collateral attack on any
order of the Commission as no order is
drawn in issue. The defendant seeks to
have the general administrative powers
and machinery protect it from liability
in these proceedings, but no party is
urging that the orders of the Commission
are wrong or challenging them indirectly."
444 F.2d at 445 (emphasis supplied).

In the present case the ?etition, as amended by Amendment to

Petition, is replete with allegations on virtually every page

- that the pipeline is unsafe in one or more particulars, and is

clearly an attempt to re-litigate the entire safety issue.

Second, in the Grevhound Leasing case, the Court was of the

opinion that private property had been taken for private use

in violation of Article II, §23, of the Oklahoma Constitution.
In the case at bar, however, the takings have been for public
use pursuant to the exercise of lawfully delegated condgmnation
authority. The public nature of the takings and Transok's

power of eminent domain may not be questioned. Transok Pipeline

Company v. Adams, supra. Since the takings here have been for

public use, all compensation required under law has already been

paid. This was not true in the Court's view in Greyhound Leasing,

where the taking had been for pfivate use and no compensation
paid.

10. The plaintiffs in these consolidated actions cannot
prevail in the face of the Findings and Order of the Corporation
Commission of the State of Oklahoma. So long as said Findings
and Order remain in full force and effect, and are not altered
in any material respect pertaining to the basic finding that the
pipeline is safe, properly designed and constructed in substantial
compliance with applicable safety standards and regulations,
plaintiffs’ Petition; as amended by Amendment to Petition, fails

to state a claim for relief and is wholly groundless.

-12 -



. N
. . |

11. Plaintiff's Petition, as amended by Amendment to
Petition, does not state a claim upon which relief can be
granted against any of the defendants on any of the causes
of action alleged.

12. The Motions to Dismiss for lack of subject matter
jurisdiction, and because the Petition, as amended by Amend-
ment to Petition, fails to state a claim for relief, should
be sustained. The Findings and Recommendations of Magistrate
should be sustained (except as modified herein or in the
Court's separate Orders and Judgment of Dismissal entered
this date), and the Objections thereto should be overruled.

13. The Court is not required to reach nor does it pass
upoﬁ the defense of res judicata and/or collateral estoppel,
nor the defense of lack of in personam jurisdiction under the
Oklahoma long-arm statutes raised by the defendants Central
and South West Corporation and Paul A. Mills, an individual,

d/b/a Moody Engineering Company.

ALLEN E. BARROW

Chief Judge

United States District Court for -
the Northern District of Oklahoma

- 13 -



IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA

CHAMPLIN PETROLEUM COMPANY,
a Delaware corporation,

Plaintiff,

vSs. No. 74-C-320
DONALD C. INGRAM;

JOHN C. INGRAM:;

TRUST B CREATED BY THE LAST WILL AND
TESTAMENT OF JAY P. WALKER, DECEASED,
and THE FIRST NATIONAL BANX AND TRUST
COMPANY OF TULSA, ROSS T. WARNER and
HORACE D. BALLAINE, as Trustees
thereof;

TRUST C CREATED BY THE LAST WILL AND
TESTAMENT OF JAY P. WALKER, DECEASED,
and THE FIRST NATIONAL BANK AND TRUST
COMPANY OF TULSA, R0OSS T. WARNER and
HORACE D. BALLAINE, as Trustees
thereof:

CHARITABLE TRUST CREATED BY PARAGRAPH
6 OF ARTICLE I OF THE LAST WILL AND
TESTAMENT OF JAY P. WALKER, DECEASED,
and THE FIRST NATIONAL BANK AND TRUST
COMPANY OF TULSA, ROSS T. WARNER and
HORACE D. BALLAINE, as Trustees
thereof;

DONNA JO COOPER:

MARTHA WALKER STURTEVANT TRUST and
THE FIRST NATIONAL BANK AND TRUST
COMPANY OF TULSA, as Trustee thereof;
GUY O. MARCHANT;

CAROL JEAN WALKER, a minor, and
JUDITH WALKER, Guardian of her
Estate;

MARTHA WALKER STURTEVANT:

WARNER INVESTMENT COMPANY, an Oklahoma
corporation;

NONA C. SHUDDE ANNUITY TRUST and
DOUGLASS D. HEARNE, as Trustee
thereof; and

THE ESTATE OF W. F. KNODE, DECEASED,
and MARGARET KNODE and RALPH WILL,
Executors thereof;

EILED
MAR 16

Jack C. Silver, Clerk
U.:S. DISTRICT coireT

Defendants.

vvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvv\/\/\/\)vvvvvvvvvvvvvvvv

JUDGMENT

This action was filed as a complaint for interpieader
pursuant to Title 28, United States Code, § 1335. Plaintiff,

Champlin Petroleum Company, is a Delaware corporation organized



and existing under the laws of the State of Delaware. The de-
fendants, Donald C. Ingram; John C. Ingram; Donna Jo Cooper;
Carol Jean Walker, a minor; and Judith Walker, guardian of

her estate; are residents within the United States Judicial
District for the Central District of California. The defendants,
Trust B Created by the Last Will and Testament of Jay P. Walker,
deceased, and the First National Bank and Trust Company of Tulsa,
Ross T. Warner and Horace D. Ballaine, as Trustees thereo%; Trust
C Created by the Last Will and Testament of Jay P. Walker, de-
ceased, and the First National Bank and Trust Company of Tulsa,
Ross T. Warner and Horace D. Ballaine, as Trﬁstees thereof;
Charitable Trust Created by Paragraph 6 of Article I of the Last
Will and Testament of Jay P. Walker, deceased, and the First
National Bank and Trust Company of Tulsa, Ross T. Warner and
Horace D. Ballaine, as Trustees thereof; Martha Walker Sturtevant
Trust and the First National Bank and Trust Company of Tulsa, as
Trustees thereof; and Warner Investment Company, an Oklahoma
corporation; are residents within the United States Judicial
District for the Northern District of Oklahoma. The defendants,
Nona C. Shudde Annuity Trust and Douglass D. Hearne, as Trustee
thereof; are residents within the United States Judicial District
for the Western District of Texas. The defendant, Martha Walker
Sturtevant, is resident within the United States Judicial District
for the Eastern District of Missouri. The defendants, the Estate
of W. F. Knode, Deceased, and Margaret Knode and Ralph Will,
Executors thereof; are residents in Calgary, Alberta, Canada.

The defendant, Guy O. Marchant, is resident within the United
States Judicial District for the Western District of Oklahoma.
The plaintiff, Champlin Petroleum Company, has deposited in this
Court an amount in excess of $500.00. The Court finds that the
parties are citizens of the jurisdictions alleged as residency
and that the citizenship of two or more of the adverse claimants

is diverse as provided by Title 28, U.S.C., § 1332. The jurisdic-



tional requirements have been met and therefore the Court has
jurisdiction to hear this matter. Under Title 28, U.S.C. § 1397,

venue is proper in this Court as at least one or more of the

claimants reside in the Northern District of Oklahoma.

Plaintiff, Champlin Petroleum Company, (hereinafter "Champlin"),
is the operator but is not a working interest owner. Defendants,
Donald C. Ingram and John C. Ingram, (hereinafter "Ingrams"), are
royalty interest owners. All of the other defendants are gas
working interest owners. The case was tried before the Court on
February 9, 1976, with all the parties present or represented
by counsel. All parties having rested, the case is ready for
disposition on the merits. In considering the merits of this
case, the Court has considered the entire record and is fully
advised in the premises.

This case centers on a dispute concerning the correct inter-
pretation of two clauses of a Supplemental Lease and Agreement
entered into on September 3, 1941, between Donald M. Ingram,
Trustee (Trustee by instrument dated December 23, 1933) as lessor
and the Process 0il Company as lessee. (Plaintiff's Exhibit #2).
Donald M. Ingram, now deceased, was the father of the defendant
Ingrams. The disputed clauses pertain to the payment of royalties
and are part of paragraph eight of the Supplemental Lease and
Agreement. Clause 8(b) provides in part:

"(b) As of June 1, 1941, Lessor reserves

and Lessee agrees to pay to the Lessor a
one-tenth (1/10) part of the gross proceeds
of all gas, condensate, distillate, gasoline
or other liquid hydrocarbon substances pro-
duced or extracted from gas produced from
all the leased lands. 'Gross proceeds'
shall mean all the proceeds from the sale

of gas or the products thereof from the
lgased lands, less taxes as herein pro-
v1de@ to be paid by Lessor and less any
commission required to be paid in connection -
with the sale of products. * * * % v

Clause 8(c) provides in part:

"(c) On gas, including gas, casinghead gas
or other gaseous substances (condensate or

Qistillate referred to in (b) above not
included) produced from said land and sold



off the said premises or in the manufacture
of gasoline or other products thereof,
Lessor reserves and Lessee agrees to pay
one-eighth (1/8) part of the market value
at the well of the gas so sold and (or)
used off the premises, provided that on

gas sold at the wells, the royalty shall

be one-eighth (1/8) of the amount realized
from such sale."

Under the Supplemental Lease and Agreement, Process 0il
Company agreed, as lessee, to operate and maintain a re-cycling
plant on the premises for the purpose of processing the gas and
extracting liguids and products. On February 8, 1943, Process
0il Company, with the consent of Donald M. Ingram, Trustee,
entered into a Gas Sales, Processing and Sales Agreement with
the Chicago Corporation. (Plaintiff's Exhibit #4). The Chicago
Corporation merged with Champlin Refining Co. on December 31,
1956. The surviving corporation was named Champlin 0il and
Refining Co. and was later changed to Champlin Petroleum Company.
Under the Gas Sales, Processing and Sales Agreement the Chicago
Corporation (now the plaintiff herein) agreed among other things
to pay the royalty owner his royalty from the gas working interest
owner's share of the proceeds and thereafter pay the balance of
the proceeds to the working interest owners. Under this agree-
ment the plaintiff is responsible for disbursing the proceeds
from the sale of products and liquid hydrocarbons extracted,
separated and saved from gas (hereinafter "product proceeds")
and the proceeds received from the sale of all residue gas
(hereinafter "residue proceeds").

"Residue gas" as defined in the Supplemental Lease and
Agreement means "gas which has been passed through Lessee's
processing plant" (Plaintiff's Exhibit #2 page 7). "Residue

gas" is that gas which remains after the mainstream has been

run through a plant and liquids and other hydrocarbons have been
extracted. After the mainstream of gas is processed through

the re-cycling plant, the substance remaining is called "residue

gas", and is also known as "dry gas" or "tailgate gas". (As used



herein "residue gas", "dry gas" and "tailgate gas" are
synonyms.) The "residue gas" is either returned to the for-
mation and utilized as an absorbing agent for the purpose of
aiding in the removal of crude material from the well or is
sold in the market if the market price of "residue gas"” is
high or the formation has been exhausted of its crude material.
It is the proper distribution of the revenue (residue proceeds)
received from the sale of "residue gas" that is in dispute.

The defendant Ingrams claim that the royalty interest
owners are entitled to one-eighth (1/8) of the residue proceeds
in accordance with paragraph 8(c) of the Supplemental 0il and
Gas Mining Lease. All of the remaining defendants (working
interest owners) claim that the defendant royalty interest
owners are entitled to only one-tenth (1/10) of the residue
proceeds in accordance with paragraph 8(b) of the Supplemental
0il and Gas Mining Lease.

The defendant Ingrams argue that clause 8(c) applies to
the distribution of residue proceeds by virtue of a straight-
forward interpretation of the January 31, 1936, 0il and Gas
Mining Lease between John Clarence Ingram and Donald M. Ingram,
Trustees, lessor, and W. F. Knode, Trustee, lessee (Plaintiff's
Exhibit #1), the Supplemental Lease and Agreement (Plaintiff's
Exhibit #2), the Assignment of Lease from Process 0il Co. to
The Chicago Corporation, (Plaintiff's Exhibit #3), the Gas Sales,
Processing and Sales Agreement dated February 8, 1943, (Plaintiff's
Exhibit #4), and various other Exhibits which relate to subsequent
division orders and questions between various persons concerning
the interpretation of clauses 8(b) and 8(c). The Ingrams point
out that paragraph 3(a) and (b) of the 0il and Gas Mining Lease
dated January 31, 1936, provides for a one-eighth (1/8) royalty
for all oil and gas. The Ingrams argue that the Supplemental

Lease and Agreement is weighted with the concern of the parties



regarding the construction of a re-cycling plant and the removal

of liquid hydrocarbons. Their contention is premised on the

statement found on page oOne of the Supplemental Lease and Agree-

ment which states in part:

"WHEREAS, Lessee has drilled upon the above
described real property certain gas wells
(as hereinafter defined) and has operated

or caused to be operated a re-cycling plant
for the absorption and condensation of
gasoline, distillate and other liquid hydro-
carbons from gas produced from the leased

lands; . . - ’
and clause 8(d) which states in part:

" (d) Lessor shall receive royalties as
provided in sub-paragraphs (b) and (c)
above, regardless of the percentages which
may be paid to Lessee Or its assigns by
Pintas Gas Products Company, a corporation,
or by any party extracting or processing
for Lessee the products therein referred

to. * * * "
In addition the Ingrams look to the portions of the Purchase
Contract and Processing Agreement Between The Chicago Corporation
and Process Oil Company dated February 8, 1943, (Plaintiff's
Exhibit #4), which pertain to the producing and processing of
gas. The Ingrams contend that this agreement indicates that
the primary concern of The Chicago Corporation and Process 0Oil
Company was the processing of liquid hydrocarbons and the re-
cycling of "residue" or "tailgate” gas back into the formations
in order to extract more gas from the formations. Under this
agreement The Chicago Corporation (now plaintiff) receives 55%
of the proceeds from the sale of liquids or condensates and 50%
from the sale of the residue or dry gas, and Process 0Oil Company
(now working interests) receivés 45% less 1/10th for the sale of
liquids and 50% less 1/10th for the sale of residue gas. The
main contention of the Ingrams is that'"residue gas" was treated
as a-special category by the Supplemental Lease and Agreement and
the agreements surrounding the extraction and processing of
residue gas and therefore clause 8 (c) was supplied to provide a
one-eighth (1/8) distribution on residue proceeds. The argument

follows that the special attention given to residue proceeds



explains the purpose of having two separate clauses pertaining
to royalties on gas. In taking the Ingrams' argument to its
logical conclusion there would have been little need for clause
8(c) if the rovalty on "residue proceeds” was to be paid at the
same rate as product proceeds under clause 8(b).

The plaintiff and working interest owners argue that clause
8(b) of the Supplemental Lease and Agreement (Plaintiff's Ex-
hibit #2) provides for the payment of one-tenth (1/10) royalty
on the proceeds of products and residue gas so long as the main-
stream was processed by Process 0il Company (prior to 1943) or
by The Chicago Corporation or the plaintiff (after 1943) under
the Lease Agreement and not sold at the well. Plaintiff and
working interest owners contend that clause 8{(c) was made a
part of the Supplemental Lease and Agreement of 1941 in order
to provide royalty paymenté on gas which was sold to third
parties before processing. Plaintiff and working interest owners
contend that since Process 0Oil Company was required to process
gas without cost to Donald M. Ingram, Trusfee, under the Supple-
mental Lease and Agreement of 1941, clause 8(b) of that agreement
provided for a royalty payment of one-tenth (1/10) of the proceeds
of all the products as well as one-tenth (1/10) of the proceeds
of the residue gas. Since the value of the processed gas is
greater than the value of the raw gas at the well, an advantage
accrued to the Trust over which Donald M. Ingram was Trustee
in having the gas processed rather than sold at the well. Plain-
tiff and working interest owners conclude that, since the value
of the processed gas is greater than the value of gas at the well
and since the trust was not burdened with the cost of processing,
the Trustee was paid one-tenth (1/10) royalty on the products
and residue. waever, in the event that théﬁgas was sold at the
well, the value was less and no processing cost was levied re-
sulting in a royalty payment of one-eighth (1/8). This interpre-

tation of the disputed provisions of the Supplemental Lease and



Agreement shows the need for two separate clauses in regard to

the payment of royalties. plaintiff and working interest owners

conclude that residue proceeds must be payable under clause 8(b)

because no residue gas is apparent where the gas is not processed

but rather sold at the well under the provisions of clause 8(c).

The term "residue gas" or its synonyms are not found in

either 8(b) or 8(c) of the Supplemental Lease and Agreement. AS
applied to "residue gas" clauses 8(b) and 8(c) are ambiguous and

do not by their terms clearly reflect the intent of the parties

in regard to the payment of royalties on "residue gas." Where
a contract is susceptible to two constructions the Court will
adopt a construction which is reasonable and probable. See

National Sur. Corp. v. Western Fire and Indem. Co., 318 F.2d

379 (5th Cir. 1963). Where the contract is not clear or where
the meaning is doubtful the Court may consider the acts of the
parties and interpret the disputed provisions in accordance

with the construction placed upon them by the parties. See Esso

Intern., Inc., v. S.S. Captain John, 443 F. 24 1144 (5th Cir.

1971); Fowler v. Penn. Tire Co., 326 F.2d 526 (5th Cir. 1964);

Skaggs v. Heard, 172 F.Supp. 813 (S.D.Tex. 1959).

The exhibits submitted and made a part of the record
clearly show that The Chicago Corporation and its successor
(plaintiff herein) paid and that Donald M. Ingram, Trustee and
his successors (Ingrams herein) accepted the royalty payment
on gas in the amount of one-tenth (1/10) of 8/8ths from 1943
until 1974 when the Ingrams initiated litigation in the 94th
District Court of Nueces County, Texas. In a letter from Process
0il Company to Donald M. Ingram, Trustee, dated April 8, 1943,
the royalty payment is stated to be one-tenth (1/10). (Plain-
tiff's Exhibit #12). In 1943, Donald M. Ingram ex;cuted a Gas
and Condensate Division Order wherein the division of interest
was stated to be one-tenth (1/10) of 8/8ths of all gas including

natural gasoline, condensate, and other products that may be



e e
condensed, absorbed or separated out of or from gas. (Plaintiff's

Exhibit #7D). From 1944 antil 1965 Donald M. Ingram, Trustee,

received statements from The Chicago Corporation and Champlin

which indicate that the royalty payment on gas and products
was one-tenth (1/10). (Plaintiff's Exhibit #8). 1In 1965 the

Ingrams executed a Gas and Condensate Division Order which pro-
vides for a 5% division of interest for Donald C. Ingram and a

5% division of interest for John C. Ingram on all gas, including
natural gasoline, condensate, and other products that may be
condensed, absorbed or separated out of or from gas. (Plaintiff's
Exhibit #18).

At trial the Ingrams testified that they signed the division
orders because their father, Donald M. Ingram, had advised them
that it was alright to sign the orders and that they knew noth-
ing about the distribution of royalties. From 1965 until 1974
the Ingrams received royalty statements which indicate the royalty
payment to be one-tenth (1/10) on product and residue proceeds.
(Plaintiff's Exhibit #11). For a period of thirty (30) years
the royalty payment has been a one-tenth (1/10) part of the gross
proceeds of all gas including "residue gas" produced or extracted
from gas. "Gross Proceeds" is defined in clause 8(b) to include
"all the proceeds from the sale of gas or the products thereof
from the leased lands" less taxes and commissions as stated. The
construction placed on clause 8(b) of the Supplemental Lease and
Agreement by the parties to the agreement was that residue pro-
ceeds were to be paid at the rate of one-tenth (1/10) of 8/8ths
and that clause 8(b) governed such payment of residue proceeds.
This is convincing support for a finding by the Court that the
parties intended that clause 8(b) of the Supplemental Lease and
Agreement be applied in de%érmining the proper distribﬁtion of
proceeds derived from "residue” or "dry gas."

A reasonable construction of the ambiguous terms of the

Supplemental Lease and Agreement leads to the conclusion that the



parties intended that clause 8(b) apply in the event that gas
and products are produced or extracted by the plaintiff from

gas produced (removed) from the leased premises. Clause 8(c)
does not speak in terms of liquid hydrocarbon substances "pro-
duced or extracted from gas" produced from all the leased lands
but rather refers to gas "produced" (removed) from said land and
sold off the premises. Therefore clause 8(b) makes reference

to production (processing) after the gas is produced (removed)
from the leased premises. A reasonable interpretation of the
Supplemental Lease and Agreement of 1941 leads to the conclusion
that the parties to this agreement were concerned about the oper-
ation of a re-cycling plant as a means of processing gas and gas
products. The 0il and Gas Mining Lease of 1936 provided for
payment of one-eighth on both o0il and gas. (Plaintiff's Exhibit
#1). The 1936 agreement did not include terms concerning the
operation of a re-cycling plant. In providing for the distri-
bution of royalties, it is logical that the parties included
clause 8(b) in the 1941 agreement to cover’payment for processed
gas and residue and that clause 8(c) was intended to govern when
gas was not processed by the plaintiff. With some variation
clause 8(c) of the Supplemental Lease and Agreement is very
similar to clause 3(b) of the 0il and Gas Mining Lease of 1936.
In 1941 the parties provided for royalties on processed gas and
products by drafting clause 8(b). It is reasonable to assume
that they would have specifically exempted "residue gas" from
the one-tenth (1/10) royalty if they had desired to provide a
royalty of one-eighth (1/8) on residue gas. As the royalty
interest owners have suggested, the 1941 agreement addresses
itself to the re-cycling operation. Where the parties have
emphasized royalties on processed gas, it is.unlikely tﬁé£ they
would ha&é overlooked a specific reference to residue gas if
they had desired to provide a one-eighth (1/8) royalty.

For the reasons stated herein it is the finding and conclusion

~10~-



of the Court that clause 8(b) of the Supplemental Lease
and Agreement of 1941 governs the payment of royalties on
"residue gas" and that the payments heretofore deposited in
this Court in accordance with the complaint foryinterpleader
are the property of the wérking interest owners as described
herein. Having so interpreted the disputed clauses of the 1941
agreement, the Court has no need and therefore declines to examine
the theories of account stated, estoppel, laches and the statute
of limitations in regard to the claim that Champlin acted in a
fiduciary capacity.

The plaintiff seeks a permanent injunction forbidding the
defendants from instituting or prosecuting any proceeding in
any State or United States court affecting the adversely claimed
residue proceeds. "In an interpleader action, however, in
personam jurisdiction extends only to the fund deposited with

the court." Xnoll v. Socony Mobil 0il Co., 369 F.2d 425, 429

(10th Cir. 1966). The jurisdiction of this Court over these
parties does not encompass a jurisdictional base for issuing a
permanent injunction and such request is denied.

The plaintiff has requested relief in the form of attorney's
fees and costs. Attorney's fees and costs may be awarded in

interpleader actions. Travelers Indem. Co. v. Israel, 354 F.2d

488 (2nd Cir. 1965); Equitable Life Assurance So¢. of U.S. V.

Rose, 248 F.Supp. 937 (D. Colo. 1965); Paul Revere Life Ins. Co.

v. Riddle, 222 F.Supp. 867 (E.D.Tenn. 1963). The parties have
not briefed the law in regard to whether attorney's fees and
costs should be awarded in this case. No testimony hés been
presented as to the proper amount to be awarded if any. There-
fore, the Court reserves ruling on this question and will con-

sider such request upon proper application which must be made

within ten (10) days of the date of this Order.

It is so Ordered this /%‘ZZ/ day of March, 1976.

/égzﬁﬁgv{§ZL€&fCéwfﬁ§/

H. DALE COOK
United States District Judge




IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR
THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA

RETA LANE, As Administratrix of)
the Estate of DELBERT MAYBERRY,)

Deceased, )
: )
Plaintiff ) ,
) v
vs ) No. 74-C-275
. )
ST. LOUIS-SAN FRANCISCO RAILWAY) F: R lw o
COMPANY, A Foreign Corporation,) B - R Eg |y
Defendant ) ' MAR 181976

Jack C. Silver, Clark
U. S. DISTRICT CouRy

ORDER OF DISMISSAL

, 17}
On this the 42 day of March, 1976, upon application of
plaintiff for dismissal of the above entitled cause with prejudice,

said cause is hereby dismissed with prejudice.

United States District Judge

/7



IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR
THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA

SAFECO INSURANCE COMPANY OF
AMERICA, a corporation,

Plaintiff,
CLEM WHOLESALE GROCER, INC.,

an Arkansas Corporation,

)

)

)

)

)

)

. ~ )
vs. ) No. 75~C~445

)

)

)

)

PAUL LOCKE and R. L. SCHULER, )

)

)

)

Defendants.

JUDGMENT FOR ATTORNEY'S FEES

Ch

This cause came on for hearing on this Z{i day of March,

1976, upon the application of plaintiff for an attorney's fee.
The Court finds that the contract of indemnity provides that
the plaintiff is entitled to recover all expenses, including
attorney's fees, and that the sum of $1,500.00 is a reasonable
attorney's fee and that judgment should be entered in favor of
the plaintiff and against the defendants, Clem Wholesale Grocer,

Inc. and Paul Locke, for the sum of $1,500.00 and that R. L.

Schuler has taken bankruptcy in the interim and, hence, no judgment

should be entered against him.

BE IT, THEREFORE, ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED by the
Court that the plaintiff, Safeco Insurance ompany of America,
a corporation, have and recover judgment of and from the .defen-
dants, Clem Wholesale Grocer, Inc., and Paul Locke, for the

sum of $1,500.00.

CZZé%%_ Cﬁ%?qﬁégigwww?ﬁwwgfﬂWWM/

UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA

ALBERT GLENN REED,
Petitioner,

Vs, NO. 75-C-393 «~

)

)

)

)
STATE OF OKLAHOMA, et al., )
Respondents. )

ORDER:

This is a pre se, in forma pauperis proceeding brought pursuant to
the provisions of 28 U.S.C. § 2254 by a State prisoner confined in the
Oklahoma State Penitentiary at McAlester, Oklahoma. Petitioner attacks
the validity of the Jjudgment and sentence imposed by the District Court
of Tulsa County, State of Oklahoma, in Case No. CRF-69-330. Therein, he
was found guilty by jury of the charge of murder in the first degree, and
when the jury was unable to assess punishment, he was on the 9th day of
May, 1969, sentenced by the Court to life imprisonment in the Oklahoma
State Penitentiary.

Petitioner‘has filed a prior Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus on
issues not here involved in this United States District Court for the
Northern District of Oklahoma, and on the 7th day of June, 1973, the Court
in Case No. 72-C-280 made and entered its Order denying said Writ.

In the matter now before the Court, petitioner demands his release
from custody and as grounds therefor alleges that:

His constitutional rights to due process and equal pro-
tection of the law were violated by the manner in which
the judgment and sentence were made and entered in his

conviction and sentence in the District Court of Tulsa

County, State of Oklahoma.

The proper procedure to challenge the jury's failure to assess punish~

ment under 21 0.5. (1961) § 707 is by direct appeal. Kimmel v. Wallace,

Okl. Cr., 370 P.2d 844 (1962). The transcript of the proceedings at the
time of sentencing conclusively shows that petitioner in open Court, while
represented by counsel, and after being fully advised of his rights to ap-
peal the judgment and sentence, knowingly and willfully waived such rights.
(T'. pages 5 through 7) Petitioner's leave of the Court of Criminal Appeals
of the State of Oklahoma to file a direct appeal out of time was denied in
Case No. A~15835.

The file reflects that the District Court of Tulsa County, Oklahoma,

did on the 24th day of September, 1971, deny petitioner's application for
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post~conviction relief, affirmed by the Court of Criminal Appeals of the
State of Oklahoma in Case No. A-17052. Petitioner again sought post-con-
viction relief in the District Court of Tulsa County, Oklahoma, and said
application was, on the 24th day of June, 1975, denied. On appeal there-
from, the Court of Criminal Appeals of the State of Oklahoma in Case No.
PC-75-380 affirmed the District Court's denial. The file reflects that
petitioner has exhausted the remedies available to him in the Courts of
the State of Oklahoma.

A study of the file, including respondent's response, the transcript
of proceedings at time of sentencing and inﬁerpretation by the Court of
Criminal Appeals of the State of Oklahoma of 21 0.S. (1961) § 707 clearly
shows that petitioner's allegation is without merit.

Title 21, 0.S. (1961) § 707, provides:

"BEvery person convicted of murder shall suffer death,
or imprisonment at hard labor in the State peniten-—
tiary for life, at the discretion of the jury. Upon
trial of an indictment for murder, the jury, if they
find the defendant guilty, must designate in their
verdict whether he shall be punished by death or im-
prisonment for life at hard labor, and the judgment
of the court shall be in accordance therewith. But
upon a plea of guilty the court shall determine the
same, "

In interpreting the foregoing Statute, the Court of Criminal Appeals

of the State of Oklahoma in the case of Davis v. State of Oklahoma, 1 P.2d

824 (1931) stated in Syllabus of the Court at Headnote 5:

"The trial court should not receive a verdict finding
the accused guilty of murder unless such verdict fur-
ther designates whether the accused shall be punished
by death or imprisonment for life at hard labor. If
the trial court does receive a verdict of guilty of
murder which does not designate the punishment, only
life imprisonment, the minimum punishment fixed by law,
can be assessed.”

The Court further stated at page 828:

". . . It is evident, however, that the primary purpose
of the statute was that the death penalty in a trial for
murder, where a plea of not guilty is interposed, should
not in any event rest with the trial court, but could be
assessed only upon the verdict of the jury, designating
the death penalty. If the punishment should be life im-
prisonment, the same solemnity would not be required to
assess the punishment, and it need be designated in the
verdict only for the purpose of excluding the death pen-
alty, the only other possible punishment. . . ."

The ‘record in this case concluﬁively'shows that petitioner is not en-
titled to relief. The law of the State of Oklahoma, until the Statute was

repcaled in 1973, was that under 21 0.S. (1961) § 707 either death or life

.



‘. o | o

imprisonment was the sentence to be imposed upon a conviction of murder.
If the jury failed to exact punishment, the Court was required to impose
the lesser sentence of life imprisonment. The law was followed in the
matter before the Court.

Federal habeas corpus is only designed to make certain that one con-
victed in a State criminal proceeding has not had his rights under the

Constitution of the United States abridged. Hopkins v. Anderson, 507 F.2d

530 (10th Cir. 1974). The Court finds that the issue presented by peti-
tioner does not raise a cognizable constitutional question in the circum-
stances before the Court. An evidentiary hearing is not required herein.

Putnam v. United States, 337 F.2d 313 (10th Cir. 1964); Maxwell v. Turner,

411 F.2d 805 (1l0th Cir. 1969); Cranford v. Rodriguez, 512 F.2d 860 (10th

Cir. 1975).
IT IS, THEREFORE, ORDERED that the petition for writ of habeas cCorpus

of Albert Glenn Reed be and it is hereby denied and the case is dismissed.

A

P

Dated this = -~"day of March, 1976, at Tulsa, Oklahoma.

e g —.
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CHIEF JUDGE, UNITED STATES DISTRICT
COURT FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF
OKLAHOMA



UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA NG R

W. J. USERY, JR., Secretary of Labor,
(Successor to John T. Dunlop)
United States Department of Labor,

Plaintiff
Civil Action
V.

NOBLE L. WOODROW, an individual,
doing business as WOODY'S CORNER,

Defendant

Plaintiff has filed his complaint against Noble L.
Woodrow. Thereafter, plaintiff and defendant announced that
they have reached an agreement in this matter, and it appearing
to the Court that plaintiff and defendant are in agreement that
this judgment should be entered, it is therefore,

ORDERED, ADJUDGED and DECREED that defendant, higs agents,
servants, employees and those persons in active concert or
participation with him are permanently enjoined and restrained
from violating the provisions of sections 15(a) (2), 15(a) (4),
and 15(a) (5} of the Fair Labor Standards Act of 1938, as amended
(29 U.s.C. 201, et seq.), hereinafter referred to as the Act,
in any of the following manners:

I

Defendant shall not, contrary to the provisions of section
6 of the Act, pay any employees engagea in commerce or 4in the
production of goods for commerce, or in an enterprise engaged
in commerce or in the production of goods for commerce, wages

at rates less than the rates required by section 6 of the Act.
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Defendant shall not, contrary to sections 12 and
15(a) (4) of the Act, employ oppressive child labor, as such
term is defined in section 3(1) of the Act, in an enterprise
engaged iQ commerce or in the production of goods for commerce,
within the meaning of the Act,

11zt

Defendant shall not, contrary to the provisions of
section 7 of the Act, employ any employe@ engaged in commerce
or in the production of goods for commerce, or in an enterprise
engaged in commerce or in the production of goods for commerce,
for a workweek longer than 40 hours unless defendant compensates
such employee for employment in excess of 40 hours in a workweek
at a rate not less than one and one-half times the regular rate
at which such employee is employed.

Iiv

Defendant shall not, contrary to the provisions of
section 11 (c) of the Act, fail to make, keep and preserve the
records required by the Code of Federal Regulations, Title 29,
Part 516.

It is further ORDERED, that defendant be and is enjoined
and restrained from withholding payment of overtime compensation
and minimum wages in the total amount of $3,750.00, which the
Court finds to be due under the Act to defendant's employees,
named in the attachment A hereto, which by reference is made a

part hereof.

The provisions of this order shall be deemed satisfied
wher he defendant delivers to the plaintiff 12 cashier's or
certified checks, payable to "Employment Standards Administration,

Loor™, in the amounts & the time herein set forth:



Payment of $3,750.00 in 12 equal consecutive
monthly installments of $312.50, with the
first intallment being due and payable on

or before March 1, 1976, and the remaining
installments being due and payable on/or
before the same day of each succeeding month
thereafter until all installments have been

paid.

VI

It is further ORDERED, that plaintiff, upon receipt of
such certified or cashiers' checks from the defendant, shall
promptly proceed to make distribution, less income tax and
social security withholdings, to defendant's employees named
herein in the amounts indicated, or to the legal representative
of any deceased person so named. If, after making reasonable
and diligent efforts to disbribute such amounts to the person
entitled thereto, plaintiff is unable to do so because of in-
- ability to locate a proper person, or because of a refusal to
accept payment by any such person, plaintiff, pursuant to 28 USC
2041, shall deposit such funds with the Clerk of this Court. Any
such funds may be withdrawn for payment to a person entitled
thereto upon order of this Court.

It is further ORDERED, that defendant will pay the costs

of this action.
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE
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Entry of this order is consented and agreed to:

4 / 7
) 'é/;{éﬁﬁ

. Py
/ s {( ALy A K
WILLIAM J. K}"L TERG
Solicitor of Fabor

/7 N/ a ¢

/ v 0. j . 4
M’%V%Wl4/ »0/;fg/éfﬂwwﬁ4¥%s
RONALD M. GASWIRTH

Regional Solicitor

SN N 7 / / ?A’
/’ Voo A/// £ % (C?‘f"“f/! ) f‘/’;»f’fff o/
WILLIAM E. EVERHEART

Acting Counsel for ESA

. g //{/‘/f
[“"}?’Z/L/ Al 7/”; A g
HARVEY M. SHAPAN 5/
Attorney :

Attorneys for Plaintiff

JEFF NIX
{”A{ttorney for Defendant

I - S “Ea ”

[T A et il /
b & ‘/ - < . / P . . ] ¥ Y
FARVANE S R iy ! & : ¢

NOBLE T. WOODROW
Defendant



ATTACHMERNT ”‘i“

Billy Bishop $ 183.75
Carol Edwards 50.63
Opal Gaines 697.50
Eulala Hughs 5.00
Valerie Lynn Hey 24.00
Calvin McNair 1,310.48
Lynn Taylor 309.38
Ronald Toothman 64.13
Francis Van Horn 464.25
Bob Wayne 640.88

$ 3,750.00
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LAW OFFICES

UNGERMAN,
GRAREL &
UNGERMAN

BIXTH FLOOR
WRIGHT BUILDING

TULSA, OKLAHOGMA

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FFOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF
OKLAHOMA

NATIONAL BANK OF TULSA,
a National Banking Association,

Plaintiff,

vs. Civil Action

No. 74~Cm325/

KINCAID INDUSTRIES, INC., a corporation;
BOLLINGER CORPORATION, a corporation;
MORTON J. GREENE; THOMAS R. ALLEN, JR.;
and ANNE S. GREENE,

Defendants,
and
KINCAID INDUSTRII'S, INC., a corporation;
BOLLINGER CORPORATION, a corporation;
MORTON J. GREENE; and THOMAS R. ALLEN, JR.,

Third Party Plaintiffs,

and

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
THOMAS HELTON; LORNA F. HELTON; )
LUTHER M. McMATH; and JOYCE M. McMATH, )
)
)

Third Party Defendants.

ORDER DISMISSING THIRD PARTY PLAINTIFFRS'
CAUSES OF ACTION AND THIRD PARTY DEFENDANTS'
COUNTER-CLATM WITH PREJUDICE

NOW, on this Aﬁ"aﬁaay of March, 1976, there

having been presented to the undersicned United States District
Judge for the Northern District of Oklahoma the Settlement
Agreement entered into by and between the parties hereto on the
26th day of February, 1976, and the Joint Application of the
Third Party Plaintiffs to dismiss with prejudice their various
causes of action as against the Third Party Defendants, and the
Application of the Third Party Defendants to dismiss with pre-
judice their Counter-Claim as acainst the Third Party Plaintiffs,
and the Court having heard the argument of counsel in support of
said Application finds that an Order should issue therein in
compliance with said Application.

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED BY THIS COURT that
the various causes of action filed herein by the Third Party
Plaintiffs as against the Third Party Defendants, be, and the
same are hereby‘dismissed with prejudice.

IT IS TURTHER ORDERED BY THIS COURT that

the Counter-Claim of the Third Party Defendants filed herein as




o

against the Third Party Plaintiffs, be, and the same is hereby

dismissed with prejudice.

é

United Ldtﬁu )1otrLcL Judge

APPROVED:

UNGERM@N GRABFg/& UVFFRMAN

oS / /. /’
By .7 (V/ e cTER
Aftorncys for Third Paltj Dlalntlf{S N
N
HARRIS, GLADD & DYER

By NQWW\{\ v&»

Attorneys for Third a@rty Defendants




IN TIE UNITED STATLES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLANOMA

RICHARD W. PENNEY, SR.,
Petitioner,

vVE.
Case No. 76-C~106-B
THE HONORABLE ROBERT EDMISTON,
SPECIAL JUDGE OF THE TULSA
COUNTY DISTRICT COURT, AND
DAVE FAULKNER, TULSA COUNTY
SHERIFF,

Respondents.

ORDER DISMISSING PETITION
FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS

This matter coming on before me, the undersigned

Judge, upon the Petitioner's request to dismiss his Petition

for Writ of Habeas Corpus filed herein on the 10th day of

March, 1976, and the Court being fully satisfied in the premises,
IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the Petition for Writ of

Habeas Corpus be, and it is hereby, dismissed without prejudice.

C;;%wl Q%ggﬁéﬁﬁ%W%ﬂhﬁmwﬁmf

ALLEIl E. BARROW
JUDGE OF THE U. S. DISTRICT
COURT '

CERTIFICATE OF MAILING

I, James O. Goodwin, certify that on the 1lth day of
March, 1976, I mailed a true and correct copy of the above and
foregoing ORDER to: Mr. Ken Cunningham, Assistant District
Attorney, Tulsa County Courthouse, Tulsa, Oklahona, with
sufficient postage thereon fully prepaid.

James 0. Goodwin




IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA

W. J. USERY, JR., Secretary
of Labor, United States
Department of Labor,

76-C-90
Plaintiff,
vs.

D. B. PRODUCTS, INC.,

N N S ot St N S e’ N N S

Defendant.

ORDER DISMISSING’COMPLAINT AND
CAUSE OF ACTION

This matter came on for hearing before the Court on this
10th day of Maréh, 1976, on the Order to Show Cause sought by
the plaintiff, and the Court having heard all of the evidence
and testimony adduced, and, being fully advised in the premises,
finds:

That the defendant has voluntarily consented to the inspection
sought by the plaintiff.

IT IS, THEREFORE, ORDERED that the cause of action and
complaint be and the same are hereby dismissed.

ENTERED this 12th day of March, 1976.

Coow. F i —

CHIEF UNITED STATES DISTRICT T
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*an alien corporation incorporated

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA

MACHINERY LOCATORS, TINC.,
an Oklahoma Corporation,

Plaintiff,
v‘
INDUMA, S.P.A., INDUSTRIA LOM-

BARDA MACCINE ATTREZZAMENTI, S.P.A., /%
No: 75-C~556 ~1-

under the laws of Ttaly; NEW
HAMPSHIRE INSURANCE COMPANY, a
foreign corporation doing
business in Manchester, New
Hampshire; AMERICAN INTERNATIONAL
UNDERWRITERS, CORP., a foreign
corporation doing business in

New York, New York, THE TEXAS

AND PACIFIC RAILWAY COMPANY, a
foreign corporation with principal
place of business in St. Louis,
Missouri,

Cilupr ()}
Jack C. Silver, Liehn

Wik

N’ S N vvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvv N St St

‘“{5‘&[; g\‘? 4

-, 3 :‘” '
Defendants., oo BN W

ORDER OF DISMISSAL

ON this } A day of zizﬁﬁﬁﬁ&éummm, lQ;&%ﬁ upon the

written application of the parties for a Dismlssal without Prejudice
of the Complaint and all causes of action, the Court having
examined said application, finds that said parties have agreed
that this matter may be dismissed without prejudice and have
requested the Court to dismiss said Complaint without prejudice
to any future action, and the Court being fully advised in the
premises, finds that said Complaint should be dismissed pursuant
to said application.

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED by the Court
that the Complaint and all causes of action of the plaintiff filed
herein against the defendants be and the same hereby is dismissed

without prejudice to any future action.
‘‘‘‘‘‘ A

i o
Amw” A i B )

!

o
A e,

JUDGE, DISTRICT COURT OF THE UNITED
STATES, NORTHERN DISTRICT OF
OKLAHOMA

APPROVAL:

Alfredyaf”xgight/’) B

PRV
(, / P /

By: (‘oS

AtCOFnQy,fOr the Plaintiff
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Williap-4. Pow@??/;;m%i>
o o 4
P 8 /

Attorney foy the Defendant, Texas

and Pacific Railway Company

John H. Tucker i y ///
// / B /M/ /‘“J,:M.,w ,},.-'" y

[ “
e ‘ ,,//'{//;i ///{:;)/ P /,{f/'/{‘, ‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘ ]

/ : -
Attorney for the Defendant, New
Hampshire Insurance Company

.



IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKIAHOMA

HARTFORD FIRE INSURANCE
COMPANY,

Plaintiff,
o NO. 75'0‘491 1] \\r« »»

CHARIES V. SMITH and
PAULINE JANE NARD,

N N N St S N e st i St ot

Defendants.

JOURNAL ENTRY OF JUDGMENT

Now on this zggf?ﬁay'of March, 1976, this cause
comes on in its regular order, pursuant to assignment, to
be heard on the Motion for Default Judgment of the plaintiff,
and the Court having reviewed the file, having examined the
Complaint and the Entry of Default and Motion for Default

Judgment, having examined the Exhibits introduced in said

cause, -
Court and being fully advised in the premises, finds that all
of the allegations of plaintiff's Complaint are true and correct,
and that the defendants are justly indebted to the plaintiff
in the amount of $39,948.39.

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED by
the Court that plaintiff have and recover judgment against the
defendants, Charles V., Smith and Pauline Jane Nard, jointly
and severally in the principal amount of $39,948.39, with in-
terest thereon to accrue at the rate of 6% per annum from
August 8, 1973, until the date of this judgment, and interest
is further to accrue at the rate of 107, per annum from the
date of this judgment until judgment is fully paid with the
costs in this case to be taxed against the defendants, said

costs being in the further amount of $71.48, all for which let

execution issue.

Azé&zyéé/‘drlmﬁ% éﬁwwwﬁww

UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE




APPROVED AS TO F(RM:

/w/ 7 Coie g j - /7&2“{,% b )

ROBERT J. PETRICK of

FENTON, FENTON, SMITH, RENEAU & MOON
405 Midland Center - P, 0. Box 1638
Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 73101

(405) 235-4671

Attorneys for Plaintiff



IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA
JERRY L. BRUCE, et al.,
Plaintiffs,

Civil Action

No. 75-C-385 §$ g im Eg
MAK 121978

Jack C. Silver, Clerk
I S. DISTRICT coner

AMOCO PIPELINE COMPANY,

Defendant.

N Mt et Ml N e M Nt

STIPULATION OF DISMISSAIL WITH PREJUDIC

It is hereby stipulated that the above entitled action
by plaintiff's against defendant, including, without limita-
tion, all the claims therein or claims that may be, are

hereby dismissed with prejudice and without costs.

fﬂluCt 41WW&1(

Bruce Gamblll

Attorl/i>for Plaintiffs

Willfam D. Hunt
Attorney for Defendant

3/8/76
cw



IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT CCURT FOR THE
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
Plaintiff,

vs. CIVIL ACTION NO. 75-C-372-8
DOROTHY PEPPER SECONDINE, a/k/a
DOROTHY SECONDINE, a/k/a DOROTHY
I. SECONDINE, ROY WAYNE HESS,
a/k/a ROY HESS, JANIE VIOLA HESS,
PLANNED CREDIT, INC., now GULF
SOUTH CORPORATION, UNIVERSAL CIT
CREDIT COMPANY, now CIT FINANCIAL
SERVICES, INC., ROBERT B. CARTER,
d/b/a BERRY CARTER COMPANY, a
corporation, BEARDEN COMPANY, a
corporation, ACME PLUMBING AND
HEATING, INC., a corporation,

N e M Nt Nt N e M e N i S Nt S St el N euir? et P

Defendants.

JUDGMENT OF FORECLOSURE

THIS MATTER COMES on for consideration this /X &/
day of March, 1976, the Plaintiff appearing by Robert P. Santee,
Assistant United States Attorney; and the Defendants, Dorothy
Pepper Secondine, a/k/a Dorothy Secondine, a/k/a Dorothy I.
Secondine, Roy Wayne Hess, a/k/a Roy Hess, Janie Viola Hess,
Planned Credit, Inc¢., now Gulf South Corporation, Universal
CIT Credit Company, now CIT Financial Services, Inc., Robert B.
Carter, d/b/a Berry Carter Company, a corporation, Beardeﬂ
Company, a corporation, and Acme Plumbing and‘Heating, Inc., a
corporation, appearing not.

The Court being fully advised and having examined
the file herein finds that Defendants, Dorothy Pepper Secondine,
a/k/a Dorothy Secondine, a/k/a Dorothy I. Secondine, and Planned
Credit, Inc., now Gulf South Corporation, were served by publica-
tion as shown on the Proof of Publication filed herein; Roy
Wayne Hess, a/k/a Roy Hess, was served with Summons; Complaint,

and Amendment to Complaint on August 15, 1975, and January 20,



The Court further finds that Defendants, Roy Wayne
Hess, a/k/a Roy Hess, and Janie Viola Hess, were the grantees
" in a deed from Defendant, Dorothy Pepper Secondine, dated
July 22, 1974, filed July 22, 1974, in Book 4129, Page 616,
records of Tulsa County, wherein Defendants, RoyAWayne Hess,
a/k/a Roy Hess, and Janie Viola Hess, assumed and agreed to
pay the mortgage indebtedness being sued upon herein.

The Court further finds that Defendénts, Dorothy
Pepper Secondine, Roy Wayne Hess, a/k/a Roy Hess, and Janie
Viola Hess, made default under the terms of the aforesaid
mortgage note by reason of their failure to make monthly
installments due thereon for more than 12 months last past,
which default has continued and that by reason thereof the
above-named Defendants are now indebted to the Plaintiff in
the sum of $7,498.74 as unpaid principal with interest thereon
'at the rate of 5 1/2 percent per annum from September 1, 1974,
until paid, plus the cost of this action accrued and accruing.

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that
the Plaintiff have and recover judgment against Defendants,
VDorothy Pepper Secondine, Roy Wayne Hess, a/k/a Roy Hess, and
Janie Viola Hess, in rem, for the sum of $7,498.74 with interest
thereon at the rate of 5 1/2 percent per annum from September 1,
1974, plus the cost of this action accrued and accruing, plus
any additional sums advanced or to be advanced or expended
during this foreclosure action by Plaintiff for taxes, insurance,
abstracting, or sums for the preservation of the subject property.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that
the Plaintiff have and recover judgment, in rem, against
Defendants, Planned Credit, Inc., now Gulf South Corporation,
Universal CIT Credit Company, now CIT Financial Services, Inc.,
Robert B. Carter, d/b/a Berry Carter Company, Bearden Company,

and Acme Plumbing and Heating, Inc.



IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that
upon the failure of said Defendants to satisfy Plaintiff's
money judgment herein, an Order of Sale shall be issued to the
United States Marshal for the Northern District of Oklahoma,
commanding him to advertise and sell with appraisement the
real property and apply the proceeds thereof in satisfaction
of Plaintiff's judgment. The residue, if any, shall be deposited
with the Clerk of the Court to await further order of the Court.
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED,VADJUDGED AND DECREED that
from and after the sale of said property, under and by virtue
of this judgment and decree, all of the Defendants and each of
them and all persons claiming under them since the filing of
the complaint herein be and they are forever barred and foreclosed
of any right, title, interest, or claim in or to the real property
or any part thereof. Specifically, including any lien for
personal property taxes which may have been filed during the

pendency of this action.

UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE

APPROVED:

ROBERT P. SANTE®
Assistant United States Attorney
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT - FElILED

FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA MAR 1 2 1976
Yack C. Silver, Clerk

U.J. USERY, JR., Secretary of Labor
(Successor to John T. Dunlop)
United States Department of Labor

1 NISTRICT COM™

)
)
)
)
Plaintiff )
) CIVIL ACTION
V. )
)
)
)
)
)

NO. 73-C-269
VERNON PRICE, doing business as
Upright Drywall Company

Defendant

JUDGMENT

In accordance with the agreed Findings of Fact and Con-
clusions of Law signed and entered in this action on the /<
day of %Zatmﬁwﬂ4£/ , 1976, it is:

ORDERED, ADJUDGED, and DECREED that defendant, its officers,

agents, servants, employees, and all others persons acting or claiming
to act in his behalf and interest be, and hereby are, permanently en-
Joined from violating provisions of 15(a)(2) and 15(a)(5) of the Fair
Labor Standards Act of 1938, (29 U.S.C. 201, et seq.), hereinafter re-

ferred to as the Act in any of the following manners:

I
Defendant shall not, contrary to sections 7 and 15(a)(2) of
the Act, employ any employee in commerce or in the production of goods
for commerce, or in an enterprise engaged in commerce or in the product-
ion of goods for commerce, within the meaning of the Act, for a work-
week longer than 40 hours, unless such an gmployeewtgceives compensat-
ion for his emp]oyﬁent in excess of such hours at a rate not less

than one and one half times the regular rate at which he is employed.



IT

Defendant shall not, contrary to sections 11(c) and 15(a)

(5) of the Act, fail to make, keep and preserve adequate and accurate
records of the persons employed by him and of the wages, hours and other
conditions and practices of employment maintained by him, as prescribed
ty regulations issued by the Administrator of the Employment Standards
Administration, United States Department of Labor (29 U.S.C., Part 516).

It is further ORDERED, that the defendant be, and he hereby
is restrained from withholding payment of overtime compensation and in-
terest in the total amount of $58,000.00 which the court finds is due
under the Act, to the employees named in Exhibit A which is attached here-
to in the amounts indicated. The provisions of this order shall be
deemed satisfied when the defendant delivers to the plaintiff cashier or
certified checks, payable to "Employment Standards Administration-Labor",
in the amounts and the time herein set forth:

Payment of $58,000.00 in 36 equal consecutive monthly

installments of $1,611.11, with the first installment

being due and payable on/or before the 31st day of March,

1976, and the remaining installments being due and pay-

able on/or before the same day of each succeeding month

thereafter until all installments have been paid.

It is further ORDERED, that plaintiff, upon receipt of such
certified or cashier's check from the defendant, shall promptly proceed
to make distribution, less income tax and social security withholdings,
to defendant's employees named herein in the amounts indicatéd, or to
the 1ega1 representative of any deceased person so named. If, after
making reasonable and diligent efforts to distribute such amounts to
the person entitled thereto, plaintiff is unable to do so because of
inability to locate a proper person, or because of a refusal to accept
payment by any such person plaintiff, pursuant to 28 USC Section 2041,
shall deposit such funds with the Clerk of this Court. Any such funds

may be withdrawn for payment to a person entitled thereto upon order

of this Court.



‘ /
It is further ORDEREQ, that defendant will pay the costs

of this action.

oy
DATED this /2 day of  Siwek

197€.

9
CLlPrss

UNTTED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE

Entry of this order is consented and agreed to:

J. KILBERG
Solicitor of Labor

RONALD M. GASWIRTH W

Regional Solicitor -

HERIBERTO de LEON )
Acting Counsel for OSHA

(7 AP

ALLEN L. PRINCE
Attorney for Plaintiff

«— JEFENIK
~"Attorney for Defendant

™
ot - a4 ‘

Sol Case No. 00492



EXHIBIT "A"
NAME AMOUNT INTEREST
Conception Aquirro . $ 44.39 § 7.26
Rickie D. Arnold 179.34 ~ 8.96
Bill Binge 15.92 .54
Jack Blankenship 287.25 29.44
Joe Blankenship 25.11 2.55
Larry Glenn Boggs 40.18 2.70
Dwain Bolin 11.60 1.16
Floyd Boline 57.35 5.95
Ronnie ’ 71.85 7.19
Henry Brannon 246.34 50.45
Jessie Lee Brewer 74.99 3.17
Jim L. Brown 17.73 .23
Pat Buchanan 1,137.23 - 39.79
Thomas E. Burke 20.09 .93
0dis (Otis?) Butler 1,423.43 120.99
Otis Butler dr. 105.84 4.71
Steve Butler 181.56 21.79
Jim Cameron 234.33 } 17.54
Zane Campbell 93.45 15.37
Ronnie Carter 70.72 7.42
Dewayne Caudle 36.74 3.79
Bill Chase 103.70 4.64
Tom Christmas 10.91 .70
Donald Clary ‘96.58 9.66
Steve Cochran 63.84 5.10
Andrew J. Comer 15.45 1.62
Donald G. Cordova 182.95 4.09
Tony Cordova v 233.49 10.43
Don Critser 66.69 10.97
Jim Critser 132.73 3.24
Oscar Cummings 29.38 4.79
Morgan Daugherty 114.45 16.53
Dewey David 95.12 13.75
Larry Davis 5.79 = .23
Kevin Day 9.27 B .39
Jim Dean 19.68 3.40
Oscar Derrick 106.30 4.71
Mike Detrick 120.47 5.33
Jimmy Dean Dickey 36.02 1.00
Bob Diekman 145.14 9.43
Jack Dikel 6.95 .85
Kenneth Dikel 52.54 5.49
Charles Donelly 50.48 8.27
J.W. Doss 36.51 4.71
Bill Dowdy 209.95 17.77
David Dresher 145.90 10.20
Jim Drumright 550.95 41.26
Keith Drumright ©53.48 , 2.32
Jack Dubbs . 46.36 i S 1.62
Ronnie Eberle 1,216.13 97.27
Buck Edwards 320.73 46.43
Jimmy H. Ellis 65.09 2.86
Jim Elmore 10.82 ‘ 1.31
Dewayne Farrell 21.44 . 4.33
Allen Femincore 4.29 T .39
Gary Fisher 122.84 - 5.79
Jim Floyd 9.27 . .39
Gene Forsythe 80.76 13.29
James Fraley 14.39 : 1.47
Larry Francis 74.17 7.03
Jr. Logan Freadle 222.46 36.70

John Furr 1,038.15 119.37



Johnny Furr
Lloyd Furr
Ricky Furr
Steven Gabbard
Charlie Garcia
Don Giles

Mike Gilpin
Gregg Ginarish
David Goodacre
J.F. Goodacre
Ray Gordon

Jack Grady
Ronnice W. Gray
Randy Hackathorn
Edward Hagan
H.B. Hall

Jerry Hall
S.Dennis Hall
Rory Hanebank
Chris Hanewinkle
Hank Hanewinkle
Paul Hanewinkle
Gene Haner
Charles Harper
Glenn Harris
Everett Harvey
Wayne Harvey
Steve Hays
Kenny Heath
Thomas L. Hembree
Ray Hensen

Jon Holden

Walt Holley

Don Hooper

Jim Howard
William F. Howard
Lonny Hudson
Tom Hudson

&y Hughart
Jim Hughart

Joe Hughart
Dwain Hughes
Johnny Ivy

Don Johnson

Don Jones
Marvin Jones
Steve Julius
James R. Keaton
Arron Keesee
David Keigley
David Keeley
Steve Kelley
Max Kennedy
Brent Kinkade
Lloyd Klengenberg
Frank Laffoon
John Lamb

Joe Lang

Gene Lee

Orval Lee

Larry Leigh
Donald Linville
George Lock

244

| s



Jderry Lovins
Millard E. Lovins
Delvin Lumpkin
Gary Maddox

John W. Maddox
Cath Masterson
Jimmy Masterson
John Masterson
Sam Masterson

Tommy J. Masterson, Jr.

Dickie R. Masterson
Steve Mattison
Randy McCage
David McCray
Warren McKnight
Mike McNeal
A.R. Meadows
Jim Meadows
Larry Metcalf
Thomas Metcalf
Glen Miller
Marvin Miller
Bruce Mize

Dale E. Mize
Jerry Moore
Randy Morton
Glenn Mosteller
Ted Alan Mosteller
Ronnie Mowery
John Nail

Sam Nail

Bob Naff

Bill Nye
Charles Nye
Dean Osborne
Loren Pahsetopah
Larry Parker
Henry Peal
David Peterson
Tony Phillips
Steve Pitchford
Lew Prickett
Kenny Purkey
Charles Ray
Glen Reid

Jack Rhodes
Walter B. Rodgers
Walter L. Rodgers
Eddie Rogers
Morris Rogers
Walt Rogers

Tom Roley
Darrell Rollins
Thomas Roland
Ronald Salvars
David Saxton
Terry Schultz
Dean Scroggins
Bob See

Rickey Selz
Larry Shaw
Paul Simmering

217.77
171.13
19.42
922.39
2,785.82

82.09
1,122.61
1,378.41
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Chester E. Skinner
Norman E. Skinner
Calvin Smith

Gary Smith

Jim Smith

James Stephens
Richard Stevensoil
Ron Stewart
Courtney Stice
Frank STinson
Rick E. Stringer
Bob Stroo

Douglas Summers
Jderry Swift

Toney Talley
Larry Tate

Rich K. Taylor
Don Tillery

- Kenneth Troutman
Tim A. Turley
David Waldorf
William F. Walker
James Walters

Bob Weatherly

Don Welch

Francis Shinery
John H. Whinery
Grayson White, Jr.
John Whitaker
John Williams
Mark Williams
Ivan Wolfe

Larry J. Hright

14.
$52.786.77

39

105.85
14.83
21.71
47.21
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA

PECAN & AGRICULTURAL EQUIPMENT,
INC., a Corporation,

)
)
)
Plaintiff, ) .
) Vv’
Vs. ) No. 74-C-286
)
LOCKWOOD CORPORATION, a )
Delaware Corporation, )
)
Defendant, ) Jo [ [ ‘
and ) i S i
) b 4
JOE A. IHLE, ) SR G
) . FEN
Additional Party Defendant ) wjaw;C ‘ﬁ&% (i
to Counterclaim. ) P o WQTQKT;V:;

ORDER

This matter came on for trial on February 17, 1976; the
plaintiff and additional party defendant appeared by Loeffler
& Allen, by David H. Loeffler and David H. Loeffler, Jr., and
Hall, Estill, Hardwick, Gable, Collingsworth & Nelson, by
Fred S. Nelson and Stephen R. Clark; and defendant appeared by
Dawson, Nagle, Sherman & Howard and Gable, Gotwals, Rubin, Fox,’
Johnson & Baker, by Sidney G. Dunagan and John R. Barker.
During the course of the proceedings, the plaintiff corporation
announced to this Court that it had reached a settlement and
compromise with the defendant corporation as to plaintiff's
Third, Fourth, Fifth and Sixth Counts or Causes of Action.
The defendant corporation announced that it had reached a
settlement and compromise of its Counterclaim against the
plaintiff corporation and additional party defendant Joe A. Ihle.
The terms of the above settlement and compromise agreement
between ihé parties wére announced to the Court as follows:
1. The plaintiff corporation dismissed with prejudice
its ThiréfCause of Action and the claim for a loss of $4,856
in profits for its failure to receive the delivery of certain

pecan harvesters from the defendant corporation; the plaintiff



corporation dismissed with prejudice its Fourth Cause of Action
in the amount of $9,963 for which the plaintiff corporation
claimed the defendant corporation was indebted to it as a result
of the plaintiff's sale of equipment for the defendant during
the calendar year 1973; the plaintiff dismissed with prejudice
its Fifth Cause of Action under which the plaintiff claimed the
defendant was indebted to the plaintiff for the storage of cer-
tain equipment from January 16, 1974 through September 16, 1974;
the plaintiff dismissed with prejudice its Sixth Cause of Action
which requestea an accounting of Lockwood products sold by
dealers other than the plaintiff within the State of Oklahoma
and any claim of a lien on such equipment or on any equipment

of the defendant Lockwood Corporation in the State of Oklahoma;
and plaintiff agreed and will pay to the defendant corporation
the sum of $2,000.

2, The defendant Lockwood Corporation announced to this
Court that in return for the actions of the plaintiff corporation
in seeking a settlement and compromise as to the above causes
~of action, the defendant Lockwood Corporation will dismiss with
prejudice its Counterclaim in the sum of $30,751.68, which it
claimed to be due and owing to it for machinery, parts and
freight purchased from the defendant by the plaintiff over a
three~year period;‘the defendant corporation did further agree
to cancel, void and prevent the negotiation of a check of
February 11, 1974, made payable by the plaintiff corporation
to the defendant corporation in the sum of $6,143.83.

3. The parties did further announce to the Court, as a part
of their settlement and compromise-agreement to the above counts
or causes of action, each would bear its own attorneys fees and
costs as to those counts or causes of action dismissed.

After hearing the announcements of counsel for the
respective parties and the terms of the settlement and compro-

mise agreement, this Court finds that the settlement and



compromise agreement as to plaintiff's Third, Fourth, Fifth

and Sixth Counts or Causes of Action and defendant's Counterclaim
against the plaintiff corporation and additional party defendant
Joe A. Ihle should be and is hereby approved.

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED‘by this Court that the Third,
Fourth, Fifth and Sixth Causes of Action by the plaintiff are
dismissed with prejudice to the bringing of a future action
thereon; that the defendant's Counterclaim against the plain-
tiff corporation and the defendant Joe A. Ihle is hereby
dismissed with prejudice to the bringing of a future action
thereon; that the plaintiff corporation and additional party
defendant Joe A. Ihle shall pay to the defendant corporation
the sum of $2,000 by no later than March 23, 1976; that each
party hereto shall bear its own attorneys fees and costs as
to any claim it might have against the other party in regard
to plaintiff's Third, Fourth, Fifth and Sixth Count or Cause
of Action and defendant's Counterclaim against the plaintiff
and additional party defendant Joe A. Ihle; and this Court
does further order that the Delivery Bond, Bond Number 2543675,
filed with this Court on September 10, 1974 is released and
the Principal, Lockwood Corporation, and Surety, Safeco
Insurance Company of America, are fully exonerated from any
liability thereon.

This Order does not include this Court's consideration
of the merits of plaintiff's First, Second or Seventh Causes

of Action or the rights of the respective parties thereunder.

“Trace
DATED this 9:5_73/ day of Pebruarys 1976.

H. Dale 'Cook
United States District Judge



APPROVED AS TO FORM:

DAWSON, NAGLE, SHERMAN & HOWARD

and

GABLE, GOTWALS, RUBI

N
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HALL, ESTILL, HARDWICK, GABLE, COLLINGSWORTH & NELSON

/ FOX, JOHNSON & BAKER

and

LOEFFLER & ALLEN

By “’V‘J >/()\ //6\

David H., Loe fﬂ?/l
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA

KARL KELSO, d/b/a KELSO
DRYWALL COMPANY,

e
No. 74-C-266

Eitlg EW‘ s

Plaintiff,
vs.

ot Nt st? st Sst? Napl? Nt Vagt® Noait® Sy

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, k£ ﬁ“
I;vfﬂq . . M SN
Defendant. | AR 51975 g;
. ’Jack C. S{ !!./,3. ’ h
RDER tTa g r LT
ORDER " STy e

Now on this ﬁ '-L day of March, 1976, there came on

for consideration the Stipulation of the Plaintiff and the
Defendant to dismissvthe Complaint and the Counterclaim with
prejudice, each party to bear its own costs.

NOW IT IS, THER%EORE, ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED
that the Complaintﬁand Counterclaim herein be and the same are
hereby dismissed with prejudice, each party bearing its own

costs.

UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE

becs
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA

WHEATLEY COMPANY,

Plaintiff,

/

vVS. Civil Action No. 75-C-239°

CROWN VALVES, INCORPORATED
and NICHOLAS RYLANDER,
Individually,

ROBINSON OILFIELD SPECIALTIES
(1968) Ltd; STREAM-FLO ’
VALVES, LTD., J. DUNCAN
McNEILL, Individually, and
LAWRENCE I. OLSON, Indivi-
dually

I ,
Hand 5 Ey [rreas .
sty ,’i w:; ff £
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Defendants.

CONSENT DECREE

WHEREAS, Plaintiff and Defendants in the above-identified
action have resolved their differences by a Settlement-Agree—
nment between them, whiph agreement included the voluntary
joinder and submission to the court's jurisdiction of the
additional Defendants Robinson 0Oilfield Specialties (1968) Ltd.,
Stream-Flo Valves, Ltd., J. Duncan McNeill, and Lawrence I. Olson,
and said Plaintiff and Defendants now desire to consent to a
judgment without trial.

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED:

1. That Plaintiffs Motion to Join Robinson 0Oilfield Specialties
(1968) Ltd., Stream-Flo Valves, Ltd., J. Duncan McNeill, and
Lawrence I. Olson as additionai party Deféndants is hereby
granted.

2. That this Court has jurisdiction of the subject matter of
this action, and that the parties have submitted to the juris-
diction of the Court for the purposes of entry of this Judgment.
3. That the Plaintiff is the owner of United States Patent

Nos. 3,817,277; 3,186,724; 2,918,934; and, 2,888,950 and

that said patents are valid and subsisting.



4. That Plaintiff is the owner of various technical data
relating to valves including drawings, specifications, and a
catalogue entitled “"Stream-Flo Valves".

5. That Defendants' have utilized said technical data and

distributed a catalogue entitled "Crown Valves Incorporated" to

customers in the United States of America soliciting the sale

_of valves which would infringe some of Plaintiff's patents.

6. That Defendants' catalogue is essentially a duplicate of
Plaintiff's catalogue.

7. That Defendants have designed and built patterns and molds
which are now in the possession’of foundries in the United States
of America, which patterns and molds may be utilized to produce
valves which could infringe some of Plaintiff's patenﬁs.

8. That Defendants, and each of them, and their officers,
directors, agents, heifs; employees, assigns and those acting

in concert are enjoined from any and all use in the United
States of America of the technical data, catalogues and patents
of Plaintiff.

9. That Defendants, and .each of £hem, and their officers,
directors, agents, heirs, employees, assigns and those écting in
concert are enjoined from any and all further use in the United
States of America of the catalogue entitled "Crown Valves In-
corporated", and the patterns and molds, which catalogue and
patterns and molds were designed and prepared largely from
technical data and information derived from Plaintiff.

10. That Defendants' affirmative defenses are dismissed, with
prejudice.

11. That the Writ of Attachment issued to Plaintiff is herewith
vacated.

12. That the Courts Order requiring the Plaintiff to post

an Attachment Bond is hereby vacated.



13. That no damages are awarded to Plaintiff.

14. That all court costs are assessed agalnst Defendants

and each of the parties shall bear its own attorney's fees

and other expenses of this action.

e Tranel o3 ST
-/// 7 S

Approved and Consented To:

Donald R. Comuzzi
500 National Bank of Comimerte Bldg.
San Antonio, Texas 78205

Kothe, Nichols & Wolfe, Inc.

By ;’) » ‘oY / // ) AV

Richard L. Barnes
124 East Fourth Street
Tulsa, Oklahoma 74103

ATTORNEYS FOR PLAINTIFF

oy /ﬂ/;aw; Dol

William S. Dorman
1401 National Bank of Tulsa Bldg.
Tulsa, Oklahoma 74103

ATTORNEY FOR DEFENDANTS

74
United States Dlstri“E Judge



IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA

UTICA NATIONAL BANK & TRUST COMPANY

and ABERDEEN PETROLEUM CORPORATION, Jack C Smpr(nem
. Cl, h

U. S. DISTRICT COURT

ANNE M. McDONALD, CARL J. LARSON, )
DON W. JENKINS, CORNELIUS JOHN )
TUCKER, R. B. GILES, FREDA K. )
GILES, and WILLIAM MULLINS, )

)

Plaintiffs, )
)
vs. . = ) No. 73-C-261

LAWRENCE N. HURWITZ, NORMAN H. ) FILED
RASKIN, ALAN N. ALPERN, HERBERT ) IN OPEN COURT
J. SMOKLER, HARLEQUIN MANAGEMENT ) o
CORPORATION, ABERDEEN POWER, INC., ) MAR 4 - 1978

) 1

)

)

)

Defendants.

ORDER APPROVING SETTLEMENT AND FIXING COMPENSATION

THIS CAUSE came on for hearing on this 4th day of March,

1976, upon the joint application of counsel for the plaintiffs
and counsel for the defendants, Lawrence N. Hurwitz and Norman H.
Raskin for approval by the Court of a proposed settlement of

this cause and upon the Application of counsel for the plaintiffs
for allowance of compensation. The plaintiffsappearing by their
attorneys, Royce H. Savage and L. K. Smith, and the defendants
appearing by their attorney, Jack R. Givens of Jones, Givens,

wwx¢hk£/Xwﬂ%u(ﬁ/~
Brett, Gotcher, Doyle & Bogan, Inc,

e gﬁ:(gAka‘yL (1w,4{‘,( e (Cﬂwfzamﬁ¢/ Ly 270G et awed Korrna bl f//
The Court, after hearlng stafem@nts of counsel and the “
testimony under oath of Royce H. Savage, Robert W. McDowell and
J. Jerry Dickman, finds:
1. The plaintiffs have heretofore dismissed, with approval
of the Court, as to the defendants, Alan N. Alpern, Herbert J.
Smokler, Harlequin Managemgnt Corporation and Utica National Bank
and Trust Company. The defendant, Aberdeen Power, Inc. is a
defendant in the case only because of its prior ownership of the
Class "B" stock of Aberdeen Petroleum Corporation. The defendant,
Aberdeen Petroleum Corporation (APC), is a nominal defendant since

this is a derivative action brought by the plaintiffs as stock-

holders of Aberdeen for the benefit of that corporation.



2. The Adobe 0il and Gas Corporation of Midland, Texas,
pursuant to a tender offer, became the owner of all of the out-
standing Class "B" stock and a majority of the Class "A" stock
of APC as of December 31, 1974. A change of maﬁagememt of APC
occurred at that time as a result of the acquisition of such
stock by Adobe, who now controls APC. The issues which remain in
the case are whether there- should be an accounting to APC by
Hurwitz and Raskin and a money judgment rendered against them for
such amount as might be found to be due and oWing."

3. The defendants, Hurwitz and Raskin, do not admit that
there is any merit to the claims asserted against them by plaintiff.
All parties have agreed upon a settlement of such claims in con-
sideration of the payment to the Clerk of this Court in the sum
of $61,000.00 to be disbursed by Order of the Court.

4. Notice of this hearing was properly given to all of
the stockholders of record of Aberdeen Petroleum Corporation in
conformity with the Order of the Court setting the above
described Application for hearing on this date. Proof of compliance
with the Order of the Court in respect to notice to the stock-
holders of this hearing is made by the affidavit of P. M. Welch,
Secretary of Aberdeen Petroleum Corporation, which was presented
in open Court and filed in this cause.

5. The proposed settlement of all claims asserted by
plaintiffs on behalf of APC for the sum of $61,000.00 is fair and
reasonable and such settlement is in furtherance of the best
interests of the stockholders of APC. No objection has been made,
either in writing or in open Court, to such proposed settlement.

6. The Court further finds from the evidence presented
that Royce H. Savagg and L. K. Smith, in the filing and
prosecution of this cause, have rendered services of great value
to Aberdeen Petroleum Corporation. The reasonable value of the

services rendered by counsel for the plaintiffs is the sum of
a6

$ ,;2 g [\“(Tf [5 o
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Counsel for the plaintiffs have advanced for expenses in
this litigation the sum of $1,178.15 for which they should be
reimbursed.

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED as follows:

1. That the proposed settlement of the claims made in this
cause against the defendants, Hurwitz and Raskin, for the sum of
$61,000.00 be approved and the case will be dismissed with
prejudice as to them and Aberdeen Power, Inc. upon payment of
such amount to the Clerk of this Court. | |

2. That the Clerk of the Court pay to Royce H. Savage

: P —— ¢
and L. K. Smith from the funds so deposited the sum of $_< K, A0 ;?
’ 7

for legalw§ervices performed by them, and in addition, the sum of
$£éé3§%§;)to reimburse them for expenses advanced by them, and
that the remainder of such sum be paid to Aberdeen Petroleum
Corporation; provided, however, that if the Clerk of the Court
collects any interest earned on the Certificate of Deposit in

the principal sum of $61,000.00.which counsel for defendants has
stated he intends to deliver and endorse to said Clerk, such

interest collected over and above the sum of $61,000.00 shall

be paid over to Jack R. Givens, as escrow agent for such

defendants.

e «9(:“.3., ' uz?f“

UNITED STATES DISTRICT TUDGE/‘
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ROYCE H SAVAGE
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L. K. SMITH "=

Attorneys for the Plaintiffs

JONES, GIVENS, BRETT, GOTCHER, DOYLE
& BOGAN, INC.

> ”’/
‘*lﬁ"f /< ,( LN

Jack R. Flvens

Attorneys for the Defendants
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT . .
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA o .

x
Vo it
el iy e

W WeTRINT PO

NATIONAL GYPSUM COMPANY,
Plaintiff,

V. No. 75-C-367

AMERICAN MOBILE HOMES OF
OKLAHOMA, INC., d/b/a
AMERICAN MOBILE HOME SALES,

FILELD
AR 41978

Jack C. Silver, Clerk
. S. DISTRICT cone

L i S S "l g R N W W SR

Defendant.

CONSENT JUDGMENT

WHEREAS, upon representations of counsel for plaintiff,
National Gypsum Company and from counsel for the defendant,
American Mobile Homes of Oklahoma, Inc. d/b/a American
Mobile Home Sales, it appears that the parties to this
6ause have effected settlement out of court under the
terms of which defendant admits the existence of a prior
common law trademark "American" used by the plaintiff in
regard to the sale of mobile homes; and defendant has
agreed, in exchange for the waiver of any claim by the plaintiff
for past damages, to cease any further use of the word
"American" in conjunction with its name and its mobile
home sales business as of March 1, 1976; defendant has
further agreed that this Court may enter an injunction
effective March 1, 1976 prohibiting any further use by
the defendant of the word "American" in conjunction with
the sale of mobile homes.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS ADJUDGED AND DECREED:

l. THAT this Court has jurisdiction of this matter

and the parties to this action.



[

~——&Attorney for“ﬁhe Pk ntlff’
V///// National Gypsum pany

2. THAT the defendant, American Mobile Homes of Oklahoma,
Inc., its officers, agents, servants and employees, and
each of them are hereby enjoined, effective March 1, 1976,
from any further use of the word "American" in conjunction
with the sale of or in connection with any mobile home
merchandise not emanating from the plaintiff and from using
any words or letters which in any way assimilate the mark
"American" or any other letters or designs which in any
way assimilate plaintiff's trademark "American" in its
trade name and in connection with the manufacture or sale
of mobile homes.

3. THAT the plaintiff's claims of unfair competition
and violation of the Oklahoma Deceptive Trade Practices
Act are hereby dismissed without prejudice.

4. THAT each of the parties of this cause bear their
own costs and attorney's fees.

DONE AND ENTERED at Tulsa, Oklahoma, this jz bt‘ day

of _ Zrone b 1976.
U.S. DISTRICT JUDGE

AGREED TO AS TO FORM AND SUBSTANCE:

Wt . T e

/ ~ Attorney for the Uef dant
American MObile Home of Oklahoma, Inc.



IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA

GEORGE L. SCRUGGS, JR., d/b/a )
Chem-Quip Company, a sole )
proprietorship, g
Plaintiff, )
vs. ) No. 75-C-344

)
WABECO COMPANY, INC., a corpora- )
tion, and JOHN S. BEEBE, JR., )

and A. WAYNE BROWN, individually ) |

and as directors, g‘ & &m %ﬁ g@

Defendants. ) W A4 97
Jack €. Sitver, Clerk
ORDER W RISTRICT GO

The Court has for consideration the motions to dismiss for
lack of jurisdiction of each of the three defendants in their
entirety and has carefully perused the entire file, the briefs
and all of the recommendations concetning said motions, and
being fully advised in the premises finds:

That the defendants' motions should be sustained for the
reason that none of the defendants had sufficient minimum
contact with the State of Oklahoma concerning the subject

- matter of the action to be subject to jurisdiction of courts
in the State of Oklahoma under 12 Okla. Stat. § 187 and 8§ l701.01i
et seq.
| IT IS, THEREFORE, ORDERED that the motions of Wabeco Com-
pany, Inc., John S, Beebe, Jr., and A. Wayne Brown should be
and are hereby sustained and the complaint and tﬁis action are
hereby dismissed for lack of jurisdiction,

Dated this 4&7% day of :2%uvuw£) , 1976.

W

Rk g
AR

CHIEF UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE

Richard K. Holmes,
Attorney for Plaintiff

/& ﬁadE' 52%4;4vu4vwa/

D. E. Hammer, .
Attorney for Defendants




IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA

KANSAS CITY FIRE & MARINE
INSURANCE COMPANY, a
corporation,

75-C-335
Plaintiff,

vs.

W. RILEY FRICK and ANITA
L. BAKER, ‘

N e N N o N N o N N N I

Defendants.

Len i
r;'\!l NGy S

ey W '..«"..'Awi) Vool

Qoo pfo o

ORDER DISMISSING CAUSE OF ACTION AND COMPLAINT
WITHOUT PREJUDICE AND SUS-
TAINING PLAINTIFF'S MOTION
TO DISMISS
The Court has for consideration the Application of the
Plaintiff to Dismiss Without Prejudice and notes the approval
of the attorney for defendant, and, being fully advised in the
premises, finds:
That said application shbuld be sustained.
IT IS, THEREFORE, ORDERED that Plaintiff's Application for
a Dismissal Without Prejudice be and the same is hereby sustained.
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that this cause of action and complaint
be and the same are hereby dismissed without prejudice.

ENTERED this 4th day of March, 1976.

Ca, L5 . —

CHIEF UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE




IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA

LIZZIE MAE INGLE,
Plaintiff,
vs.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA;

The Unknown Heirs, Executors,
Administrators, Trustees,
Devisees and Assigns, if any,
of Bruce Morgan, deceased;
and THE STATE OF ORLAHOMA,

ex rel, OKLAHOMA TAX
COMMISSION, ‘

~—

Defendants.

CIVIL ACTION NO. 76-C-19

FlLEI/D
MAK 4 1978
Jack C. Silver, Cleri
“.ASV MISTRICT cone

PLAINTIFF'S NOTICE OF
DISMISSAL WITHOUT PREJUDICE

Plaintiff, Lizzie Mae Ingle, by and through her attorneys

of record, Blackstock Joyce Pollard Blackstock & Montgomery, by

William C. Kellough, hereby dismisses the above action without

prejudice.

BLACKSTOCK
BLACKSTOCK

/N

JOYCE POLLARD
& MONTGOMERY

mé’//o%wd

William C. Kellough
300 Petroleum Club Bldg.

Tulsa,
(918)

Oklahoma
585-2751

74119

Attorneys for Plaintiff

CERTIFICATE OF MAILING

I hereby certify that on the

.-
Y ="day of March,

1976, I caused

a true and correct copy of the foregoing Dismissal to be mailed

to Robert P,
Court House,
thereon.

Tulsa,

Santee, Assistant United States Attorney, Federal
Oklahoma 74103,

with sufficient postage prepaid

il /4%@/\,

WILLIAM C. KELLOUGH
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE _
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA }ad(C.SﬁWW Clerk

diig

'8 BISTRICT Cntt™

CHARLES RALEH CRAIG, )
Petitioner, ) -
vs. )} NO. 75-C-559
) .
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, et al., )
Respondents. )

ORDER

The Court has for consideration the pro se, in forma pauperis mo-
tion pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 2255 of Charles Ralph Craig. Therein, he
contends that his plea of guilty to violation of Title 18, Uu. s. C.,
§ 2114 (robbery of a United States Post Office) in Case No. 69-CR-62
was in violation of his right guaranteed by the Constitution of the
United States of America in that his plea was not knowing and voluntary.

The Government in response to the § 2255 motion confesses that the
plea of Char;es Ralph Craig, taken on June 17, 1969, followed by 15 days

the Supreme Court decisions in McCarthy v. United States, 394 U. S. 459

(1969) and Boykin v. Alabama, 395 U. S. 238 (1969). Further, the Govern-

ment confesses that the plea of Charleé Ralph Craig is absent the dia-
iogue required by said decisions. The Government stipulates that the
§ 2255 motion before the Court should be granted. The Court, being fully
adviséd in the premises, agrees, and finds that an evidentiary hearing is
not necessary and that the conviction and sentence of Charles Ralph Craig
in Case No. 69-CR-62 should be set aside and held for naught, and that no
disabilities or burden of any-kind should flow from said conviction,
judgment and sentence. |

IT IS, THEREFORE, OﬁDERED that the motion pursuant to 28 U.S.C.
§ 2255 be and it is hereby sustained. The conviction and sentence of
Charles Ralph Craig in Case No. 69-CR-62 be and it is hereby set aside
and held for naught, and no disabilities or burden of yany kind shall flow

from said conviction, judgment and sentence.

Dated this ﬁféz”day of March, 1976, at Tulsa, Oklahoma.

CZkuy,h Cé?ﬁ éégsznﬂwcﬂ~rﬂ)

CHIEF JUDGE, UNITED STATES DISTRICT
COURT FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF
OKLAHOMA




IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA

DON SIDES,
75-C-470— > v
Plaintiff,

vs.

DAVID MATHEW, SECRETARY OF
HEALTH, EDUCATION AND WELFARE,

Defendant.

Jack C. Sibvar, Cleoh
HOQ DRTRINT fnves

i :,_il"‘\
AAD O 0T
MAR O 1970 /}@L
bnog

ORDER REMANDING

The Court has for consideration the Motion to Remand filed
by the defendant, the brief in support thereof, and, having care-
fully perused the entire file, and, being fully advised in the
premises, finds:

That the attorney for plaintiff has orally advised the
Clerk's office that he has no objection to said Motion.

That the brief filed by the defendant indicates that the
purpose of the remand is to secure additional evidence with respect
to plaintiff's claim which has not been previously considered.

IT IS, THEREFORE, ORDERED that the Motion to Remand filed by
the defendant be and the same is hereby sustained and this complaint

and cause of action are hereby remanded to the defendant for further

administrative action.

ENTERED this 2nd day of March, 1976.

D Gl E P

CHIEF UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE




IN THE UNLTED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE
NORTHERN DISTRLCT OF OKLAHGHMA

L. A, Horton d/b/a
Herton's Electrical Center,

Plaintiff,

V8.

Satterfield, Richard §, Sudduth,
Micheal L. O'Donnell d/bfa aci Hi
Construction Company, Anchor Concrete
Company, Tom Dolan Heating Company,
Lights of Tulsa inc,, Matt Collins
&/bfa Vorld Wide Mechanical and United

)
)
)
)
)
§
Steven H, Janco, William R, - g
)
)
)
g
States of America, g

Defendanta, Civil No 75-C-182

ORDER OF DISMISSAL

On this 10th day of February, 1976, comes the
said plaintiff by his attorneys, Rollins and Combs, and there-
upon, it is ordered by the Court that this cause be and the
same hereby is dismissed at cost of plaintiff, without prejucice
to his right to bring a new action in this behalf, in so far
as said cause of action relates to Micheal O'Donnell d/b/a
Aci Hi Construction Company and Matt Collins d/b/a World Wide

Mechanical,

LINS AND COMBS
“TORNEYS AT LAW
P. ©. DRAWER 147
111 S0, 11TH ST,
LLINSVILLE, OKLAHOMA

A




